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HISTORY AND DEVELOPMENT

1962

1983

1989

1992

1996

2007

2008

2009-
2013

2020

| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. (I Lan Foods”) was established
in May 1962, which manufactured canned agricultural products
mainly for export.

In 1983, we collaborated with lwatsuka Confectionery Co., Ltd.
(“ICCL”), one of the leading Japanese rice cracker producers, to
jointly develop the rice cracker market in Taiwan region. Since
1983, we have been producing and marketing our products under
the “Want Want” brand.

We introduced the “Want Want” brand in the Chinese mainland in
1989.

We ventured into the Chinese mainland and established our first
subsidiary in Hunan province in 1992. In the following years, we
grew from a pure rice cracker company to a diversified food and
beverages company.

In May 1996, Want Want Holdings Ltd. (“WWHL?”), our subsidiary,
was listed on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) and subsequently diversified into the
hospital, hotel and property businesses and other investments.

WWHL delisted from SGX-ST in September 2007 and conducted
a group restructuring which involved (i) the incorporation of Want
Want China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) as the new holding
company of our core operations related to the food and beverages
businesses; (ii) the divestment and transfer of the hospital, hotel
and property businesses and other investments to San Want
Holdings Limited (“San Want”) on 31 December 2007, and the
interests in San Want were distributed to the then shareholders of
WWHL by way of dividend in specie.

Our Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HK Stock Exchange”) on 26 March 2008 (the
“Listing”).

Our Taiwan Depositary Receipts were listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation on 28 April 2009 and were voluntarily
withdrawn from listing on 15 October 2013.

In 2020, our Vietnam production base commenced construction
to strengthen our business expansion and to cope with our future
development strategy in overseas markets.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Want Want”, “We” or the “Group”) are the manufacturing,
distribution and sale of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.

KEY MARKETS

Most of our operations are located in the Chinese mainland, which is one
of the fastest growing economies in the world. We have an extensive
nationwide sales and distribution network throughout the Chinese
mainland. We also export our products to other markets, including North
America, East Asia, South East Asia and Europe.

As at 31 March 2022, we had 422 sales offices, 35 production bases
and 81 factories in the Chinese mainland and worked with over 10,000
distributors.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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A SERIES OF THEMATIC ACTIVITIES ON “INHERITING
60, SURPASSING 30 AND THEN SETTING SAIL”

In 1962, | Lan Foods was established, and in 1992, Want Want built its first
factory in the Chinese mainland. Throughout these 60 years, the Group has
witnessed the vigorous development of the Chinese mainland and Taiwan
region and felt the deep relation between the Chinese people. During 2022,
the Group will organise a special series of activities along the theme of
“inheriting 60, surpassing 30 and then setting sail” to celebrate the 60th
anniversary of the founding of the Group and the 30th anniversary of its first
factory in the Chinese mainland. Let's continue the tradition of Want Want
and get united to win!

NEW CORPORATE THEME SONG CONTEST

In response to the call of the Group’s Chairman for innovation and change,
the Group held the new corporate theme song contest “| Love My Family”
in 2021. All departments of the Group as well as the distributors actively
participated in this event. It not only strengthened the cohesion and team
spirit among the Group’s staff, but also enhanced communication between
the Group and its distributors. It exemplified the corporate spirit of the Want
Want family and the corporate culture of “united we will win” and showed the
vital essence, the energy and the spirit of the Want Want people.
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CELEBRATING FESTIVALS TOGETHER

In order to improve team cohesion among the staff and strengthen their
sense of belonging, the Group holds traditional Chinese festive activities on
the Lantern Festival, the Dragon Boat Festival and the Mid-Autumn Festival
every year. The family members of our employees are also invited to join so
that they can feel our “Want Want is a big family” culture.

WANT WANT FAMILY DAY

To strengthen the two-way communication and exchange between the
Group and employees as well as the Group and the family members
of employees, to harmonise the relationship among members of the
organisation and to build a harmonious corporate atmosphere, the Group
held the Want Want Family Day to showcase the performances and
achievements of our employees and teams. This can boost the pride of the
families of employees and thus win their support and understanding. This
can also enhance our corporate image and build a healthy and positive

corporate culture.

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT
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MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY:

% HEEE

People Oriented
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Hot-Kid’'s round head shape signifies congeniality. The
head seems to have just been washed but the hair is
not dry: this is known as “hair holding”. “Hair holding”
originated from <Zhou Gong Quotation> and came to
symbolise eagerness to recruit talents.

ESRMFE  REFEEGES  2ABME—EAXR
B RXRBHE-E  BZEEMOBE  BEEAER
BE - TFEMROAHER - ROPAER  EFREENSE

In our Chairman’s words, our Company is very grateful
for and cherishes our talents. Our Company is like a
big family: we should cherish the fate that brought us
together, play our part and cherish this family, and put
one another in our own hearts.

If Confiden
RS ORBRRIHEE o RN B ERE FARI0E el CETiones

B BENRFERAGEE  —EUUTHER - BERREM

HMENE—HER - £O0RFULF  REERMEFRBH Confidence comes with good preparation. Hot-Kid's

O EHEFREORRER  BETEBOMEE @i smiling countenance reflects our belief in preparedness

BEHEOEE 0 MEEEEER  BXEINE - and the confidence that glows with it. The heart-
shaped tongue of Hot-Kid represents our sincere heart
to the Group: Be faithful to the leaders, be kind to the
subordinates, and be sincere to our customers. This
effort would definitely enhance our performances!

REE EFER

APV F RAMFERR - EFRRAEE - MRFR
REN  SEEEMAEERZFNANS  IERKE
KHH - EEBEAMEEREIRE - E—EARE
B RRBNEL  FEF > BEE—L-

Hot-Kid's open arms reflect our team spirit. His
welcoming left arm denotes our unity. We believe that
with the right strategies and concerted effort, victory
is already half won. Even with less-than-expected
performances, our collective efforts will ensure minimal
deviations.

RERR

MANAGEMENT GOALS:

Elite Dragons of the World

R REEEERREEZE - AREHHEBE—E
AHRNEBEZRAEEZHRNE  BEEENER > —
RIGERNEEBESBARES  REAHRNIE]
B!

Hot-Kid's open arms reflect WANT WANT is a big
united family which brings together outstanding talents
from all over the world. With the development and
expansion of our businesses, the Giant Dragons of the
World is born.
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United with People of Common Aspirations

RFAFHRERTRE  FOEEETREZE - X
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Hot-Kid's right arm denotes a helping hand. Corporate
advancement is the product of the intricate interplay
among talent, skills, capital funds and markets. As we
strive to achieve our corporate vision of becoming the
"Elite Dragons of the World", our doors are always
open to people of common aspirations and those who
share our ideals.

SFE SRR SERRE
High Margins, Great Success

RFHRBETLERTOECETERE  KE8%-

AMEREELEEWED - KEBE  ZEZENABE

Frh s REASAKESINEREY  BEHRREHK - fFEik Hot-Kid's upward-looking eyes point to where our

ROMABEEANEE QA —EUEIESNFE 8T management sights are set — the skies. We aim high

WERDIZEKR and achieve far. Only through prudent management
and judicious foresight, will our enterprise progress with
sustainable profits. Preparedness also prevents any
unwanted events. With good yields, our shareholders
and employees will share the fruits of our success.

MRIZAIEX BHmE
Successful Business Ventures

RFBRENMFRET  RRATWEZAHEE  LHE

B RMUEBRORBERRRE]  FFEKEEH

MEXE ATHANSE  AXBEAEHCHWI @M Hot-Kid's roll-up sleeves and pants imply embracing our

EBHEEMTRD ARATARRETR © future with hard work. To realize our goal of becoming
the "Elite Dragons of the World", we will undertake new
ventures periodically. Every employee should travel
the extra miles and ensure tasks are successfully
accomplished.

NEEEAZRERE HESH

Prosperity for the Group and

HFOF N BREFENAN  RAWNEE - DEE
BEHEABRNZFESE  RENBED  BEEE
HE - HENEE  S—EABENEEBHYE - &
A BEZIARRNEEEZE - ik - RRXRE
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the Individuals
Hot-Kid's bare feet symbolises our unwavering
pragmatism. To garner customer support and
recognition, a company needs to conduct its business
honestly and earnestly. To win our customers' and
associates' support, every employee should be

conscientious and down-to-earth when dealing with
them. Consequently, a company will prosper and
likewise its employees.
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Revenue Return on Equity®
Uy 5 R B K"
RMB’000
AREF T
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Gross Profit Margin EBITDA® Margin
EF= REtFIE ~ FrEH
ERBHAAECR
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39% 15%
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30% A = 0% 10084
2019FY 2020F 2019FY 2020FY 2021FY
201981  20208fF 2021814 201984 2020814 2021815
Profit for the year Earnings Per Share
FEFE BRER
RMB’000 RMB cents
AREF T RIS
4,500,000 4,147,681 4,189,1 14 40
4,000,000 ay 15
3,500,000 30
3,000,000 2
2,500,000
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2,000,000 | ------- kB Y QA SNRY - -
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1,000,000  ------- M LA BRI  SNE
500,000 5
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2019FY 2020FY 2021FY 2019FY 2020FY 2021FY
2019816 2020844F 2021814 2019815 2020814 2021815
Note: e
(1) 2021FY/2020FY/2019FY: Year ended 31 March 2022/31 March (1) 2021819 /20208F 5 /201981 FF B E 202263 A318/2021F3A318/
2021/31 March 2020 20203 A31BILEE
(2) Return on equity is based on profit attributable to equity holders of the (2) BREBEUARDBERTEABRMGIBRAFIRFRES (T2
Company divided by the average of the opening and closing balances RIS I ERS -
of the equity (excluding non-controlling interests).
(3) EBITDA: Earnings before interests, income tax, depreciation and (3) KREFIE - IS - MERBHEAFBRIZFANEEFNEMEITERE

amortisation which is calculated by adding back depreciation and

amortisation expenses to the operating profit for the year.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FelEE®
Fifteen months
ended 31
March 2018 v ded 31 March
§32018$ ear ende arc
3:;]315& BZE3AMALEE
+HREA 2019 2020 2021 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®Tr AR¥Tr AR¥®TR AR%TR
(Restated)
(EEH)
Revenue Uz 24705513 20,712,027 20,094,531 21,998,400 23,984,891
Profit before income tax BRETEB AR 5,322,733 4,806,321 5,048,789 5,994,842 5,734,383
Income tax expense FE%iBR (1,468,445)  (1,343,750)  (1,412,546)  (1,847,161)  (1,545,269)
Profit for the year/period FE/HAFE 3,854,288 3,462,571 3,636,243 4,147,681 4,189,114
Profit attributable to: FEAFE -
Equity holders of the Company ARREREFEA 3,862,603 3,476,599 3,649,215 4,157,809 4,202,655
Non-controlling interests el £y (8,315) (14,028) (12,972) (10,128) (13,541)
Dividends RE 2,473,233 2,877,682 3,649,215 1,710,001 4,691,334
Shares buy-back BRipEEE 371,713 - 184,782 1,601,078 819,493
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
ARES ARES AR#ES ARES ARES
Earnings per share REF
Basic EXK 30.90 27.93 29.38 33.83 35.16
Diluted #E 30.90 27.93 29.38 33.83 35.16
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®Tr AR%®TR AR®TR AR%Trn
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E5) (EH)
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE 9,330,069 8,649,036 8,218,962 10,811,484 13,269,649
Current assets REEE 17,353,034 21,225,369 21,606,028 20,431,534 16,588,332
Total assets mEE 26,683,103 29,874,405 29,824,990 31,243,018 29,857,981
EQUITY R
Total equity s 14,610,900  15459,827 15,354,214 14971640 16,708,778
LIABILITIES =1
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 3,343,251 8,116,043 8,649,259 7,105,520 3,900,675
Current liabilities raas 8,728,952 6,298,535 5,821,517 9,165,858 9,248,528
Total liabilities =X 12,072,203 14414578  14470,776 16,271,378 13,149,203
Total equity and liabilities BEzREE 26,683,103  29,874405 29,824,990 31,243,018 29,857,981
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Dear shareholders,

The history of Want Want began with the establishment of | Lan Foods
Industrial Co., Ltd. (‘I Lan Foods”) 60 years ago in Yilan County, Northeast
Taiwan, where the people were simple and diligent. At the age of 19, |
offered myself to my father to be the general manager of | Lan Foods.
Although | was not fully familiar with the company’s business and future
operation direction at that time, | was impressed by the hardworking and
pragmatic attitude of the local people, and have deeply implanted such
attitude in Want Want’s corporate culture over the years.

In 1992, taking the opportunity of market reform and opening-up in the
Chinese mainland and after careful consideration and discussion with my
family, | decided to travel to the Chinese mainland and set up our first rice
cracker factory in Wangcheng County, Hunan Province. Our dream was,
by leveraging on our product offering with unique taste and flavour and
capitalising on the world’s most populous nation with a population of over a
billion, to build a brand that brings endless joy and happiness to consumers
in the niche market of the Chinese mainland. | strongly believe that “there is
a market wherever there are people”. As long as Want Want could be able
to gain a foothold in the Chinese mainland market in the future, it would be
able to become one of the industry leaders in the world one day. For the
2021 fiscal year, we achieved revenue of RMB23,984.9 million, representing
an increase of more than 100 times as compared with the annual revenue
before our tapping investment into the Chinese mainland. It was attributable
not only to the support of numerous Want Want consumers over the years,
but also to the win-win cooperation with a number of distributors, customers
and business partners as well as the hard work and dedication of Want
Want colleagues, which enabled Want Want to progress forward step by
step to achieve today’s position. | hereby express my heartfelt thanks to all
of them for their support and contribution.

In 2022, | ask our management to inherit the hardworking attitude of the
Yilan people and reflect on the major achievements and failures in the
Chinese mainland market over the past 30 years in order to make further
planning for the future with the objective of expanding into the global market.
Every department should pragmatically formulate its future development
plans and work out meticulously the implementation details of each year, so
that Want Want can progress towards the corporate vision of “Elite Dragons
of the World”, because we believe that it is the mission and responsibility of
this generation of Want Want's people to “Inheriting 60, surpassing 30 and
then setting sail”.

Last but not least, | would like to thank all shareholders again for your
support. In 2022, we will enjoy a year of good fortune and prosperity! |
believe the next chapter in Want Want's story will be even more exciting
than it was in the past.

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

28 June 2022
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Major Awards and Recognition

FE e ERERAT

ERAERD IR
NERmETESR
2021548 » MEEMPE MR AEREE2021FMonde
SelectionfE 2% AV E fm B FFE £ 2 Gold Quality Award ©

2¥2021F Monde Selectionf8 2

Pea Crisp (Apple Cinnamon Flavour) won the 2021
Monde Selection Gold Quality Award

In April 2021,
Cinnamon Flavour) won the 2021 Monde Selection Gold
Quality Award.

the export product Pea Crisp (Apple

MONDE SELECTION®

International Quality Institute Since 1961

GRANTS THE COMPANY

ANQING Bic-WaNT Foops LIMITED

FOR THE PRODUCT
Mum Mum Snax Pea Crisp - Apple Cinnamon
PRESENTED AT THE

WORLD SELECTION OF FOOD PRODUCTS 2021

(RERH P B ) B R i SR
2021578 » & AR Bl AR BE AR A B 3
T $5 SR EFE S8 ML JE TopDigital 8157 & 85
HE_|PASSY — S8 o )

The Hot-Kid Occupational Cans
marketing proposal for “Working
Together From the Heart,
Prosperity for Everyone”
In July 2021, the Hot-Kid |/
Occupational Cans marketing

. Topdigital

proposal for “Working Together
From the Heart, Prosperity
for Everyone” won the
9th TopDigital Innovative
Marketing Award — IP
Marketing — Gold Award.
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Want Want x NetEase Music “Sounds Delicious”

In April 2021, Want Want x NetEase Music “Sounds
Delicious” won the Cross-Industry Joint Marketing Gold
Award under the category of “Case Studies” at the 12th
Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Awards.
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Want Want Rice Prawn Chips won “The Best Flavour
Snack” of the 3rd (2020-2021) iSEE Innovation
Award

In May 2021, at the award ceremony of the 3rd iSEE
Innovation Award hosted by Foodaily in Hangzhou, Want
Want Rice Prawn Chips won the 3rd (2020-2021) iSEE
Innovation Award — “The Best Flavour Snack”.
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Research on key technology of active lactoferrin
yogurt won the Second Prize of the Technical
Progress Award from the China Dairy Industry
Association

In September 2021, the 27th annual meeting of the China
Dairy Industry Association and the Global Dairy Industry
CGD Cooperation and Development Forum was held
in Hangzhou. The research on key technology of active
lactoferrin yogurt won the Second Prize of the Technical
Progress Award from the China Dairy Industry Association.
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Major Awards and Recognition
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HEEELEE T ETERERBRELER —ShI5H1EE
202198 » ELBETMETETERERRER Lt E2RBE
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EREEFCREELEE AEMRBREHORERE
BERKKREBTE -

Want Want Group won the 10th China Food Health
Seven Star Award — Special Contribution Award

In September 2021, at the 10th China Food Health Seven
Star Award presentation ceremony held in Shanghai,
Want Want Group won the Special Contribution Award
of the China Food Health Seven Star Award. This is
the seventh time that the Group won this award. Mr Yu
Huimin, deputy managing director of the quality center of
the manufacturing and R&D group, received the award on
behalf of the Group.
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The research and application of lactoferrin detection
technology in fermented milk won the Second Prize
of the China Food Industry Association Science
Technology Award
In December 2021,
the research and
application of the
lactoferrin detection
technology in
fermented milk won
the Second Prize
of the China Food
Industry Association
Science Technology
Award.

BE -+ R KERRME
2021128 ' A -+ R AKBERRETEEREEEE= -

Taiwan Top 25 International Brands
In December 2021, Want Want ranked the third in the list
of “Taiwan Top 25 International Brands”.

2021 BEST TAIWAN GLOBAL
BRANDS:
TOP 25 AWARD
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FY2021 '

(For the year ended 31 March 2022)

Revenue of the Group achieved new-record hlgh'

Reaching RM523,984-9mn, TQ.O%

Revenue of Key Product Segments .

Rice cracker RMB 5,5923 mn, TOZ%
Daily products &*beverages RMB 12,8735 mn, T1 69%
Snack.foods RMB 5,3972 mn, T1..6%

Emerging Channels’ C.40% of revenue contributed by new products
Channel Contribution o

Traditional channel ¢.80%

Overseas markets mid-single digit
Modern channels high-single digit

."“
m Emerging channels c. double digit

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Cpmpany 'j'

rvB 4,202.7mn, 1.1 - !

Interim dividend: US 0.83 cent per share total USD99mn :
Proposed final dividend: US 210 cents per share, totaLUS_D250mn
Proposed special dividend: US 2.94 cents per share, total USD350mn.
Total 2021FY dividends; USDO99mne
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Year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
2022 2021 Change
20224 20215 =)
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AR¥T ARET T %
Key income statement items FEWHKIER
Revenue g 23,984,891 21,998,400 +9.0
Gross profit EF| 10,747,394 10,605,524 +1.3
Operating profit EEFHE 5,456,813 5,736,178 -4.9
Profit attributable to equity RATERFEA
holders of the Company FEAL F) 4,202,655 4,157,809 +1.1
% point
Key financial ratios FEBBLE R % % (EERE
Gross profit margin ER=E 44.8 48.2 -3.4
Operating profit margin EEREER 22.8 26.1 -3.3
Margin of profit attributable to RATEREEA
equity holders of the Company FEALF = 17.5 18.9 1.4
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SUMMARY

Although the 2021FY was still adversely affected by the pandemic, the
Group’s total revenue for the 2021FY grew by 9.0% year-on-year and
reached RMB23,984.9 million, achieving a record high in total revenue since
its listing. In particular, revenue of “Hot-Kid Milk” ( BE 1% 4 %3 ), core-brand
rice crackers and candies sub-categories all surpassed respective historic
peak, due mainly to the success of the multi-channel and multi-brand
strategies implemented by the Group in recent years.

In the 2021FY, the three key product segments of the Group and all channels
in the Chinese mainland realised revenue growth. As regard the second half
of the financial year, although the escalation of pandemic control measures
in certain regions of the Chinese mainland posted a greater impact on the
supply chain and the sales performance in some regions was adversely
affected, the Group’s overall revenue still maintained high single-digit growth
in the second half of the year, and rice crackers and snack foods segments
resumed growth momentum in the second half of the year with low-to-mid
single-digit and mid-to-high single-digit year-on-year growth respectively.
The overseas markets also returned to mid-to-high single-digit year-on-year
revenue growth as the supply chain pressure eased.

The gross profit margin decreased by 3.4 percentage points year-on-year
to 44.8% in the 2021FY due to the increasing cost pressure from the high
prices of certain raw materials and packaging materials (collectively the
‘raw materials”). The operating profit of the 2021FY decreased by 4.9%
year-on-year to RMB5,456.8 million. Excluding the one-off gain on disposal
of factory land in the second half of the 2020FY, the operating profit of
the 2021FY remained nearly flat year-on-year. Since the effect of revenue
growth and economies of scale offset some of the impacts of surging costs,
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company still increased by 1.1%
year-on-year to RMB4,202.7 million in the 2021FY, and the margin of profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was 17.5%. The Group will
continue to pay close attention to the impact of changes in the external
environment on its operations, manage the costs and associated risks
properly and maintain healthy development of the Group.

The pandemic has occurred in several parts of the Chinese mainland since
the beginning of 2022, and the national supply chain and consumption
have suffered to a certain extent, with total retail sales of consumer goods
falling by 11.1% year-on-year in April and 6.7% year-on-year in May. All of
the above also posed a certain degree of impact on the Group’s operating
performance. The Group will remain mindful of systematic risks in association
with the pandemic and the macro environment etc., and the potential impact
on the Group and make timely adjustments to its operations accordingly.

Want Want ChinaHoldings Limited
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During 2021FY, the Group continued to pursue its operational strategy of
diversification and consolidated its growth momentum on a medium-to-long
term basis. Specific strategies implemented are as follows:

1) Intensive development and diversification of channels: expanding
coverage of points-of-sale and facilitating new product launches;

2) Brand and product differentiation strategy: broadening the consumer
base and meeting the individual needs of consumers;

3) Dynamic and diversified digital marketing: revitalising the brand image
and enhancing interaction with consumers.

() Intensive development and diversification of channels
1. Intensive development of traditional distribution channels

Revenue derived from traditional channels achieved a high-
single-digit year-on-year growth rate in the 2021FY. The Group
has secured the competitive advantage of Want Want’s products
in the marketplace by continuously improving the efficiency
of the supply chain. Through digital management, the Group
has been able to explore market opportunities and enhance
its coverage of unexplored points-of-sale. By installing special
displays in benchmark stores and making use of dynamic and
diversified promotional products and point-of-sale activities,
consumers’ desire to purchase Want Want products has been
boosted. Differentiated product promotion strategy and keeping
the visibility and publicity of Want Want’s products helped to
promote the balanced development of all product categories.

2. Cultivation of modern channels

Revenue derived from the modern channels achieved a near
high single-digit growth in the 2021FY year-on-year, mainly
driven by new products and the newly developed convenience
store channels through managing the product varieties on
retailers’ shelves, launching new products suitable for the
channels, enriching the display of products on shelves,
enhancing the shelf utilisation with the use of the supply chain
replenishment system and organising various marketing
activities designed for festive occasions to drive small climax for
festive sales.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)
() Intensive development and diversification of channels (continued)

3.

Diversification of emerging channels

Emerging channels, being an important revenue growth driver
of the Group, maintained rapid growth and contributed close
to a double-digit percent of the Group’s overall revenue in
the 2021FY. Forty percent of the revenue generated from the
emerging channels was derived from new products that were
launched in the past three years, thus, emerging channels has
been serving as an important platform for the Group to showcase
its new products. Emerging channels are operated under B2B
and B2C models:

The B2B model includes online/offline cooperation with various
platforms, self-developed e-shopping mall — the Want Want official
online store ( FE{FEE$H ), maternity channels, OEM business channels
and special channels and others. Through the adoption of multiple
means, the Group has effectively expanded its point-of-sales coverage
and the product flow at the end market has been accelerated. The
OEM business channels have allowed more consumers to enjoy the
high quality products produced by Want Want and enabled the Group
to enhance the utilisation of production resources and gain efficiency.

The B2C model mainly includes Want Want’s self-operated
online official flagship store as well as offline vending machines
and theme stores. Revenue generated by vending machines
in the 2021FY doubled over that of the previous financial year.
Although the pandemic affected the level of offline interaction
with consumers, the Group has, through the cooperation with
delivery platforms to improve the last-mile delivery, effectively
expanded its sales network.

Continuous expansion of overseas markets

Facing the impact brought by the global pandemic and the
supply chain pressure, the Group’s overseas sales in the
2021FY recorded a year-on-year decline in revenue. However,
with the gradual improvement in the global supply chain capacity,
the second half of the year saw a significant improvement as
compared to the first half, with revenue achieving a mid-to-
high single-digit growth rate. If excluding the exchange rate
effects, the revenue would have achieved a double-digit growth.
In addition, our factory in Vietnam is expected to commence
production in mid-2022 while other new offices in the Southeast
Asia have started operation one after another. The Group will
take full advantage of its diversified product portfolios and
develop suitable products for sale based on local consumers’
preferences so that consumers around the world can taste the
delicious products manufactured by Want Want.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued) BEREE
(I Brand and product differentiation strategy (Z) mERERERCRE
The Group defines its brand characteristics and brand portfolio based EEXBEEHEEZELNFHFR - E
on the differentiated needs and preferences of consumers. The brands HoEEmBERERGERNYRES
successively launched by the Group in recent years included: B o KERLFHEERLNITDEE
1

FiX X BQdy ) [FixxBody | —B@EERE

[Queen Alice] —ERELHRE 4 AT TOI

“Queen Alice” — a high-quality brand for female consumers

Ll [Mr. Hot| —BRUKE 17 £ AR
“Mr. Hot” — a customised brand for spicy lovers

> Got Rice

“Got Rice” — a novel brand for rice snacks

)
> | (528 —hEEREEEaR
“Prime of Love” — a brand of healthy nutritious products for middle-
™

aged and elderly people
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

(1)

Brand and product differentiation strategy (continued)

The Group regularly reviews the profitability of its existing products,
and incorporates new consumer demands to roll out new products
and maintain the healthy development of different product categories.
Revenue generated from the new products that were first introduced
by the Group during the past three years accounted for nearly a
double-digit percent of the Group’s total revenue in the 2021FY.

New products that were introduced by the Group in recent years
contain the following attributes:

Enriching the product range in line with the latest market trends,
such as the addition of chocolate milk and nut milk in the dairy
products segment;

Premiumisation and upgrading of products and product
packaging, such as the new candy products with unique chewing
texture, “Super QQ” (# QQ) and “QQ syrup popping gummy” (QQ
BRI );

Catering for new demands for nutrition and healthiness, such as
the low GI chia seed multigrain crackers and non-fried crispy rice
chips with abundant dietary fibers;

new functional products to meet individual needs of consumers,
such as “Dream Water” ( ZZ7K ), “Moisten-throat Tea” ( KX A3k )
and energy candies, etc.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

(I Dynamic and diversified digital marketing
Through dynamic and diversified digital marketing activities, the Group
has reinforced the brand image of “health, happiness and vitality”,
created diversified consumption scenarios and promoted new product
features. It has, through digitalisation, improved private domain traffic
management and built the Want Want fans ecosystem and increased
consumers’ awareness and brand loyalty.

REVENUE

Total revenue of the Group for the 2021FY grew by 9.0% as compared
with that of the 2020FY, reaching RMB23,984.9 million. Due to the adverse
impact of the disruption in the supply chain of exported products, revenue
from the rice crackers segment for the 2021FY remained at the similar level
as that of the previous year and recorded a low-to-mid single-digit year-on-
year growth in the second half of the year. Revenue from the dairy products
and beverages segment increased by 16.9% year-on-year, with double-digit
growth in both the first and second half of the year. Revenue from the snack
foods segment grew by 1.6% year-on-year, with year-on-year growth in a
mid-to-high single digit in the second half of the year.

Rice crackers

Revenue from rice crackers amounted to RMB5,592.3 million for the
2021FY, remaining at the similar level as that of the previous year, of which,
revenue from the core-brand rice crackers grew by a low-single digit year-
on-year while that from overseas sales, which accounted for approximately
20% of the segment revenue, registered a decline due to the global
pandemic and supply chain pressure. During the second half of the financial
year, revenue from core-brand rice crackers achieved a mid-single digit
year-on-year growth rate, driven mainly by the numerous diverse festive
sales activities while revenue derived from the emerging channels achieved
a double-digit year-on-year growth rate during the period and with the ease
of supply chain pressure in the overseas market, overseas sales resumed a
mid-single digit growth.

In order to enrich the rice crackers product offerings and to meet the health
demands of consumers, the Group launched a series of new products
under the new brand “Got Rice”, such as “Want Want Donuts” ( BEAT #i{ &t
) and “Crispy Rice Chips” ( & 3K
coarse grains and dietary fibers, the products are non-fried so that they

F). In addition to adding a variety of

are nutritious and do not put any burden on the weight, which aroused
consumers’ desire to purchase.
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REVENUE (continued)

Dairy products and beverages

Revenue from the dairy products and beverages segment for the 2021FY
amounted to RMB12,873.5 million, representing a 16.9% increase year-
on-year and a record high in its yearly revenue since listing. Double-digit
growth rates were achieved across all channels in the Chinese mainland.
Revenue from “Hot-Kid Milk” ( FE{F4-4]3 ), which accounted for over 90% of
the revenue from the dairy products and beverages segment, recorded a
year-on-year growth rate of 18.4%.

The Group enhanced emotional interaction with consumers through
dynamic and diversified digital marketing campaigns which helped to drive
sales momentum. During 2021FY, the Group launched a special campaign
featuring the “Hot-Kid Milk” IP titled “Black Hot-Kid Milk” ( FE{F4 1324t 7 ),
which involved creative activities organised on social media platforms and
offline encouraging Want Want fans to dress up in black to facilitate product
promotion.

In order to diversify the product variety under the dairy products and
beverages segment, a number of healthy and distinctive new products were
launched one after another, such as “Hot-Kid Chocolate Milk” ( BEE{F1558
41475 ) with a creamy and smooth taste and “Nut Milk” ( B2ER 4473 ) with rich
nutrition, which together contributed sales of over RMB100 million in the
2021FY. The product range of the star product in the beverages segment,
“Fruit Juice Drink Beverage” ( R %L % ), was expanded with the launch of
new flavours, including passion fruit lemon and mango pineapple, which are
popular among young consumers.

Snack foods

In the 2021FY, revenue from the snack foods segment amounted to
RMB5,397.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.6%, of which
revenue from candies and jellies, each hit a record high in its revenue
since listing. During the second half of the financial year, revenue from the
snack foods segment achieved mid-to-high single-digit growth year-on-year,
among which each of popsicles and candies sub-category reached double-
digit growth while beans, jellies and other sub-category presented mid-
single-digit growth.

In 2021FY, revenue from the candies sub-category increased by 5.1%
year-on-year, with all channels achieving year-on-year revenue growth, in
particular emerging channels which posted significant growth. In the second
half of the financial year, revenue from overseas markets realised double-
digit growth, attributable mainly to the contribution from new products and
the development of overseas markets.
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REVENUE (continued)

Snack foods (continued)

Revenue from the popsicles sub-category grew by 2.7% year-on-year in
the 2021FY. The social media marketing campaign, “Have a craving for
Dongchi” (%1 BITEI R4 1Z ), generated more than 220 million views
and helped “Dongchi” ( % ) to exceed annual sales of RMB200 million.
Driven by the strong sales performance of the new products of “Dongchi”,
the emerging channels achieved rapid revenue growth while the modern
channels also achieved high single-digit growth.

In the 2021FY, a number of new products were launched in the snack foods
segment through product innovation and upgrade: “fruit-flavored aerated
gummies” (KR FERKEHE ) and “Hot-Kid Super QQ” ( FE{Fi# QQ) with
unique chewing texture and real fruit juice; “YA-MI Sandwich Bun” (YA-MI
B ) which enriched the range of products offered by the Group; and
“Jelly Jelly”, a new jelly product with unique packaging and “low-sugar, low-
calorie and with collagen peptides” features, which is popular among female
consumers.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales of the Group for the 2021FY amounted to RMB13,237.5
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.2% and the costs of
certain key raw materials, such as palm oil, tinplate and paper increased by
double digits and whole milk powder (in US dollar term) increased by a near
double-digit year-on-year.

Since the beginning of the 2022FY, the exchange rate of RMB against USD
and some raw materials costs have experienced significant fluctuations
under the impact of the external macro-environment. In recent years, the
Group has optimised its cost management by optimising its production
layout and production process flow and promoting automation. Meanwhile,
the Group will continue to monitor and assess the extent of impact of related
systematic risks.
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GROSS PROFIT

Suffered from the increase in cost of certain raw materials in the 2021FY
as compared with those of the previous year, the gross profit margin of the
Group for the 2021FY decreased by 3.4 percentage points to 44.8%. As the
increase in sales helped to relieve some of the cost pressure, gross profit
increased by 1.3% year-on-year, and reached RMB10,747.4 million.

The Group continued to adopt a variety of methods, including optimisation
of its product mix by introducing new products with special features and
promoting lean production management to alleviate the cost pressure
brought by rising prices of raw materials. The Group will also pay close
attention to the potential adverse impact from cost increases in 2022FY
(financial year ending 31 March 2023), rationalise the supply chain efficiency
and optimise the product mix in order to ensure the operational capability of
the Group.

Rice crackers

The gross profit margin of the rice crackers segment was 41.4% for the
2021FY, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.7 percentage points,
due mainly to the significant increase in the cost of raw materials such as
palm oil. The Group will continue to optimise the product structure and
launch new products with higher margin to manage the profitability of the
products at a reasonable level.

Dairy products and beverages

The gross profit margin of the dairy products and beverages segment was
46.7% for the 2021FY, representing a decrease of 2.9 percentage points
year-on-year, due mainly to the increase in the cost of certain raw materials
such as tinplate and whole milk powder. Optimisation of production
processes and diversification of channels will help the segment maintain a
healthy profitability.

Snack foods

The gross profit margin of the snack foods segment was 44.2% for the
2021FY, representing a decrease of 3.5 percentage points as compared
with that of the same period in the previous year, due mainly to a larger
increase in the cost of some raw materials such as paper and plastic
pellets. The Group will continue to promote product upgrade, introduce new
products with high gross profit margin and improve the product price range
to maintain a healthy profitability of the segment.
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DISTRIBUTION COSTS

The distribution costs for the 2021FY increased by RMB367.6 million as
compared with those of the 2020FY to RMB3,133.2 million, representing
an increase of 13.3% year-on-year. Distribution costs as a percentage
of revenue increased by 0.5 percentage point year-on-year to 13.1%. Of
these, staff costs as a percentage of revenue was 4.5%, remaining at the
same level of the 2020FY. Transportation expense to revenue ratio was
4.1%, representing an increase of 0.1 percentage point as compared with
that of the 2020FY. Advertising and promotion expenses as a percentage of
revenue were 2.9%, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.4 percentage
point.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses for the 2021FY increased by RMB21.30 million to
RMB2,734.7 million, representing an increase of 0.8% as compared with
those of the 2020FY. Administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue
were 11.4%, representing a decrease of 0.9 percentage point as compared
with that of the 2020FY, due mainly to the improved operational leverage as
a result of revenue growth.

OPERATING PROFIT

Despite the revenue growth of 9.0% year-on-year, the operating profit of
the Group for the 2021FY decreased by 4.9% year-on-year to RMB5,456.8
million with an operating profit margin of 22.8% due to the decrease in gross
profit margin of 3.4 percentage points as a result of the significant increase
in raw material prices.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s income tax expense for the 2021FY amounted to RMB1,545.3
million, and the income tax rate was 26.9% which decreased by 3.9
percentage points as compared with that for the 2020FY, due mainly to the
relative high income tax rate for the 2020FY as a result of the increase in
the provision for dividend withholding tax in the 2020FY.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the 2021FY
increased by 1.1% as compared with that of the 2020FY and reached
RMB4,202.7 million. The margin of profit attributable to equity holders
decreased by 1.4 percentage points to 17.5% due to the decrease in the
gross profit margin of 3.4 percentage points as compared with that of the
previous year.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and borrowings

As at 31 March 2022, the net cash of the Group (cash and bank deposits
(including long-term bank deposits) net of borrowings) amounted to
RMB10,100.6 million, representing an increase of RMB1,002.6 million
as compared with that as at 31 March 2021 (RMB9,098.0 million). This
was due mainly to the net cash generated from operating activities during
the financial year amounted to RMB3,910.5 million. The Group still has
sufficient cash reserves after payment of dividends and share repurchases
in 2021FY, totaling RMB2,580.5 million (2021FY: RMB1,761.0 million for
dividends and RMB819.5 million for share repurchases).

We finance our operations and capital expenditure primarily by cash
flows generated from internal operations as well as banking facilities
provided by our principal bankers. As at 31 March 2022, our cash
and bank deposits balances (including long-term bank deposits of
RMB5,737.0 million) amounted to RMB17,002.8 million (in which RMB
accounted for approximately 85.1%, being approximately RMB14,469.0
million), representing a decrease of RMB1,928.3 million as compared
with RMB18,931.1 million as at 31 March 2021. It was due mainly to the
repayment of USD denominated bank borrowings with our internal source
of funds, accordingly, bank borrowings balance decreased by RMB2,930.9
million.

As at 31 March 2022, our total borrowings amounted to RMB6,902.2
million, representing a decrease of RMB2,930.9 million as compared with
the balance as at 31 March 2021 (RMB9,833.1 million), due mainly to the
repayment of USD denominated borrowings by our overseas subsidiaries.
Among which, short-term borrowings (including the Bonds (as defined
below)) amounted to RMB3,355.9 million, representing an increase of
RMB15.89 million as compared with those as at 31 March 2021 (RMB3,340.0
million); and long-term borrowings amounted to RMB3,546.4 million,
representing a decrease of RMB2,946.8 million as compared with those
as at 31 March 2021 (RMB6,493.2 million, including the Bonds (as defined
below)).

In April 2017, the Group issued 5-year term guaranteed bonds with a face
value of US$500 million and a coupon rate of 2.875% (the “Bonds”). As at
31 March 2022, the balance of the Bonds payable amounted to US$499.9
million (31 March 2021: US$498.1 million). The Bonds were subsequently
repaid in full upon maturity in April 2022.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)

Cash and borrowings (continued)

The Group’s net gearing ratio (total borrowings net of cash and bank
deposits (including long-term bank deposits) as a ratio of total equity
(excluding non-controlling interests)) as at 31 March 2022 was -0.61 time
(31 March 2021: -0.61 time). At present, the Group maintains sufficient
cash and available banking facilities for its working capital requirements and
for capitalising on any potential investment opportunities in the future. The
management will from time to time make prudent financial arrangements
and decisions to address changes in the domestic and international financial
environment.

Cash flow

A net cash inflow of RMB3,910.5 million was generated from operating
activities, consisting mainly of profit before income tax of RMB5,734.4
million. Cash outflow for financing activities was RMB5,342.4 million, among
which net outflow of borrowings amounted to RMB2,642.6 million (mainly
for repayment of USD denominated borrowings of approximately RMB2,000
million), cash outflow for dividend payment of RMB1,761.0 million and cash
outflow for share repurchases of RMB819.5 million. Net cash outflow for
investing activities was RMB3,432.9 million, mainly due to the placement of
RMB3,097.0 million to bank deposits with a term of more than three months.
As a result, the cash and cash equivalents as of 31 March 2022 amounted
to RMB11,055.8 million, which, together with bank deposits with a term of
more than three months of RMB5,947.0 million, amounted to RMB17,002.8
million.

Capital expenditure

For the 2021FY, our capital expenditure amounted to RMB460.5 million
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB317.3 million). We invested
approximately RMB131.4 million, RMB154.3 million and RMB82.85 million
on the expansion of production plants and equipment for the three key
product segments (rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, and snack
foods segments), mainly for the construction of new plant and equipment
in Vietnam and upgrade of some of the old plant and production facilities to
prepare for the Group’s future growth. The remaining capital expenditure
was made mainly for the purpose of adding facilities for information
technology, packaging and others.

The above capital expenditure was financed mainly by our internally
generated cash flows and banking facilities.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued)

Inventory analysis

Our inventory consists primarily of finished goods, goods in transit, and work
in progress for rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack foods
and other products, as well as raw materials and packaging materials.

The following table sets forth the number of our inventory turnover days for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March 2021:

For the year ended
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For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

BZE 2022 F HZE 2021 F
3A3M BLEE 331 HILEEE
Inventory turnover days FEAE X 79 85

As at 31 March 2022, inventory amounted to RMB3,226.2 million,
representing an increase of RMB697.4 million as compared with
RMB2,528.8 million as at 31 March 2021. In response to the Group’s sales
growth, the Group increased the level of inventory. Owing to the continued
refinement of supply chain efficiency management, inventory turnover days
reduced by 6 days as compared with that for the previous year.

Trade receivables

Our trade receivables represent the receivables from our credit sales to
customers. The terms of credit granted to our customers are usually 60 to
90 days. Our sales to most of the customers in China are conducted on a
cash-on-delivery basis. We only grant credit to customers in our modern
distribution channels and certain emerging channels, which then on-sell our
products to end-consumers of the Group.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued) MENERBEERMH @
Trade receivables (continued) =EY AENC )

The following table sets forth the number of our trade receivables turnover TRIRTEHZE2022F3 431 BIEEFEE
days for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March HEZ 2021 F3 A 31 HIEFEXRERRN

2021: EY L ENCEPS
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZE 2022 F BZE 2021 F
AN HLEE A3 BLEFE
Trade receivable turnover days B S5 RBRWFHAEXE 15 15
Trade payables EZEAR

Our trade payables mainly relate to the purchase of raw materials on credit AEENEZENREEHREEMRE

from our suppliers with credit terms generally between 30 days and 60 days o RMWHERSTHNEERGE—RE

after receipt of goods and invoices. IOREG0ORRWBEYMREZZAH
EiE) o

The following table sets forth the number of our trade payables turnover TRIRTEHE2022F3 831 HIEFE
days for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March HEZ2021F3 31 HIEFEAXAERY

2021: EZRNHBERE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZE 2022 F BZE 2021 F
3A31BIEEE 3A3M HILEEE
Trade payables turnover days B 5 EARAEXE 28 33
Pledge of assets BEEEH
As at 31 March 2022, none of the assets of the Group was pledged. 20223831 B AEBLEIMFME
BEIEA -
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

For the 2021FY, our average number of employees was approximately
41,265, representing an increase of 72 employees as compared with the
average number of employees for the year ended 31 March 2021. Our
total remuneration expenses for the 2021FY amounted to RMB4,403.4
million. The remuneration package of our employees includes fixed salary,
commissions and allowances (where applicable), and performance-based
year-end bonuses having regard to the performance of the Group and that
of the individual.

Our Group always concerns about and has invested a significant amount of
resources in continuing education and training programs for our employees.
Training programs, both external and internal, are also provided to relevant
staff as and when required to constantly improve their professional
knowledge and skills.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The presentation currency of the Group is RMB, but the Company’s
functional currency is still USD. More than 90% of our operating activities
are conducted in the Chinese mainland. Our Chinese mainland subsidiaries’
functional currency is RMB. The Group’s foreign exchange risks arise mainly
from procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas, overseas
dividend payments, and certain recognised assets or liabilities.

As procurement of raw materials and equipment from overseas and USD
denominated borrowings of the Group are mainly recognised in the financial
statements of the subsidiaries of the Group whose functional currency is
USD, the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risks are minimal
and the relevant risk exposure after offsetting is not significant. As such,
RMB does not have a significant impact on exchange gains and losses
presented on the “Other gains — net” section of the consolidated income
statement. During the 2021FY, the Group did not hedge against its foreign
exchange risks.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.10
cents per share for the 2021FY, amounting to approximately US$250
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1,692 million). In addition,
taking into account the actual financial condition of the Group, the Board
recommended the payment of a special dividend of US2.94 cents per share
for the 2021FY, amounting to approximately US$350 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,369 million). The above proposed final dividend and
special dividend would amount to approximately US$600 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB4,061 million) in total. In January 2022, the Company
paid an interim dividend of US0.83 cent per share for the 2021FY, amounted
to approximately US$99 million (equivalent to approximately RMB630
million). Total dividends for the 2021FY would be US5.87 cents per share,
amounting to approximately US$699 million, representing an increase of
174% as compared to the total dividend of US2.11 cents per share for the
2020FY, amounting to approximately US$255 million. Together with an
amount of approximately US$127 million (equivalent to RMB819 million) for
share repurchases in the 2021FY, the Group would have returned a total
of approximately US$826 million (equivalent to approximately RMB5,510
million) to its shareholders, representing an increase of 67% as compared
to the amount of approximately US$495 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,311 million) for dividends and share repurchases in the 2020FY, and
representing approximately 131% of the profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the 2021FY.
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Our Company, together with its subsidiaries, are committed to maintaining
and upholding high standards of corporate governance practices and
procedures. We recognise the value and importance of achieving high
corporate governance standards to promote corporate transparency and
accountability and to enhance shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

We had, throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (with amendments
that came into effect on 1 January 2022) (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviations from
the code provisions A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as C.2.1 since 1
January 2022) and A.4.1 (which was removed on 1 January 2022) for the
reasons explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance practices
with reference to the latest developments in corporate governance. The
key corporate governance principles and practices of our Company are
summarised below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

We have adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding directors’ securities transactions. Formal written notices,
together with a copy of the Model Code, are sent to our directors (“Directors”)
prior to the commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding
the publication date of our interim results and 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of our annual results, as a reminder that
Directors must not deal in any securities of the Company during those
periods up to and including the date of publication of the results. Having
made specific enquiries with our Directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2022.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roles of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of our
Group and is also collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs. Key matters and decisions
which are reserved for the Board include those relating to:

. the objectives, policies, business plans and strategic directions of our
Group;

. overseeing and evaluating the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

. the approval of our Group’s annual operating and capital expenditure
budgets, interim and annual financial results and the publication
thereof, major financial arrangements and investment proposals,
material contracts and transactions, notifiable transactions, non-
exempt connected transactions/continuing connected transactions,
declarations of dividend, Directors’ appointment or re-election following
the recommendations by the Nomination Committee and other matters
which need to be dealt with by the Board;

. establishing and maintaining the risk management and internal control
systems and ensuring their effectiveness;

. governance and oversight of environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) matters, as well as assessment and management of material
environmental and social risks; and

. ensuring our Group has in place adequate accounting systems and
appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting and financial
reporting functions.

Our management team, which possesses extensive experience and industry
knowledge, is led by the executive Directors and has been delegated by the
Board with the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management
and implementation of strategies approved by the Board in relation to the
business and operations of our Group. In addition, the Board has also
delegated certain specific responsibilities to the various Board committees,
namely, the audit and risk management committee (the “Audit and Risk
Management Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the strategy committee (the “Strategy Committee”). Each of the Board
committees operates in accordance with its respective terms of reference
which clearly defines its respective duties and authorities. Details of these
committees are set out further on pages 58 to 68 in this Annual Report.

In order to facilitate and assist the Board in promoting and managing ESG
matters of the Group, such as relevant strategies and policies, initiatives,
performance and reporting, the ESG Committee was established in August
2020 with the authorities and responsibilities as stated in its terms of
reference.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Corporate governance functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as specified in the code provision D.3.1 (which has been re-
numbered as A.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code, including:

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and the Directors of the
Company; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out
in the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2022, the Board consisted of 15 Directors, comprising 7
executive Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and 5 independent non-
executive Directors, as below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo

Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella

Want Want China Holdings Limited

EEY (B

EERREE
EXEHEERECLEERTAZTANE
XEH#ED.3. 1% (H2022F 1 A1 RE EH R

RAA21)NEXER

i BiE
HERBNADNTNEEERIRR
B
RAREREEREREEASNE
IR BEEEERRE

B RERAQNREETEAERES
BEFENBRERER

HE  BEREEARTEIRES
HIRSFEIRESHEFM@AE) s &

BAARRBAEBTFEEERTRREN
SRR HIERRAELEERRER
B o

BEEGZAK
M2022F3A31H  EEEHISRESA
B BRETERYITES  3BHHTESERS
BELFPITES AT -
HITES

BOTRLE (FERITEAEE)
BEREE

BEREL (BFEEEER)
EKMEE (THEEHR)
R (B HHRE)
BEELE

REFELZL

FHITESE

=EYI%E (BIEE)
WEEREE

Y BELE
BUFHITES
BREEt

HRIZEE

ZEBELEE

BEEEE

STAIRZ =



AN -3~ N2\ H
TEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

F

FEH I ERERAT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship amongst them (if
any) are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
in this Annual Report. In addition, an updated list of Directors of the
Company with their roles and functions is available on our website and that
of the HK Stock Exchange.

We have arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance for
our Directors and officers.

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors

The appointment of a new Director is made by shareholders at a general
meeting or by the Board upon recommendation by the Nomination
Committee. We have a Director Nomination Policy in place which sets
out the process and criteria for evaluating, selecting and recommending
candidates to the Board for nomination and appointment. In identifying and
selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination Committee
would consider the candidate’s character, integrity, qualifications,
experience, independence and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement our corporate strategy with due regard to the benefits of
diversity of the Board before putting forward a recommendation to the Board,
including his/her role and function, and Board committee membership. The
Board would consider the recommendation and decide on the appointment.

The Company has entered into formal letters of appointment with all
Directors setting out their duties and major terms and conditions of their
appointments.

According to the code provision A.4.1 (which was removed on 1 January 2022)
of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. Our Company deviated from this provision because
our non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors have not
been appointed for a specific term. However, the articles of association of our
Company (the “Articles of Association”) provide that all our Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and at each
annual general meeting, one-third of our Directors for the time being or, if
the number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation and be eligible for re-
election. As such, the Board considered that sufficient measures had been in
place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in this aspect
provides sufficient protection for the interests of shareholders to a standard
commensurate with that of the CG Code in force for the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors (continued)

The Articles of Association also provide that any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the Company’s next general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Directors who shall retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 23 August 2022 (the “2022 AGM”)
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election are set out on page 94 in
this Annual Report.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

We have complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules in relation
to the appointment of a sufficient number of independent non-executive
Directors and the appointment of at least one independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Each independent non-executive Director is neither interested in the securities
or business of the Company nor connected with any Director, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company.
We have also received a written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director confirming his/her independence in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and consideration was also given to all independent
non-executive Directors who have served on the Board for more than nine
years. We therefore consider each of them to be independent.

Dr. Pei Kerwei, our independent non-executive director, has served on the
Board for more than 9 years since November 2007. The Board is satisfied
that Dr. Pei has the required integrity, attributes, profound knowledge and
experience, professional accounting qualification and professionalism to
continue to fulfill the roles of independent non-executive Director. In addition,
he is neither interested in the securities or business of the Company
nor connected with any Director, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Dr. Pei has also demonstrated
his ability to provide an independent view to the Company’s matters and
valuable contributions to the Company during his term of office. Taking into
consideration of the above, the Board is of the view that Dr. Pei remains
independent notwithstanding the length of period of his service. The Board
believes that he will continue to contribute to the Company and the Board
committees he serves with his extensive experience in accountancy and the
insights gained from his professor career as well as the positions held with
various listed companies and multinational enterprises, and his continued
service is also beneficial to the diversity of the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the names of
the Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly on a quarterly basis with additional meetings
being convened as and when necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, other than written resolutions passed
by all the Directors, five Board meetings were held mainly to:

. review and discuss the Group’s strategies and business development
plans;

. review and monitor the Group’s operating and financial performance;
. review the progress of overseas market development plan;

. consider and approve major investment proposals and financing
arrangements;

. receive the reports from the Board Committees and the ESG
Committee;

. consider and approve the appointment of the new independent non-
executive Director and change of composition of Board Committees;

. approve the Director fee for the new Director and the changes in
Directors’ remuneration;

. overseeing the risk management and internal control systems and
ensuring their effectiveness;

. approve, with recommendation from the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, the appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s
external auditor followed the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers at
the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 17 August 2021
(“2021 AGM”) and propose the same for shareholders’ approval at that
meeting;
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings (continued)

. consider and approve connected transactions and non-exempt
continuing connected transactions;

. review and approve the financial results for the year ended 31 March
2021 and for the six months ended 30 September 2021 and the
publication thereof;

. declare the payment of interim dividend and to make recommendation
of the final dividend for shareholders’ approval at the 2021 AGM;

. review and approve the disclosures in the interim and annual reports
and the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code;

. approve the change of the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong; and

. review and assess the Company’s position and necessary actions
required in regard to recent amendments to the Listing Rules on
(a) publication of “Company Information Sheet”; (b) amendment
of constitutional documents to provide for “Core Standards” of
shareholder protection; and (c) amendments to the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company convened an annual
general meeting.

EFe @

EEgE2 @

. ZERMEBERZ R TEEARSE
RERS

. ERRIESE2021E3831HIEE
EREZE2021F98308LEAER 2
B RSB N H B

+  ERTHREREZBRERETRR
R2021FRRBERS LHUE

© RERIERQFTETEWHRARE
EEETAZBRR D BIE R
T FRURERSER - 4 ERERRE
W2 E

- HUEARDRBEBERERME 2
2E R

« BRERMMERQ RN LHRAME
AEBEQ@EHATNEREREK S (b)E
AERNMAURERZENRRRE
(KT IR (c) e ERFRERTE
FHEOERRERNNTE

REZE2022F3831BLLFE » A2 T B
T—XBRREFKRE -



CRERRE

Corporate Governance Report

F &/

53

P BInE ERAERAH Want Want China Holdings Limited

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’’Committee members’ attendance

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board

committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year ended 31

March 2022 is set out in the following table.
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Meetings attended/held®
e Va-£ 1 Sipe U
Audit and Risk
Remuneration Management Nomination Strategy General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting®
EURER

Name of Directors EENR E5g §MzEE EEZEE REZEE XMEEE RRAED
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng® BOTREED 414019) N/A N/A N/A 17 1N
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BARRE 414019 44 N/A 33 1N 1N
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERRAE 41406) N/A N/A N/A i 1M
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung B EE 41406) N/A N/A N/A 17 1N
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REXRE 41406) N/A N/A N/A 17 1M
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui CL) Y 414089 N/A N/A N/A 1 10
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REEat 505 NIA N/A NA 1N 11
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BRI %E 5/5 NIA NIA NIA 1" 1"
Mr. Maki Haruo eSS v 4140 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1N
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BYSEE 4j400 NIA NIA NIA NIA 17
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUHZ17EZ
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock® SRBALY 10 33 22 33 NIA 10
Dr. Pei Kerwei® AREELo 505 44 44 33 1N N
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen® HRLCKEO 5/5 4/4 4/4 33 17 1N
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming® ZEBEES 4/5 4/4 4/4 33 i 1N
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BEhRBEE 5/5 414 404 33 n i
Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella™ IfRZ L 414 22 33 1M 17 1N
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Directors’’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)
Notes:

M

)

(©)

4)

®)

(6)

)

(©)

©

The denominator number represents the maximum number of meetings
held during the period in which the individual was a Board member or Board

committee member (as the case may be). “N/A” denotes not applicable.

The 2021 AGM held on 17 August 2021.

Chairman of the Board and Strategy Committee.

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock ceased to be an independent non-executive Director,
the chairmen of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company with effect from the conclusion of the 2021 AGM.

Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming and Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen, independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, were appointed as the chairmen of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company, respectively, with effect from the conclusion of the 2021 AGM.

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategy
Committee of the Company, with effect from 1 July 2021.

Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and the Articles
of Association, those Directors did not attend the Board meeting held on 8
October 2021 that was specifically called to consider a connected transaction
as each of them was considered to have an interest in the transaction
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement. Accordingly, each of them did not

vote on the relevant Board resolutions approving the transaction.

Pursuant to the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association, those Directors were considered to have an interest in the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the renewed framework agreement
regarding “Water God” (7kK3#)” antiseptic and sanitising products. For this
reason, each of them did not count into the quorum and was excused when the
transactions were discussed at the relevant Board meeting, and had abstained

from voting on the relevant Board resolutions approving the transactions.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of the other Directors in March

2022.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’/Committee members’ attendance (continued)

The Board, having considered the directorships and major commitments of
each Director and the attendance rate of each Director at Board meetings
and applicable Board committee meetings, is satisfied with the level of time
commitment given by each Director in fulfilling his/her responsibilities as a
director during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Board Proceedings
Regular Board meetings for each year are generally scheduled in advance
to give Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the
meetings. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice would be given.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to lead the Board to ensure
that the Board operates effectively and fully performs its responsibilities. All
Directors were encouraged to actively participate in the discussion at Board
meetings, and the Chairman has allowed sufficient time for discussion of
issues to ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect the consensus of the
Board.

The Chairman has ensured that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has delegated
the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the
company secretary. The agenda and the accompanying Board papers are
generally circulated to all Directors at least three days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and as soon as practicable for ad hoc
Board meetings). Directors are invited to include any matters which they
believe to be appropriate in the agenda of regular Board meetings and
they have full and direct access to the advice and services of the company
secretary whenever necessary. The Chairman has also ensured that all the
Directors are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings,
and that all the Directors would receive adequate information, which is
complete and reliable, in a timely manner.

The Chairman is also responsible for promoting a culture of openness and
debate, facilitating the effective contribution of the non-executive Directors
in particular and ensuring constructive relations between the executive and
the non-executive Directors. The Chairman also has to ensure at least one
meeting is held with the independent non-executive Directors each year
without the presence of other Directors.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

Minutes of the Board and Board Committee meetings were recorded in
sufficient detail regarding matters considered by the Board and Board
Committees and decisions reached at the meetings. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and Board committee meetings are sent to
Directors for their comments before being tabled at the following Board
meetings or Board committee meetings for approval. Minutes of all
Board meetings and meetings of Board committees are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
following reasonable notice made by any Director.

If a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be discussed
in a Board meeting instead of being dealt with by way of circulation of
written resolution and the interested Director will abstain from voting on
the relevant Board resolutions in which he/she or any of his/her close
associates have a material interest and that he/she will not be counted
in the quorum present at the Board meeting. Independent non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material interests
in the transaction should be present at such Board meeting.

Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director, on appointment, will attend an induction
training program and receive a memorandum on the principal continuing
obligations and responsibilities to which the Company and its Directors
are subject under the Listing Rules and other laws and regulations.

Directors are provided with monthly updates on the Group’s performance
and reading materials on the updates on the latest developments and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time in order to enable the Directors
to discharge their duties. Directors may, where necessary, seek
independent professional advice at our Company’s expense.

Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Directors
are also invited to view the e-training and read related guidance
materials published by the HK Stock Exchange from time to time.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEE B
Training for Directors (continued) BB @#®E)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, all Directors attended the training REE2022%63831B L EEHAR » 282
session provided by the Company’s external legal advisers on the recent EEHAEERAD TS L ERER IR
amendments to the Listing Rules that came into effect on 1 January 2022. BREE2022F1B1 BB MR A8
Directors were also provided with materials on anti-corruption and corruption BT 223052 o Lo R BESM
prevention such as the “Anti-corruption Programme — A Guide for Listed BUHNERHBEHEBEN i 588
Companies” issued by the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against BAEBHENI LT LATINERSGERE

Corruption. o
A summary of the training received by our Directors during the year ended EENEE2022F3831H L EEFIESH
31 March 2022 is as follows: EHMEMT :
Types of training (Note)
Name of Directors EEME EFNE R (M=E)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EHTIA%E A B
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung BB A, B
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia EREREE A B
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BXRMEE A B
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REXRE A B
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui ZEREEE A B
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REELT A, B
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun BEEIILEE A B
Mr. Maki Haruo HEHERTE A B
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien BB E A, B
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHITEE
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock ERBLE
(retired upon the conclusion of 2021 AGM) (R2021 F IR FRBF KRG HERERE) A B
Dr. Pei Kerwei AREEt A B
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen WRIZFE A B
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming ZEPEE A B
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BERBELE A B
Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King (appointed on 1 July 2021) STARERZ £ (R2021F7 81 BEZRE) A, B, C
Notes: {5
A.  Reading materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities and A HEEESBERSENZHIREERNSE
regulatory updates. BEARIMEL o
B.  Attending or giving talks at briefings/in-house trainings/seminars/conferences/ B. WHEH¥K. EZRHE  0¥XE% R
forums or viewing e-training relevant to the business, directors’ duties, B -HERER  UWKERRERERS
corporate governance, ESG, financial reporting and risk management matters. BHERE AIBEI e gE S
RERRZESERRENRBER LT
e

C. Induction training C. FRAEEZE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as C.2.1 since 1
January 2022) provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same person.
Our Company deviates from this provision because Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng
performs both the roles of chairman and chief executive. Mr. Tsai is the
founder of our Group and has over 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. Given the current stage of development of our Group,
the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
our Company with strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the
implementation and execution of our Group’s business strategies. We shall
nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, the Audit and Risk Management Committee (formerly known as
Audit Committee), the Nomination Committee and the Strategy Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of our Company. These
committees are established with written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on our website
and the website of the HK Stock Exchange. The composition of these
committees are set out on pages 2 to 3 of this Annual Report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 February 2008.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
set out in its terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee is established
primarily for the purpose of ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate
high quality personnel who are essential to the success of our Group and
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management.

As at 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee shall meet
at least once a year. The Remuneration Committee met four times during
the year ended 31 March 2022. The attendance record of the members at
the Remuneration Committee meeting during such period is shown on page
53 of this Annual Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2022:

. made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration package of
the new independent non-executive Director;

. reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management and proposed relevant recommendations to the Board;
and

. considered and recommended on the payment of discretionary
performance bonus for Directors and senior management.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and the senior
management consists of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive.

The fixed component comprises mainly salary, retirement benefit scheme
contributions and other allowances. Besides, an individual who serves on
the Board as an executive Director is also entitled to receive a fixed director
fee. The fixed component is determined with reference to individual's
experience and qualifications, remuneration benchmark in the same industry
or industry with similar market capitalisation and the prevailing market
conditions.

The variable incentive comprises discretionary bonus whose amount
is determined by the Board based on the Group’s and individual work
performance in the following ways:

According to the terms of the service contract entered into between Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng (our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive Director and
the chairman of our Strategy Committee) and the Company, the payment of
discretionary bonus is at the absolute discretion of the Board and depends
on a range of factors including but not limited to the performance of the
Group, individual's performance, and the remuneration policy which may be
proposed by the Board from time to time. If the consolidated profits of the
Group before deductions for taxes but after deductions of the non-controlling
interests achieve a certain minimum level and if the Board exercises its
discretion to award such bonus, the Board may determine, at its discretion,
an amount which is no less than the amount which is calculated having
regard to a predetermined formula or as may be determined otherwise by
the Board and agreed by Mr. Tsai provided that the amount shall not be
greater than the amount calculated according to the aforesaid formula.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The discretionary bonus for other executive Directors and the senior
management depends upon the portion of the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year being allocated at a progressive rate to a
bonus pool according to the level of changes in the Group’s consolidated
profits after taxation for the year over the previous year. The distribution
of the bonus pool for each department and individual depends upon the
performance of their respective department and the individual concerned.
We took a 360-degree performance evaluation on both qualitative and
quantitative key performance indicators which mainly include financial
and operational indicators as well as indicators which measure the
satisfaction level in terms of the daily coordination and cooperation between
departments which work closely with each others.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 (re-numbered as E.1.5 since 1
January 2022) of the CG Code, the remuneration of the members of the
senior management (whose names appear in the “Director and Senior
Management” section) by band for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out
below:

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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RIELEESTRIEIEB.1.51% (82022
F1A1AEEHFERAEANSL)  REZE
2022F3A31H LFERFMAERE D 25
REBAE (BIIEERSREBEAE]—
B FEE ST

Number of
individuals
In the band of A RN F AE
RMB823,001 (HK$1,000,001) AE#823,0017t (1,000,001 7T)
to RMB1,646,000 (HK$2,000,000) Z AK%1,646,0007T (2,000,000 7T) 4
RMB1,646,001 (HK$2,000,001) A K#1,646,0017T (2,000,001 7T)
to RMB2,469,000 (HK$3,000,000) Z ARK%2,469,0007T (3,000,000 7T) 3
RMB2,469,001 (HK$3,000,001) AK#2,469,001 7T (3,000,001 7T)
to RMB3,292,000 (HK$4,000,000) Z AK#3,292,0007T (4,000,0005%8 7T) 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in note 34 and note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 February 2008 and was
renamed Audit and Risk Management Committee on 1 December 2018.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee are set out in its terms of reference. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is established primarily for the purposes of
overseeing and reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and evaluating internal controls and auditing
processes.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Audit and Risk Management Committee
comprised five independent non-executive Directors and was chaired by an
independent non-executive Director.

According to its terms of reference, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2022 with
the external auditors present at three meetings. The attendance record
of the members at the Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings
during such period is shown on page 53 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee during the year ended 31 March 2022:

. reviewed and considered various risk and management assessment
optimisation projects and internal controls optimisation projects;

. reviewed the recent updates and development of accounting and
financial reporting standards and assessed their impacts on our
Group;

. considered the major accounting and auditing matters raised by
external auditors and management’s responses;

. discussed with the existing auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit prior to the commencement of the audit for the year ended 31
March 2022;

. reviewed the financial results, results announcements and financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2021 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2021 with the management and external
auditors, and recommended them to the Board for approval;

. reviewed external auditors’ independence and approved the scope
and nature of audit services and the audit fee;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

. reviewed quarterly internal audit reports in respect of the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems and procedures
of the Group, whistle-blowing reports and the internal audit plans
for the year ended 31 March 2022, prepared by our internal audit
department and reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

. reviewed the risk register and discussed with internal audit department
and respective risk owners the major identified risks, associated
risk factors, risk levels, related key risk indicators and early warning
system, risk assessment results and corresponding corrective
measures;

. discussed with the external auditor on our Group’s financial reporting
functions, in particular on the adequacy of resources of our Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, qualifications and
experience of our staff and their training programs;

. reviewed and approved the non-exempt connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions entered into by our Group during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and conducted an annual review of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions of our Group; and

. considered the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers and
evaluated and recommended the appointment of Ernst & Young
as the external auditors of the Company following the retirement of
PricewaterhouseCoopers at the conclusion of the 2021 AGM.

Auditor's Remuneration

The fees charged by Ernst & Young, the external auditor of the Company,
in respect of the audit and non-audit services rendered to the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to RMB4,150,000 and nil,
respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 18 February 2008. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its terms of reference. The Nomination Committee is established primarily
for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board and making recommendations to the Board on nominations and
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee comprised five
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director and was
chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with effect from August 2013.

The Board reviewed and adopted the revised Board Diversity Policy
effective from 1 December 2018 in order to align with the amendments to
the Listing Rules and CG Code which came into effect on 1 January 2019.

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board. In considering the composition of the Board, the Board is of
the view that diversity can be considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, educational and cultural background, skills, industry knowledge
and reputation, gender, ethnicity, language skills and length of service. The
above perspectives will be taken into account in determining the optimal
composition of the Board and where possible, should be balanced among
one another as appropriate. Appointments to the Board will be made based
on merits and the contributions that the individual is expected to bring to the
Board, with due regard to the benefits of diversity in the Board.

In terms of gender diversity, the Board appointed one more female Director
during the year and now includes two female Directors as at 31 March 2022.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy on an ongoing basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) effective from 1 December 2018.

The Director Nomination Policy aims to:

. set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
Directors of the Company;

. ensure that the Board of the Company has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company;
and

. ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the following
criteria should be considered by the Nomination Committee or the Board;

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board;

. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

. Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;

. Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
. Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s

business and succession plan and where applicable, may be adopted

and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination Committee from

time to time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

The process in the nomination and appointment of Directors of the Company

is briefly described as below;

(a) Selection and Appointment of New Director

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee should, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee should rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

For any person nominated by a shareholder for election as a
Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should

make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed election

of Directors at the general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should review the
overall contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and performance on
the Board;

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should also review
and determine whether the retiring Director continues to meet
the criteria as set out above;

(iii)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as a
Director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate will
be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the Director
Nomination Policy and where appropriate, makes recommendations on
changes to this Policy to the Board for consideration and approval.

According to its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee shall meet at
least twice a year. The Nomination Committee held three meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2022. The attendance record of the members at
the Nomination Committee meetings during such period is shown on page
53 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2022:

. considered and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and proposed her re-election in the
next general meeting immediately following her appointment (i.e. 2021
AGM) and made adequate disclosure on the nomination process in
the circular of the relevant general meeting;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

. made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Lee
Kwok Ming and Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen, both being independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, as the chairmen of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee and Remuneration Committee
respectively with effect from the conclusion of 2021 AGM;

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendation to the Board on the Directors who should retire by
rotation and make themselves available for re-election at the 2021
AGM, pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association;

. assessed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors, consideration was given to Directors who have served on
the Board for more than nine years;

. reviewed non-executive Directors’ time commitment in performing their
duties; and
. held a meeting with a new member of the senior management and

listen to his strategic thinking and future development plan of the new
business operation.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee was established on 30 June 2010. Details of the
duties and responsibilities of the Strategy Committee are set out in its terms
of reference.

The Strategy Committee is established primarily for the purpose of working
closely with the Board in formulating the medium and long-term strategic
plans of our Group for the continuous growth and sustainable competitive
advantages of our Group. It also proactively addresses issues relating to
management succession planning and overall human resources planning
and makes recommendations to improve operational efficiencies and
enhance competitiveness in order to capture market opportunities and
tackle future challenges. It will also make recommendations to the Board on
material investment and financial decisions as well as the establishment,
development and expansion of the Group’s business in all aspects.

As at 31 March 2022, the Strategy Committee comprised seven executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and five independent non-executive
Directors and was chaired by our Chairman.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Strategy Committee (continued)

According to its terms of reference, the Strategy Committee shall meet
at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Strategy
Committee held one meeting to consider strategic supplier management
strategies, theme-store operation and management strategy and human
resources strategic plan and transformation. The attendance record of the
members at the Strategy Committee meeting during the year is shown on
page 53 of this Annual Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems of the Group:

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group’s risk management and internal control structure comprises
the Board, the Audit and Risk Management Committee, the internal audit
team and the management. To ensure the integrity and effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls on an ongoing basis, such
systems closely align with the COSO framework with constant optimisation
and enhancement. Such systems are designed to achieve the following
objectives:

i providing reasonable assurance of the compliance with relevant rules
and regulations of our business operations, and safeguard of assets;

ii ensuring key risks that may impact the Group’s performance are
appropriately defined and managed; and

iii ensuring reliable financial accounting records are maintained in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
reporting requirements.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management System and its Main Features:

The Group recognises that risk management is the prime responsibility of the
management that it has to identify, assess and monitor the risks relevant to
their business operations and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations. Our internal audit team reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, and regularly
reports to the management and the Audit and Risk Management Committee
on significant risks, results of risk analysis and status of risk mitigation
measures. The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company
assists the Board in monitoring the effectiveness of risk management.

Our management team is equipped with internal control expertise to carry
out self-evaluation and assessment on the significant key risks so that
necessary measures would be taken to deal with the weak areas where
risks exist.

Our internal audit team reviews the Group’s risk management framework,
coordinates the risk identification and assessment procedures, strengthens
the communication with the management on the identified risks and impacts
to facilitate the implementation of risk mitigation measures, follows up the
progress of such measures, as well as summarising significant risks, other
risks and concerns in its quarterly report to the management and the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee discusses and reviews the risk
management and internal control systems with the internal audit team and
the management, and ensures that the Group has an effective system in
place to monitor and control the effectiveness of risk management.

Internal Control System and its Main Features:

The Group’s internal control activities are embedded in the operational
processes. The Group has clear written policies and operational procedures,
as well as the internal control system. All policies of the Group are conveyed
to the staff in a timely manner. A dedicated network platform is established
for the staff to access the Group’s policies. Regular training programs are
also provided to ensure compliance with the code of conduct by all our staff.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control System and its Main Features: (continued)

The Group has set up the whistle-blowing mechanism, such as the reporting
hotline, mailbox, and others for internal staff and interested third parties
to report any actual or suspected occurrence of improper conduct in the
Group and the report can be made on an anonymous basis. The internal
audit team independently and objectively performs specific investigation on
such reported matters, formulates an appropriate confidentiality system to
avoid any form of harassment suffered by staff or interested third parties
who reported or cooperated with the investigation and sets graded rewards
based on the investigation results.

The Group’s internal audit team participates in the formulation of major
operational policies and procedures, performs audit on the implementation
of policies and assists the management in formulating countermeasures.

The Group’s internal audit team establishes standardised audit procedures
and develops the annual audit plan. Such procedures and plan are submitted
to the Audit and Risk Management Committee for approval. Internal audit
team puts the plan into execution as approved. The management performs the
self-assessment of internal control on the processes and procedures of each
operational cycles to obtain reasonable assurance that the internal control is
effective and to take measures to address the internal control weaknesses
identified. The internal audit team also audits the self-assessment results of the
management.

Our internal audit team communicates with the management the risks and
control weaknesses identified during the course of audit and recommends
for improvement measures. The management is responsible for ensuring
that the improvement measures are being implemented within a reasonable
timeframe whereas the internal audit team will conduct a follow-up review
to ensure that the improvement measures and solutions are effectively
implemented.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee receives quarterly reports from
the internal audit department which covers the internal audit plan, material
findings during the relevant period and the progress of implementation
of improvement measures by the management in response to the audit
findings. The quarterly reports also address matters concerned by the Audit
and Risk Management Committee members and the management, the
findings of special audit on specific key risk areas and recommendations for
improvement.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Board reviews the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems in place during that full financial year on a quarterly basis. For
the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board assessed the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Company and
its subsidiaries by considering reviews performed by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee with the assistance of the management team and
internal audit team. The annual review also considered the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
Based on the assessment made by the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, management team and the internal audit team, the Board is
satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for identifying, assessing
and managing the significant risks and material internal controls (including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions) for our Group and the Board considers the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group as effective and adequate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information:

i The Company is aware of the requirement of timely disclosure of
inside information under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
Listing Rules. Inside information shall be announced by designated
persons authorised to act as spokespersons in strict accordance with
the applicable laws and enactments prevailing in Hong Kong, and with
reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued
by the Securities and Futures Commission; and

ii The Company has incorporated in its code of conduct strict prohibition
on unauthorised disclosure or use of confidential and inside
information. Furthermore, employees at certain levels and posts are
also required to sign the Agreement on Code of Ethics, Confidentiality
Obligations and Resolving Conflict of Interests.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022 and of the
financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022,
and for ensuring that such statements are prepared in accordance with the
statutory requirements and the applicable accounting standards.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Details of the reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31
March 2022 are set out on pages 113 to 117 of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company only has one class of shares. All shares are entitled to the
same voting rights and to dividends declared on a pari passu basis.

Method for convening an extraordinary general meeting

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a
recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may, in accordance with the
requirements and procedures set out in the Articles of Association of the
Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company and put forward proposals at the meeting.
The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Units 07-08, 7th Floor, FTLife Tower, No.
18 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new
resolutions at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles
of Association of the Company. Shareholders who wish to put forward a
resolution may request the Company to convene an extraordinary general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out above.

Method for nominating directors

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person, other than directors who offer
themselves for re-election, for election as a director of the Company at any
general meeting (including an annual general meeting), the shareholder
shall lodge a written notice of his/her intention to propose such person for
election as a director with the company secretary of the Company at Units
07-08, 7th Floor, FTLife Tower, No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong during a period of at least seven days commencing no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting convened
for such election and ending no later than seven days prior to the date of
such meeting. Such written notice must be accompanied by a notice in
writing signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected.
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PARTICULARS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Participation in general meetings

Each shareholder is entitled to receive notice of (in writing or by electronic
means) and attend every general meeting of the Company.

At any general meeting on a show of hands, every shareholder who is
present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative) shall have one vote, and on a poll every
shareholder who is present in person (or, in the case of a shareholder
being a corporation by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy shall
have one vote for each share registered in his/her name in the register of
members of the Company. On a poll a shareholder entitled to more than
one vote is under no obligation to cast all his/her votes in the same way.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy with the
objectives of keeping shareholders and the investor community informed as
soon as reasonably practicable of the information on the Group and keeping
them abreast of the Company’s developments and ensuring that they are
provided with relevant, balanced and clear information in a timely manner.

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
our shareholders and investors and maintains ongoing dialogues with
them through various channels, including the Company’s annual general
meetings (“AGM”), analyst presentations following the release of the interim
and annual results as well as participation in investor conferences, etc..
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

The Company’s AGM is an important platform for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of all the Board committees and other Board members endeavor
to attend the AGM of the Company and answer queries from shareholders.
Pursuant to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders and the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. The 2021 AGM was
held in Hong Kong on 17 August 2021. All Board members, including the
chairman of the Board and the chairmen of all the Board committees (or
in their absence, other members of the respective committees) and the
external auditor were available at the 2021 AGM to answer shareholders’
questions. The 2021 AGM circular containing the notice of the AGM
and other relevant information of the proposed resolutions were sent to
shareholders at least 20 business days before the 2021 AGM.

Attendance record of each individual Director at the 2021 AGM is shown on
page 53 of this Annual Report.

We maintain a website (www.want-want.com) to keep our shareholders and
the general public informed of our latest corporate news, interim and annual
results announcements, financial reports and other public announcements.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
(continued)

We always welcome shareholders’ and investors’ views and input.
Shareholders may send their enquires in writing to the Board by addressing
them to our company secretary. The contact details of our company
secretary are as follows:

Address: The Company Secretary

Want Want China Holdings Limited
Units 07-08, 7th Floor, FTLife Tower
No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 27307780

Fax: (852) 27307781

Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the general meetings
of the Company. In addition, shareholders may contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong share registrar of
the Company, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.

For enquiries from institutional investors and securities analysts, please
contact our investor relations office at:

Address: The Investor Relations Office
Want Want China Holdings Limited
Units 07-08, 7th Floor, FTLife Tower
No. 18 Sheung Yuet Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 27307780
Fax: (852) 27307781
Email: investor@want-want.com

COMPANY SECRETARY

Our company secretary, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, is a full-time employee of the
Company. For the year ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Lai confirmed that she
complied with the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

TSAI Eng-Meng, aged 65, is our Chairman, Chief Executive Officer,
executive Director and also the chairman of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai
is also a director of a number of the Group’s subsidiaries. He succeeded his
father to become the Group’s Chairman in April 1987. Mr. Tsai joined our
Group and began his career in the food and beverages industry in 1976 and
has over 40 years of experience in the industry. He was a council member of
the Standing Committee of Taiwan Confectionery, Biscuit and Floury Food
Industry Association, and the Food Development Association of Taiwan. In
June 2013, Mr. Tsai was awarded an honorary doctorate degree in business
studies from the Chinese Culture University in Taiwan in recognition of his
outstanding achievements in business operations and active contributions to
social welfare. In 2014, Mr. Tsai was included in the 2014 list of “The Best-
Performing CEOs in the World” released by Harvard Business Review. In
2018, Mr. Tsai won the honor of Meritorious Entrepreneur of the Chinese
Food Industry on the 40th Anniversary of Reform and Opening Up. Mr. Tsai
is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and Norwares Overseas Inc.
which have discloseable interests in shares of the Company under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Tsai is the father of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and Mr. Tsai Wang-
Chia and the uncle of Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.

TSAI Shao-Chung, aged 41, is our executive Director and also a member
of our Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy
Committee. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung was our non-executive Director from July
2009 to June 2019 and was re-designated as our executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2019. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is also a director of a number
of the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung joined our Group in March
2001, following his graduation from the Canadian International School in
Singapore. He held various management positions within our Group in
several areas such as logistics, human resources, information technology,
planning and operations. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is a director of IBF Financial
Holdings Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation) and was a director of Union Insurance Company (a company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) from 2007 to June 2020.
He has been a director of the Straits Exchange Foundation since March
2009. Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited
and Norwares Overseas Inc. which have discloseable interests in shares
of the Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung is the son of
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the elder brother of Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia and a cousin of
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

TSAI Wang-Chia, aged 37, is our Chief Operating Officer, executive
Director and a member of our Strategy Committee. He is also the chairman
of our ESG Committee. Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is also a director of a number of
subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia graduated from the Canadian
International School in Singapore in July 2003. He joined the Group in April
2004 and has over 15 years of experience in the food and beverage industry.
He held various management positions within our Group such as product
marketing and planning in the snack foods business unit and had also acted
as a manager in the Chairman’s office. He was appointed as the deputy
general manager of the dairy business unit in May 2008 and was promoted
to vice president of the dairy and beverages business group in 2009. He was
appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in December 2012.
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia was awarded the “Outstanding Youth Award
(Technology Innovation)” by the Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology in 2015. He is a director of Want Power Holdings Limited and
Norwares Overseas Inc. which have discloseable interests in shares of the
Company under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia is the son of Mr. Tsai
Eng-Meng, the younger brother of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and a cousin of Mr.
Cheng Wen-Hsien.

CHU Chi-Wen, aged 56, is our Chief Financial Officer, executive Director
and a member of our Strategy Committee. He is also a member of our
ESG Committee. Mr. Chu graduated from Michigan State University with a
master’s degree in economics in 1992. He also graduated with a master’'s
degree in professional accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and Shanghai National Accounting Institute. Mr. Chu is a fellow
member of CPA Australia. Mr. Chu has over 25 years of experience in
financial management. Mr. Chu was an independent non-executive director
of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (a company listed on the HK Stock
Exchange). Before joining our Group in April 1997, Mr. Chu was a financial
analyst for the Taiwan Provincial Government from 1992 to 1995 and a
finance supervisor at Delta Electronics, Inc. from 1995 to 1996. He worked
at Dialer & Business Co. Ltd from 1996 to 1997 as an assistant finance
manager.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

HUANG Yung-Sung, aged 69, is our Chief Marketing Officer, executive
Director and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Huang is also
a director of a number of subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Huang graduated
from Taiwan Minghsin Junior College of Technology with a degree in
engineering. Mr. Huang has more than 35 years of experience in sales
and marketing. He joined our Group in January 1985 and was responsible
for planning and marketing affairs. Mr. Huang was the Group’s general
manager for the East China region from 1995 to 1998, being responsible
for the Group’s operations within the region. In 1999, Mr. Huang became a
director of the Group’s international sales division, being responsible for the
Group’s international sales operation. From 2002 until his appointment as
the Group’s Chief Marketing Officer on 1 March 2015, Mr. Huang served as
the marketing director of the China region.

TSAI Ming-Hui, aged 54, is the general manager of the Group’s Southeast
Asia Development Department, executive Director and also a member
of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Tsai is mainly responsible for the Group
business development and strategy in Southeast Asia. Meanwhile, he is
also responsible for the sales management, brand promotion and market
awareness of our products in Hong Kong and Macau. He is a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tsai graduated from the
Department of Mechanical Engineering of Hsinpu Institute of Technology
and joined the Group in March 1995. He has over 20 years of experience
in snack food, beverage sales and team management. He was in a key
management role in the Group’s Taiwan sales department, Shanghai sales
management department, Central China sales region, and Hong Kong and
Macau regions, as well as the business unit general manager.

LAl Hong Yee, aged 54, is our company secretary, executive Director and
also a member of our Strategy Committee. Ms. Lai is a director of Leading
Guide Hongkong Limited and Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte. Limited,
both of which are subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lai holds a Bachelor
Degree of Arts in accounting from the City University of Hong Kong. She
has over 30 years of experience in company secretarial, finance, accounting
and auditing fields. Ms. Lai joined the Group in February 2008. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Lai worked at Gemalto Technologies Asia Limited
as financial controller for over 8 years. She is a fellow member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Directors

LIAO Ching-Tsun, aged 70, is our Vice Chairman, non-executive Director
and also a member of our Strategy Committee. Mr. Liao graduated from
Taipei College of Maritime Technology with a degree in aquatic food
processing. Mr. Liao has more than 40 years of experience in the food and
beverages industry. He joined our Group in July 1977 and held various
positions within the Group such as vice president of the snack foods
business group, head of production section, head of quality control section,
deputy factory manager and factory manager of | Lan Foods Industrial Co.,
Ltd, a subsidiary of our Company. He is one of the pioneers in spearheading
the Group’s China operations. Mr. Liao was our executive Director from
November 2007 to December 2016 and was re-designated as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 January 2017.

MAKI Haruo, aged 71, is our non-executive Director. Mr. Maki is the
president of ICCL, a listed company in Japan and one of the leading rice
cracker producers in Japan as well as our technical cooperation partner. Mr.
Maki graduated from Toyama National University with a bachelor’s degree.
Mr. Maki joined ICCL in 1976 and has served ICCL for over 40 years, and
was promoted to become its president in 1998. Mr. Maki joined our Group in
May 2001. He is a director of Want Want Japan Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company.

CHENG Wen-Hsien, aged 59, is our non-executive Director. He graduated
from the Graduate School of Commerce of Waseda University with a
master’s degree in commerce. Mr. Cheng is the chairmen of Hunan Want
Want Hospital Investment Management Co., Ltd. and Hunan Want Want
Hospital. Mr. Cheng joined our Group in August 2004. Mr. Cheng is the
nephew of Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng and a cousin of Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung and
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PEIl Kerwei, aged 65, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Nomination Committee and a member of our Audit and Risk
Management, Remuneration and Strategy Committees. He is also a member
of our ESG Committee. He graduated from Southern lllinois University with a
master’s degree in accountancy and holds a doctorate degree in accounting
from the University of North Texas. Dr. Pei is a full professor of accountancy
at the School of Accountancy at the W.P. Carey School of Business at
Arizona State University. He was the Executive Dean of China Programs
at W.P. Carey School of Business at Arizona State University, director
of the W.P. Carey EMBA program in Shanghai, MiM Custom Corporate
Program in China and the co-director of W.P. Carey DBA in Global Financial
Management. Throughout his 35-year career at Arizona State University, Dr.
Pei has held the positions of assistant professor, associate professor and
professor. Dr. Pei has acted as a consultant for a number of multi-national
companies, including Motorola Inc., Intel Corporation, Bank of America
Corporation, Dial Corporation, Raytheon Company, Cisco Systems Inc.
and Honeywell International Inc.. Dr. Pei is an independent non-executive
director of Zhong An Group Limited and Zhejiang Expressway Co., Ltd.
and served as an independent non-executive director of MMG Limited from
2015 to 2019, all being companies listed on the main board of the HK Stock
Exchange. Dr. Pei was an external director of China Merchants Group from
2015 to June 2022 and served as an external director of China Baowu Steel
Group Corporation Limited, the holding company of Baoshan Iron & Steel
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) from 2011 to
2019. He also served as an independent director (from 2006 to 2012) and a
director (from 2012 to 2019) of Baoshan Iron & Steel Co., Ltd.. Dr. Pei is a
member of American Accounting Association. He was the chairman of the
Steering Committee on Globalization of the American Accounting Association
and the chairman of the Chinese Accounting Professors’ Association of
North America. Dr. Pei joined our Group in November 2007.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

HSIEH Tien-Jen, aged 60, is our independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of our Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy Committee. Mr. Hsieh graduated from National Taipei University
Department of Law with a Master’'s Degree. He was a lawyer at Ding &
Ding Law Offices since 1988, until he established Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law
Offices in 1991. Mr. Hsieh has been a partner of Hsieh, Chi & Hsieh Law
Offices since its establishment. Mr. Hsieh has rich experience in commercial
law related areas, including general contract, merger and acquisition,
dissolution, liquidation and bankruptcy. He was a Maritime Law lecturer at
Chung Yuan Christian University from 1993 to 2013. Mr. Hsieh joined the
Consumer Education Foundation of Taiwan as a volunteer in 1995 and
was the foundation chairman during 2008 to 2010. Mr. Hsieh is currently
an independent director of China Television Company Limited and ceased
to be an independent director of Union Insurance Company on 18 June
2019, each of which is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. Mr. Hsieh joined our Group in June 2018.

LEE Kwok Ming, aged 64, is our independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of our Audit and Risk Management Committee and also a member
of each of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategy Committee. He is also a member of the ESG Committee. Mr. Lee
holds a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a Master of Science degree in Business Administration from the
University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent
non-executive director of Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd., Bossini
International Holdings Limited and Tam Jai International Co. Limited, each
of which is a company listed on the HK Stock Exchange. He was the chief
financial officer of Stella International Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the HK Stock Exchange). Mr. Lee has more than 30 years of financial
management experience and extensive experience in corporate finance
such as mergers and acquisitions. He assumed the position of chief financial
officer in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
Mr. Lee joined our Group in June 2018.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

PAN Chih-Chiang, aged 50, is our independent non-executive Director
and also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy Committee.
Mr. Pan holds a Bachelor Degree in Finance from the National Taiwan
University and a Master degree in Business Administration from the
University of Cambridge, United Kingdom. Mr. Pan is a founding member,
chief executive officer, director and responsible officer of Cypress Capital
Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive global capital market experience
in investment/wealth management industry, covering both institutional
clients including public pension funds, sovereign funds, venture capital
and private equity funds and insurance companies as well as ultra wealthy
families. He started his financial market career in 1997 as cash equity trader
at Jardine Fleming Securities (Taiwan), and later worked for JPMorgan
Asset Management Taiwan between 2003 and 2007 as the head of the
institutional business division providing investment advisory service to public
pension funds and corporate clients. Mr. Pan worked for Goldman Sachs
(Hong Kong) between 2007 and 2013 as portfolio manager/advisor to ultra
wealthy families and corporates. He is licensed to conduct Type 4 (Advising
on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Mr. Pan joined our Group in August 2019.

KONG HO Pui King, Stella, aged 69, is our independent non-executive
Director and also a member of each of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Strategy
Committee. She is also a member of the ESG Committee. She is currently
the Managing Director, Greater China at Raffles Family Office. Previously,
she was the Managing Director, Market Group Head, China Il at Credit
Suisse Private Banking. In her prior role at Standard Chartered Bank, Hong
Kong as Deputy Regional Head of Private Banking for Greater China and
North Asia, she was instrumental in building the China offshore team. Mrs.
Kong has over 30 years of experience in the banking industry spanning
four countries in the wealth management industry and has held both senior
management and client relationship positions at Credit Suisse, Standard
Chartered Bank, ABN AMRO Bank, Sarasin Rabo Investment Management,
UBS, Deutsche Bank, Natwest and Citibank. She is licensed to conduct
Type 4 (Advising on Securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Mrs. Kong joined our Group in July 2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CAO Yong-Mei, aged 49, is the managing director of the manufacturing
and R&D group and a professorate senior engineer. Ms. Cao graduated
from Jiangnan University (the former Wuxi University of Light Industry) with
a doctoral degree in food science. She also holds a master’s degree in
business administration from the W.P. Carey School of Business at Arizona
State University. Ms. Cao joined our Group in January 2001 and has held
various positions, such as manager of the research and development,
manager of the Chairman’s office and the managing director of the
Chairman’s office. In March 2012, Ms. Cao was promoted to the managing
director of the manufacturing department. In November 2017, Ms. Cao was
promoted to the managing director of the manufacturing and R&D group,
being responsible for coordinating sustainable development and talent pool
of the Group’s manufacturing, quality assurances, equipment and R&D
teams. Ms. Cao is the director of our technology center, which is certified
as Shanghai Municipal Enterprise Technology Center, executive director of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology (“CIFST”) and vice
president of Snack Foods Processing Technology Society of CIFST, director
of the Shanghai Society of Food Science, director of Baked Food and Sugar
Products Committee of the Shanghai Society of Food Science, a member
of Brand Strategy Working Committee of China Food Industry Association,
Walmart Food Safety Innovation Council member, credentialing specialist
of China Engineering Education Accreditation Association, a representative
of executive board of the Seven-Star Convention Alliance and vice-chair
of the steering committee member of Global Food Safety Initiative China
Local Group. Ms. Cao won the Chinese Institute of Food Science and
Technology’s Outstanding Youth Award in 2017.

CHEN Chun-Chiang, aged 53, is the managing director of R&D centre.
Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor’s degree from the Department of Food
Science of National Chung Hsing University in Taiwan in 1992 and obtained
his master’s degree from Institute of Food Engineering of Da-Yeh University
in 1994. In 1996, Mr. Chen joined the research & development team of our
Group and has been committed to R&D for over twenty years. He has led
the developments of over a hundred kinds of new products and applied for
multiple patents. Under his leadership, the Group’s R&D team now has over
one hundred talents specialised in fields such as food technology research,
food testing and analysis, consumer survey and market research. Mr. Chen
is the vice director of our technology center, which is certified as Shanghai
Municipal Enterprise Technology Center, the vice-president of Potato Food
Professional Committee of China Food Industry Association, and a member
of Child Food Society of the CIFST.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

TING Hung-Hsing, aged 52, is the managing director of the information
technology centre. Mr. Ting graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and holds a master’s degree in hotel and tourism management.
He has worked in the field of information system management for many
years. Mr. Ting joined our Group in February 2006 responsible for
information system development. In 2007 and 2008, he was the deputy
director of the information technology department in charge of information
network and system development. In 2009, Mr. Ting was promoted to
director of the Chairman’s office responsible for facilitating and monitoring
the Group’s overall strategy execution. In 2012, he was promoted as the
managing director of the human resources department in charge of the
human resources function of the Group. In 2013, he served as the deputy
general manager of our Taipei office overseeing the business operations in
Taiwan. Since March 2016, Mr. Ting has served as the managing director of
the information technology centre.

CHEN Chien-Chen, aged 56, is the managing director of the procurement
center and the advertising and communication division of the Group. Mr.
Chen has more than 31 years of experience in trade, futures, logistics,
procurement, advertising and management fields. In 1988, Mr. Chen
obtained a bachelor’s degree from Taiwan National Chung Hsing University.
In 1997, he graduated from the department of business administration of
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. In the same year, Mr. Chen
joined our Group and has held various positions over the past 24 years,
including the vice head of the procurement department, head of the
procurement department, head of advertising and publicity department,
managing director of the procurement division and the managing director of
the media division. Before he joined the Group, he worked at Taiwan Great
Wall Enterprise Limited (a Taiwan listed company) as an assistant manager
of the purchasing department of commodity from 1990 to 1997.

TAN Eng-Kheng, aged 49, the managing director of supply chain centre.
Mr Tan graduated from the Brest Business School (ESC Bretagne Brest),
France with a master degree in business administration. Mr. Tan has over
25 years of professional experience in operation management and has held
his current position as the managing director of supply chain centre since
June 2018, responsible for the overall supply chain strategic planning of the
Group. He joined our Group in March 2010 and has served as the head of
various departments, including managing director of human resource centre,
general manager of SEA business division, general manager of investment
division and executive assistant of operations management department.
Before joining our Group, he worked at IP Softcom Company Limited as the
head of operations overseeing the operations in China and SE Asia region,
including market development, supply chain management and production
management etc. He also worked as the production manager of Liteon
Electronic (Malaysia) Company Limited.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

LIU Ping, aged 41, is the general manager of Happy bulk sales and
maternal and child business units. Mr. Liu graduated from Lanzhou
University of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
management. Mr. Liu joined our Group in September 2006 and has held
various positions, such as head of gift pack marketing and bulk sales centre,
business unit deputy general manager and regional sales manager. He is
currently acting as the general manager of Happy bulk sales and maternal
and child business units, in charge of the sales and marketing functions of
the business units under his responsibility across the nation. Mr. Liu has
about 20 years of managing experience in fast-moving consumer goods
industry.

WANG Jinping, aged 53, is the general manager of the ‘Prime of Love’
elderly food business unit. Ms. Wang graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in accounting. In 2002, she obtained a
certificate of accounting profession (advanced level). In 2013, she received
a master’s degree in business administration from the W.P. Carey School of
Business at Arizona State University. Ms. Wang joined our Group in March
1997 and has held various positions, such as the financial head of Harbin
subsidiary and marketing director in charge of the sales in three provinces
at North Eastern China. In August 2002, Ms. Wang was transferred to
Shanghai and responsible for marketing and sales of popsicles in the
country. In April 2011, she was promoted to the general manager of
beverage business unit, in charge of marketing and sales of popsicles and
beverages. From April 2013 to October 2021, Ms. Wang served as the
general manager of popsicles business unit, in charge of marketing and
sales of “Popsicles”, “Sip & Slurp” and “Dongchi” as well as coordination of
new product launch. Since November 2021, Ms. Wang has been in charge
of the ‘Prime of Love’ elderly food business unit with the key focus on riding
on the aging trend of the Chinese market to explore market opportunities
of elderly food business. Ms. Wang has 23 years of sales experience in the
food industry.

YU Ching Lun, aged 66, is the managing director of the human resources
center and general manager of retail shop developing division. Mr. Yu got
a master’s degree of finance & banking from the Taiwan University and
a doctorate degree of civil and commercial law from China University of
Political Science and Law. Mr. Yu joined the group in July 2020 and serves
as the general manager of the retail shop developing division. Since May
2021, he has also served as the managing director of the human resources
center in China. Now, he is in charge of both human resources function
and retail shop developing business in China. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Yu assumed senior management positions, such as CFO, group deputy
general manager, CEO, President etc. in serval well-known enterprises
such as Silitek Electronic Group, Lite-On Electronics Group, Tsann Kuen
Enterprise Group, Kelti (China) and Lite-On (Japan) Company. In 2012, Mr.
Yu was awarded the “top ten outstanding managers in China” by the Blue
Lion Manager.
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Our Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sales of food and beverages.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2022 by business segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business and performance of the Group, including the
analysis and discussion using financial key performance indicators, during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and the outlook of the Group’s business are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from page 14 and pages 18 to 45 of this Annual
Report respectively. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group can be found throughout the Annual Report including the financial
risks as set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group focuses not only on manufacturing but also on reciprocating the
communities by making sustainable development and social responsibility
contributions as important parts of the Group’s development. The Group
endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates its business, so as
to realise sustainable development and operation.

The Group encourages environmental protection, advocates energy
conservation and emission reduction within the Group by emphasising
on the importance in protecting natural resources and environment and
promotes the environmental awareness of its employees such that fulfilling
the environmental and social responsibilities to become the common value
and direction as well as job responsibility of the management and every
staff.

The Group adheres to the principle of 3Rs — “Reduce”, “Recycle” and
“Reuse”, promotes green manufacturing and the use of recyclable
environmental-friendly packaging materials, ensures disposition of
hazardous waste by lawful means in accordance with the national
regulations and local environmental requirements and addresses the
consumers’ desire for a healthy and green lifestyle in its product research
and development.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

The Board takes leadership and has the responsibility for the oversight
of the Group’s ESG issues and ESG goal and strategy formulation with
the support of ESG Committee in monitoring, evaluating, prioritising and
managing material ESG-related issues. Regular meetings are held for the
ESG Committee to provide regular updates to the Board on the progress,
challenges and difficulties encountered. The Audit and Risk Management
Committee also plays an important role in assessing material ESG risks
involved in the Group’s businesses and to ensure that appropriate risk
mitigation measures are in place. The Group has formulated five strategies
on environmental sustainability,which are establishing long-term goals for
sustainable development, engaging participation of stakeholders, attaching
significant importance to investment in environmental protection, using
resources efficiently, and devoting to technological innovation.

The Group has also set its long-term goals for sustainable development
in respect of energy and water efficiency improvement, greenhouse gas
emission reduction, energy and water conservation, use of environmental-
friendly products and packaging materials etc.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to time and
consider further implementation of measures on environmental protection in
the Group’s operations, thereby enhancing environmental sustainability.

Detailed discussion on the Company’s environmental policies and
performance is set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
which will be presented in a separate report and published on the websites
of the Company and that of the HK Stock Exchange in due course.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group ensures compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
of the places where the Group has business operations that have material
impact on its operations, including the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

We will closely monitor any changes in government policies, relevant laws
and regulations from time to time and assess the impact of such changes
and seek external advice if considered necessary.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that its success depends on the support from the
stakeholders, including but not limited to employees, customers (primarily
distributors, modern channel retailers and online and social media platform
providers) and end-consumers, suppliers and shareholders, which is also
the key to its sustainable development. According to the Group’s philosophy
of “People-Oriented, Self-Confidence and Unity”, the Group values highly its
relationships with key stakeholders.

Employees

The Group is committed to establishing a healthy, harmonious and caring
working relationship with employees which forms the bedrock of any
successful organisation. The Group takes employees’ life and safety as
the top priority. We provide a safe and happy workplace as well as a
grand stage where Want Want staff can unleash their full potentials. We
advocate continuing education and life-long learning to help to enhance the
competitiveness of our employees and endeavor to provide learning and
development platforms with well-designed year-round training programs
for our employees so as to achieve mutual growth and development of the
Group and employees. In addition, we develop competitive incentive plans
and remuneration and benefits programs to recognise, motivate and provide
incentives to those employees who make contribution to the Group.

Customers and consumers

The Group sells its products primarily to distributors who distribute the
products to end points of sales for consumers to choose. The Group also
sells its products directly to modern channel retailers who then on-sell the
products to end-consumers, as well as, sells directly to end-consumers
through emerging channels and various online and social media platforms.

The Group realises the importance of maintaining good long-term
relationship with its customers (primarily distributors, modern channel
retailers and online and social media platform providers). The Group
continues to look for quality distributor partners who are willing to
collaborate, to review the distributor policy from time to time to ensure its
competitiveness and attractiveness, to guide distributors to experiment with
digital transformation, such as holding online live broadcast, which enables
distributors to reach out to consumers beyond physical geographical
boundaries, expand point-of-sales coverage and accelerate product flow,
and to provide distributors and modern channel retailers with marketing
resources and support so that Want Want products could be delivered and
displayed on the shelves at the points of sales in a timely manner and in
attractive, eye-catching ways. Meanwhile, the Group has also paid great
attention to the inventory management of its distributors to ensure that the
aging of their products would remain highly competitive in the channels and
at the points of sales so that consumers could always enjoy the fine taste of
Want Want products.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Customers and consumers (continued)

The Group adheres to strict product quality control to safeguard product
quality and safety and has established a quality assurance system covering
the whole supply chain so as to make its products perfect in all aspects,
build great reputation of Want Want brand and let consumers eat with ease,
feel relieved and happy.

In recent years, the Group has made use of different social media platforms
and channels, through dynamic and diversified digital marketing activities
and creating diversified consumption scenarios, to connect with consumers
and create dialogues to enhance communication and interaction with
consumers and to gain consumer loyalty and insights on the changing
market demand so that the Group could respond proactively. The Group
also attempts to deliver more personalised content and advertisements
tailored to the interests and preferences of each targeted consumer group.

Based on the characteristics of different age groups and different demands
from consumers, the Group differentiated and launched a range of brands to
serve consumers precisely and extensively. The Group has also constantly
rolled out products with new flavors and packaging and developed new
products that meet the demands for healthy and nutritious products, novel
packaging and unique flavors, satisfying the diverse needs of consumers.

Upholding the Group’s motto of “Be Caring, Be Attentive and Be
Considerate”, the Group strives to create a high quality and complete
consumption experience for our consumers and serve them with our sincere
and friendly services in exchange for the satisfaction of every customer and
consumer.

Suppliers

The Group generally centralises the procurement of a majority of its key raw
materials and packaging materials to take advantage of economies of scale
and maximise its bargaining power with suppliers. This approach enables it
to enjoy competitive prices.

The Group has established a stable long-term relationship with its major
suppliers to ensure stable and sustainable supply, quality and timely delivery
of raw materials and packaging materials.

The Group emphasises the evaluation and selection of suppliers and
persists in sustainable development.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
Suppliers (continued)

The Group has established a sound supplier selection process. The Group
also assesses and manages its suppliers from different aspects including
quality, delivery, cost and service and sets up a rating system based on
the assessment result. The Group manages its suppliers according to their
rating and informs them the monthly assessment result in order to work on
areas of improvement with them.

The Group constantly adjusts its supplier structure to facilitate a positive
development in cooperation between the Group and its suppliers and
to establish a long-term strategic partnership with the ultimate goal of
mitigating the Group’s supply chain management risk.

Shareholders

The Group is committed to uphold high corporate governance standards
to promote corporate transparency and accountability and to enhance
shareholders’ value.

The Company recognises the importance of continuous communications
with its shareholders. Annual general meeting is an important platform for
direct communication between the Company and its shareholders.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022 are
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 120 and 121 of this Annual Report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the
policy of the Company that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the
Board shall make distributions to allow its shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate cash reserves for meeting its
requirements for working capital and long-term sustainable development.

The Board has the discretion to propose, declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the Articles of Association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations and taking into
account the factors set out below.

The Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

(i)  the financial performance and cash flow situation of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future
capital requirements and investment needs;

(i) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(iv) amount of share repurchases made during the period; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Company in general meeting may from time to time declare dividends
to be paid to the members but no dividends shall be declared in excess of

the amount recommended by the Board.

In addition, the Directors may from time to time pay such interim dividends
or special dividends of such amounts and on such dates as they think fit.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or warrant or
by other means that the Board considers appropriate, subject to its Articles
of Association.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of the Company’s
profits or reserves lawfully available for such purposes.

Any dividend unclaimed may be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDENDS AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
An interim dividend of US0.83 cent per share for the year ended 31 March
2022 (for the year ended 31 March 2021: US0.65 cent per share), totalling
RMB629,920,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB521,051,000),
were paid to the shareholders of the Company in January 2022.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of US2.10
cents and a special dividend of US2.94 cents, totalling US5.04 cents (for
the year ended 31 March 2021: a final dividend of US1.46 cents) per
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022. Subject to the approval
of shareholders at the forthcoming 2022 AGM to be held on 23 August
2022, the proposed final and special dividends will be paid on or about 15
September 2022. Shareholders registered under the principal register of
members in the Cayman Islands will automatically receive their dividends in
United States dollars while shareholders registered under the Hong Kong
branch register of members will automatically receive their dividends in
Hong Kong dollars. The Hong Kong dollars final and special dividends will
be calculated with reference to the exchange rate of United States dollars
against Hong Kong dollars on 23 August 2022, being the date of the 2022
AGM on which such dividends will be proposed to the shareholders of the
Company for approval.

In order to qualify to attend and vote at the forthcoming 2022 AGM, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 pm on 17 August 2022, for the purpose of effecting the
share transfers. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 18 August 2022 to 23 August 2022 (both dates inclusive).
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DIVIDENDS AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(continued)

In order to qualify for the entitlement to the above mentioned final and
special dividends, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on 26 August
2022, for the purpose of effecting the share transfers. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from 27 August 2022 to 31 August
2022 (both dates inclusive).

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to RMB4,611,790,000 (31 March 2021: RMB4,278,103,000). Movements in
the reserves of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set
out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The five largest customers contributed in aggregate less than 30% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The five largest suppliers constituted in aggregate 39% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2022. The largest supplier
accounted for 18% of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 did the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interests in these suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the

publication of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung

Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Huang Yung-Sung (Chief Marketing Officer)

Mr. Chu Chi-Wen (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui

Ms. Lai Hong Yee

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Maki Haruo
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Toh David Ka Hock (retired upon the conclusion of 2021 AGM)

Dr. Pei Kerwei

Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen

Mr. Lee Kwok Ming

Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang

Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, Stella (appointed on 1 July 2021)

At the forthcoming 2022 AGM, the Directors retiring by rotation in
accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association are Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng, Mr. Huang Yung-Sung, Ms. Lai Hong Yee, Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien
and Dr. Pei Kerwei. All the aforesaid retiring Directors, being eligible, will

offer themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
Changes in Director’s information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Tam Jai International Co., Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the HK Stock Exchange in October 2021;

(2) Mr. Chu Chi-Wen, an executive Director and the chief financial officer
of the Company, has become a fellow member of CPA Australia in
May 2022; and

(3) Dr. Pei Kerwei, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, ceased to be an external director of China Merchant Group
in June 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming 2022 AGM do
not have any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BOND REDEMPTION AT MATURITY

Subsequent to the balance sheet date of 31 March 2022, the
US$500,000,000 2.875% guaranteed bonds due 2022 of the Group issued
in April 2017 were redeemed and fully settled at maturity in April 2022.

DONATIONS

The charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately RMB44,363,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2021: RMB20,484,000).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the years ended
31 March 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 and for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2018 and the assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2018,
2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 are set out in the Financial Summary on page
13 of this Annual Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors.

In addition, each of them is neither interested in the securities or business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor connected with any Director,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Save as serving as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, none of them has taken up any other positions in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

The Board reviewed the overall contribution and service to the Company of
each of the independent non-executive Directors as well as their respective
level of participation and performance on the Board as an independent non-
executive Director. Each of them has demonstrated his/her ability to provide
an independent view to the Company’s matters and valuable contributions
to the Company during his/her term of office.

The Board is satisfied that each of the independent non-executive
Directors has the required integrity, attributes, profound knowledge and
experience, professional qualification and professionalism to fulfill the roles
of independent non-executive Director and considered Dr. Pei Kerwei, Mr.
Hsieh Tien-Jen, Mr. Lee Kwok Ming, Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang and Mrs. Kong
Ho Pui King, Stella to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as follows:

(i) Interests in the Company (long position)

ANNUAL REPORT
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23

R2022F3H31H ' AR RIEBERESTH
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(i) RARBWERFHFR)

Number of ordinary shares held

BELBRYE
Approximate %
Interests in of the issued
Beneficial Family controlled share capital of

interests interests corporations Total the Company

BERATREBITR

Name of Directors BEx=ps BEnEs Riks ZEGARER ey AWBREI O
Tsai Eng-Meng L 177,000,000  6,143,843,100®  6,320,843,100 53.1184%
Liao Ching-Tsun gl 90,200 90,200 0.0008%
Tsai Shao-Chung i 102,594,0004 102,594,000 0.8622%
Tsai Wang-Chia EHRR 42,000 101,300,000 101,342,000 0.8516%
Huang Yung-Sung B 22,100 22,100 0.0002%
Chu Chi-Wen REX 197,200 197,200 0.0017%
Maki Haruo BEX 1,100,000 200,000©) 1,300,000 0.0109%
Cheng Wen-Hsien BYE 76,600 463,086,040 463,162,640 3.8923%
Tsai Ming-Hui e 57,200 57,200 0.0005%
Lai Hong Yee RERE 8,000 8,000 0.0001%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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(i) Interests in an associated corporation of the Company (long (i) MAQBEEEENER (FR)
position)
Approximate
% of total issued
Name of the Number of share capital of the
Name of Director associated corporation Nature of interests shares held associated corporation
HEBEBREECRT
ESnE HEOEE A EEME BERVEE RABHBABED L
Tsai Shao-Chung Want Want Holdings Ltd. Beneficial interests 9,665 0.0007%
gaEH HHEEZERERAR BEnfEm
Notes: MiEE

(1)

@)

(©)

4)

®)

6)

)

Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2022, comprising
11,899,528,135 shares.

These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s children under

the age of 18.

These shares are directly held by Want Power Holdings Limited (“WPHL”) and
Norwares Overseas Inc. (“NOI”) as to 5,080,063,100 shares and 1,063,780,000
shares respectively. Both WPHL and NOI are wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng.

These shares are directly held by Twitcher Limited, a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung.

These shares are directly held by ThemePark Dome Limited, a company

wholly-owned by Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia.

These shares are beneficially owned by Mr. Maki Haruo’s spouse.

These shares are directly held by Mr Big Capital Limited and Mr Big Limited as
to 163,596,040 shares and 299,490,000 shares respectively. Mr Big Capital
Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien. Mr. Cheng is also the
controlling shareholder of Mr Big Limited holding 60% of its shares.
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Inc. ([NOLJ) B8 195,080,063,1008% &
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors, nor
the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 March 2022, insofar as the Directors are aware, the interests and
short positions of any person, other than any Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the HK Stock Exchange, are as
follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

Name of shareholders Nature of interests

of shares held

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

EERBETRARRFLFRAEHK
EEZEG HRRBRASCHEER
wE @

R EIMATIE RSN - 102022938318 »
BEMAQARESIARSTHRAEREA
AR EEAEEEIE(EERFFRAEK
BISEXVED) 2 B 10 - 1R RES P HES
EAEARIRIEE H REAERAIEIS21HFRE
BFEZRTMA  SRESEESFAZITA
BERABREBUEI M2 ERBAR

BrEMFTIREES  BIEARAQNTDESIE
BITHAEBHHERBIARM18R FLER
EMERARBEAR R ZESHITEEM
LEERER] o

REEFRURGEAETERRATHS
ZHGRKE

R2022F3A318 » REEME  REBEH
S RHABHRGIZEIHRRTERAFTE 2B M
RETE B THERABREBE T
EF UTAL (RARESEESITHAE
BRINFBERATRORAEERGD ZEER
REBINMT :

RAR AR (FR)

Approximate % of the
Number issued share capital

of the Company"

EARDT S BITRAMN
R R ERME BEERAEE BHE D
WPHL Beneficial interests 5,080,063,100@ 42.6913%
BERER
NOI Beneficial interests 1,063,780,000?® 8.9397%
BERER
ICCL Beneficial interests 608,434,480 5.1131%

EERE BRER



EEgHE

Report of the Directors

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSABLE UNDER THE SFO
(continued)

Interest in the Company (long position) (continued)

Note:

(1) Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at 31 March 2022, comprising
11,899,528,135 shares.

(2)  The shares held by WPHL and NOI were beneficially owned by Mr. Tsai Eng-
Meng and are the same shares disclosed as Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng’s interests
in controlled corporations as set out under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company and its associated corporation” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Company has not been
notified by any persons (other than Directors and the chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which requires disclosure to the Company under
the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements
headed “Related Party Transactions” and the section headed “Connected
Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party or were parties and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year ended 31 March 2022 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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FEH I ERERAT

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company had the following non-exempt connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions conducted in the financial year ended 31
March 2022.

Continuing connected transactions

Water God (7k%#) Renewed Framework Agreement

On 30 November 2021, the Company and San Want (together with its
subsidiaries, the “San Want Group”) entered into a renewed framework
agreement (“Water God Renewed Framework Agreement”), pursuant
to which (i) the Group agreed to produce and sell to San Want Group in
respect of certain “Water God (7X¥#)” branded antiseptic and sanitising
products (“Products”) (“Product Processing and Sale Transaction”), and
(ii) San Want Group agreed to sell, and the Group agreed to purchase, the
Products from San Want Group for onward sales and distributions (“Product
Purchase Transaction”) for a term of two years from 1 April 2021 to 31
March 2023.

The principal terms of the Water God Renewed Framework Agreement are
set out below:

Date of agreement
30 November 2021

Parties
(1)  The Company
(2) San Want

Members of the Group and subsidiaries of San Want may enter into
separate agreement(s)/purchase orders which set out the quantity, date
and place of delivery and other terms pursuant to the Water God Renewed
Framework Agreement.

Term
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2023
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7k%#) Renewed Framework Agreement (continued)
The Products

“Water God (7k%#)” branded antiseptic and sanitising products, mainly
including antiseptic liquids, wipes, feminine hygiene wash, antiseptic sprays,
mouthwash and other consumables.

Nature of the transactions contemplated under the Water God Renewed
Framework Agreement

(1) Product Processing and Sale Transaction
The Group shall manufacture certain Products (being “Water God (7k
##)” branded antiseptic liquids) in accordance with the specifications
and requirements provided by San Want Group and then sell such
Products to San Want Group.

(2) Product Purchase Transaction
San Want Group shall sell, and the Group shall purchase, the Products
for onward sale and distribution through the Group’s distribution
channels.

Pricing Terms

(1) Product Processing and Sale Transaction
The Group shall provide all the raw materials, packaging materials,
direct labour and variable production costs to produce certain Products
(being “Water God (7K¥#)” branded antiseptic liquids) in accordance
with the specifications and requirements provided by San Want
Group and then sell to San Want Group at the price which shall be
determined based on the Group’s total direct production costs incurred
(including, among others, raw materials costs, packaging material
costs, labour costs and variable production costs) plus a 5% profit
margin, inclusive of value-added tax.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7k%#) Renewed Framework Agreement (continued)
Pricing Terms (continued)
(2) Product Purchase Transaction

San Want Group shall offer the most favourable selling price to
the Group which shall represent a discount to San Want Group’s
recommended retail prices to end consumers for the Products in
different packaging specifications (inclusive of value-added tax), and
such discount shall not be less than the discount offered by San Want
Group to its other customers.

Since there are more than a dozen of items involved in the Products
and the discounts applied vary materially for different items of different
specifications and targeted distribution channels, the Board takes the
view that the specific numbers of discounts offered to the Group are
commercially sensitive, and the disclosure of the same may not be
meaningful to the Shareholders.

In assessing the discounts offered by San Want Group to the Group,
the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
were provided with a schedule setting out the discounts offered by
San Want Group to the Group and its other customers for each item of
the Products before entering into the Water God Renewed Framework
Agreement. As part of the internal control procedures, the finance
department of the Company will perform this procedure again every
six months during the term of the Water God Renewed Framework
Agreement to ensure that the discounts offered to the Group are
not less than the discounts offered by San Want Group to its other
customers.

The pricing terms of the transactions contemplated under the Water God
Renewed Framework Agreement were negotiated on an arm’s length basis,
and determined in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial
terms or better, and are no less favourable to the Group than those available
with independent third parties.

Payment Terms
Subsidiaries of San Want shall pay for the Products under the Product
Processing and Sale Transaction within 30 days after receipt of the invoices.

Members of the Group shall pay the purchase price under the Product
Purchase Transaction within 30 days after the completion of inspection for
acceptance and receipt of invoices of the relevant Products.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7k%#) Renewed Framework Agreement (continued)
Proposed annual caps
(1) Product Processing and Sale Transaction

The proposed annual cap in respect of the Product Processing and
Sale Transaction contemplated under the Water God Renewed
Framework Agreement for each of the years ending 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2023 is RMB5,000,000. The annual cap was determined
after taking into account the unit direct production cost, the 5% profit
margin, as well as the expected quantities of such Products (being
“Water God (7k#)” branded antiseptic liquids) to be processed during
the term.

(2) Product Purchase Transaction

The proposed annual cap in respect of the Product Purchase
Transaction contemplated under the Water God Renewed Framework
Agreement for each of the years ending 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2023 is RMB70,000,000. The annual cap was determined after taking
into account the purchase price of the Products and the expected
purchase quantities of the Products to be onward sold and distributed
through the Group’s distribution channels during the term.

In view of the increasing awareness of personal hygiene and growing
consumers’ demand for cleaning and sanitising products in the post-
pandemic era, the Group intended to, by entering into the Water God
Renewed Framework Agreement, continue to leverage on its existing
production capacities as well as sales and distribution capabilities, to serve
such consumer needs for cleaning and sanitising products while providing
the Group with a source of revenue.

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 30
November 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7k¥#) Renewed Framework Agreement (continued)
Proposed annual caps (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the revenue amount of Products
processed and sold by the Group to San Want Group under the Product
Processing and Sale Transaction was RMB780,000 while the amount of
Products purchased by the Group under the Product Purchase Transaction
was RMB66,901,000, which did not exceed respective proposed annual
cap.

Listing Rules Implications

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, executive
Director and ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of San Want, therefore San Want is an associate of
Mr. Tsai and a connected person of the Company within the meaning of the
Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under Water God Renewed
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

As the highest of the applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the Product Processing and Sale Transaction and the Product
Purchase Transaction contemplated under the Water God Renewed
Framework Agreement, on an aggregated basis, is, more than 0.1% but
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated thereunder are subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are exempted
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

Water God (7k%#) Renewed Framework Agreement (continued)
Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that each of
the transactions has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the HK Stock Exchange.
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B nEnE ERERAF Want Want China Holdings Limited

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Connected transaction

Tenancy Agreement

On 8 October 2021, Shanghai Want Want Trading Ltd. (“Shanghai Want
Want”) (LR ZBR2AF), a subsidiary of the Company, as tenant,
entered into the tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) with
Shanghai Sun-Want Property Ltd. (“Shanghai Sun-Want”) (L8 EithE
BPRAT]), as landlord, in respect of the lease of the premises situated at
Room 801-1, No. 211 Shimen 1st Road, Jing’an District, Shanghai, PRC (the
“Premises”) for a term of one year and six months from 1 October 2021 to
31 March 2023 (both dates inclusive).

The principal terms of the Tenancy Agreement are set out as follows:
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Date of agreement : 8 October 2021

tinak B HA : 2021410H8H

Landlord : Shanghai Sun-Want

HEA : ;=2 ]2

Tenant : Shanghai Want Want

ARG : FigRERE

Premises : Room 801-1, No. 211 Shimen 1st Road, Jing’an District, Shanghai, PRC

EE : HELEETHZEAP —K2115:801-1F

Gross rental area : Approximately 123.72 square meters

HEREER : #123.72F 75K

Usage : As offices

JizE=S : b YN

Term : One (1) year and six (6) months from 1 October 2021 to 31 March 2023 (both dates
inclusive)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING REXSHRIGERERS (&)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transaction (continued) Eﬁgg 5 (%)
Tenancy Agreement (continued) HEW=EE)
Monthly rent : The monthly after-tax rent (exclusive of water, electricity, cable television, gas,

heating, sanitary, telecommunication, property related fees and other charges and
outgoings) during the lease term is RMB29,352.57 per month

ERAES : HERANZBAHEE EH) (FEEK - B BRER - AR - #RE - 4% - B
B MERRERREMERN S H) BARE29,352.577T

Payment term : The monthly rent (except for the rent for the first month) shall be payable in advance
by the Tenant to the Landlord 10 days before the expiry of the preceding month. The
rent for the first month shall be payable upon signing of the Tenancy Agreement, but
not later than 31 October 2021

ANEASC S : EREE(REAEEMN BAABSEAN —EREBHHAORBEXNTHES -
BAESARETHERZER (BETKBMN2021F108318) X

Rental deposit : A rental deposit in the sum of RMB29,352.57, representing one month’s rental, shall
be payable upon signing of the Tenancy Agreement

HERS : HERTERARYB29,352.57T (HBEN—EAEE) ARETHE H=RE

Early Termination : The Tenant may terminate the Tenancy Agreement at any time during the Term by

giving one month’ prior written notice to the Landlord

12 A0 B : AR AT A B AR R E 8 [ AR 5 3 — (8 A B EEBALUERRR

Further details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8 BRE—SHBHNAQNT A A20214F
October 2021. 10H8AZAE °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Connected transaction (continued)
Tenancy Agreement (continued)

Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng is also the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Landlord under the Tenancy Agreement. As such, the Landlord is an
associate of Mr. Tsai and a connected person of the Company within
the meaning of the Listing Rules and the lease transaction contemplated
thereunder constitutes a connected transaction of the Company.

According to HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group, as the lessee, is required to
recognise the lease under the captioned Tenancy Agreement as right-of-
use asset and lease liability in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group
and the transaction contemplated thereunder would be regarded as an
acquisition of asset by the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Group recognised the right-of-use asset and lease liability of
RMB489,470 each in relation to the Tenancy Agreement.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in the section headed
“Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” in the
Report of the Directors in respect of this transaction.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions
constitutes a non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules, except for the transactions described in the paragraph headed
“Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this
Annual Report and the relevant section in the 2020/2021 Annual Report, in
respect of which the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company repurchased a total
of 177,396,000 shares on HK Stock Exchange for an aggregate amount
(excluding expenses) of HK$982,743,042 and such repurchased shares
were cancelled. Particulars of the shares repurchased on the HK Stock
Exchange during the period are as follows:

Want Want China Holdings Limited

MR HENROFEAT ELHES

RBZE202F3A3MBLEEEHMHE:
RATEBBHITULE(TEEER)
982,743,042 B ITHEEE H 177,396,000 A
B0 ZZECBEZRACTEHE - BER
BERBIMBRRDZFENT ¢

Aggregate

Total number Highest Lowest amount paid

of shares price paid price paid (excluding

repurchased per share per share expenses)

Month of [EERESTS [EEREST: [ERRE:E:
repurchases BE A% L AER gk BE=E BIEE (TEEEA)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(B7) (&) (&)

April 2021 2021 %4 A 35,421,000 5.90 5.62 203,833,190
May 2021 2021 % 5A 16,263,000 5.79 5.60 93,319,260
June 2021 2021 %6 A 4,000,000 5.55 5.47 22,096,820
July 2021 2021 ¥ 7AH 36,803,000 5.44 5.21 198,135,860
August 2021 2021 %8 A 29,563,000 5.33 5.10 154,433,870
September 2021 2021 ¥ 9 A 28,709,000 5.79 5.22 156,908,528
October 2021 2021 %10 A 26,637,000 6.00 5.68 154,015,514
177,396,000 982,743,042

The Directors of the Company believe that the above repurchases are
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share of the
Company.

Saved for the share repurchases and redemption of the Bonds as disclosed
in this Annual Report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities (including the
Bonds) of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this Annual Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

Details of compliance by the Group with the Model Code are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 46 to 75 of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (“Companies
Law”), every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
loss or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgement is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is
acquitted. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this Annual
Report in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against the
Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands (where the Company is
incorporated) which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders first.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the level of public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2022 and has continued to maintain a public float as at 28 June 2022.
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AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22 June
2021, the Board had resolved, with recommendation from the Audit and
Risk Management Committee, to propose the appointment of Ernst &
Young as the new auditor of the Company following the retirement of
PricewaterhouseCoopers at the 2021 AGM held on 17 August 2021. The
Board was of the view that the change of auditor was consistent with good
corporate governance practice. Ernst & Young has been appointed as
the auditor of the Company at the 2021 AGM and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next following annual general meeting of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
have been audited by the auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tsai Eng-Meng
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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To the shareholders of Want Want China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

KB BTSN

Kai—EE 2718

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Want Want China
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 118 to 236, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2022, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended
31 March 2022, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

FBHIRBREE 979 5%
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter BRENEE ETANRERREZANS

Revenue recognition and volume rebates UEBZRHEE

During the year ended 31 March 2022,  Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition and BZ220283R8 HMIEKEEIARMEENN

the Group recognised revenue from  volume rebates included: NALEE B EHRERER:

sales of goods amounting to RMB23,985 EECRAKER

million. . Evaluating the design and implementation of intemal NEBRBARY FEEENERED R
controls and testing their operating effectiveness over 23,985,000,000 % © SRR R
revenue recognition and volume rebates; SARBTRAZEER

Revenue is recognised when the control ZERRIREEE Bt

of the underlying products has been mZEHEEERR

transferred to the customers. . Reviewing customer contracts, on a sample basis, to FRH o HEEBEFAH B
identify terms and conditions relating to the transfer EAREYCEERN

The Group also offers volume rebates, of control over the products sold and assessing the EXETOHEFR BHERBNRTRE

including discounts, rebates and
promotional incentives, to its customers.
These costs are accounted for as a
deduction from revenue.

A large proportion of the volume rebates
had not been paid or utilised as at 31
March 2022 and the relevant refund
liabilities were included in accruals and
other payables.

We identified revenue recognition and
volume rebates as a key audit matter
because there was a huge volume of
revenue fransactions generated in many
different locations and from various
customers and the amounts of volume
rebates were significant to the Group’s
gross profit and it involved significant
estimates in determining certain volume
rebates granted to major customers.

The related disclosures are included in
notes 2.24, 4 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Group's timing of revenue recognition with reference to
the requirements of prevailing accounting standards;

. Comparing revenue transactions recorded during the
current year, on a sample basis, with those in invoices,
sales contracts and goods delivery notes;

. Comparing, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end
date with goods delivery notes and other relevant
documentation;

. Reviewing the Group’s assessment of expected
volume rebates, sales discount and rebate payables,
checking the Group’s historical data for volume rebates
and comparing the amounts of the actual volume
rebates recorded by the Group with the current year's
sales amounts;

. Selecting samples of volume rebates for the year and
comparing each selected item with the relevant sales
contract and customer agreement, and recalculating
the sales discount and rebate payable by the Group;
and

. Comparing the amounts of the subsequent actual
settlements of volume rebates with the corresponding
amounts accrued as at the year end.
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Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is LAM Wai Ming, Ada.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 June 2022
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31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20215
3A31H 3A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MIEE AR¥ET T ARETTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y13 - HeEERERTE 6 5,973,476 6,335,441
Investment properties REME 7 34,585 36,414
Intangible assets BEE 8 10,021 11,169
Investments in associates & NTIRE 10 11,074 13,307
Deferred income tax assets EEFBHEE 22 392,786 373,767
Financial assets at fair value through BAVEEBREMEE
other comprehensive income R RN EmMEE 12 104,023 92,935
Right-of-use assets FREEE 9 1,006,684 1,098,451
Long-term bank deposits RERITER 16 5,737,000 2,850,000
Total non-current assets HIERBEE 13,269,649 10,811,484
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 3,226,184 2,528,819
Trade receivables =0 T EN 14 1,004,538 920,032
Prepayments, other receivables TEFE ~ R
and other assets kRHEMERE 15 1,091,791 901,613
Cash and bank balances RERRVITHER 16 11,265,819 16,081,070
Total current assets BREEE 16,588,332 20,431,534
Total assets HEE 29,857,981 31,243,018
EQUITY E
Equity attributable to equity holders EATERBFEA
of the Company s
Share capital B 17 1,798,203 1,821,152
Reserves EAE] 18 14,835,392 13,077,825
Subtotal et 16,633,595 14,898,977
Non-controlling interests e R 75,183 72,663
Total equity R 16,708,778 14,971,640
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31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20224 20214

3A31H 3A31H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BfaE AR¥®TR ARBTT

LIABILITIES =0
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Borrowings (R 21 3,546,364 6,493,151
Lease liabilities HEERE 9 51,795 124,475
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFSHEas 22 166,617 348,267
Other non-current liabilities HiIERBa s 135,899 139,627
Total non-current liabilities BWIFRBER 3,900,675 7,105,520
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S ENR 19 1,106,946 943,281
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR H B 20 3,104,596 2,931,890
Contract liabilities ¥ S)-Li 5(b) 1,255,592 1,556,783
Current income tax liabilities EHEHAaE 315,765 287,793
Borrowings (EEN 21 3,355,850 3,339,961
Lease liabilities HEaE 9 109,779 106,150
Total current liabilities wREBEE 9,248,528 9,165,858
Total liabilities Hwa s 13,149,203 16,271,378
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 29,857,981 31,243,018
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
TR KL
Director Director
EFE EFE
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022F BZE2021F
3AMHLFE 3A3MBLFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥ET T AREET T
Revenue Uz 5 23,984,891 21,998,400
Cost of sales SHE KA 24 (13,237,497) (11,392,876)
Gross profit EF 10,747,394 10,605,524
Other gains — net Hibhas — H5E 23 163,337 289,118
Other income =R PN 414,025 320,586
Distribution costs DA 24 (3,133,220) (2,765,622)
Administrative expenses THEA 24 (2,734,723) (2,713,428)
Operating profit EIEFE 5,456,813 5,736,178
Finance income BB WA 26 444,131 469,161
Finance costs A& AN 26 (164,328) (208,379)
Finance income — net RE WA — F5E 26 279,803 260,782
Share of losses of associates FE(LEEE N RIE R 10 (2,233) (2,118)
Profit before income tax BR PS84 A0 A B 5,734,383 5,994,842
Income tax expense S ER 27 (1,545,269) (1,847,161)
Profit for the year FERE 4,189,114 4,147 681
Profit attributable to FEAL RIS
Equity holders of the Company —RARERFEEA 4,202,655 4,157,809
Non-controlling interests — JEEEH R R (13,541) (10,128)
Total FaE 4,189,114 4,147,681
Earnings per share for profit attributable AATEREFE ARG
to equity holders of the Company FENEREF
RMB35.16 Cents RMB33.83 Cents
Basic earnings per share BRERZR 28 AR¥35.16% AR#33.83%
RMB35.16 Cents RMB33.83 Cents
Diluted earnings per share BREERF 28 AR#35.167 AR#33.83%
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE2022% HZE20215F
3A3MHLFE 3A3MBLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Profit for the year FEFHE 4,189,114 4,147,681
Other comprehensive income Hitt2E K&
Items that may be reclassified RAGHEEELTHEZ
subsequently to profit or loss BmZHEH
Currency translation differences EMELER 127,498 571,242
Items that will not be reclassified RETEELHEZ
subsequently to profit or loss BmZHEH
Remeasurements of post-employment EARBEAEEZESH
benefit obligations TE 18 69 134
Change in value of financial assets at fair BRAFEEBEMEE
value through other comprehensive income WaRmRNeRMEE
> EEEE 18 (11,142) 11,486
Other comprehensive income for the year FEHME2EKE 116,425 582,862
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHENGHAEE 4,305,539 4,730,543
Total comprehensive income for the year BEEELEHKREARE
attributable to
Equity holders of the Company —RQRERFEA 4,315,156 4,738,608
Non-controlling interests — R B MR R (9,617) (8,065)
Total Fe 4,305,539 4,730,543
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAREREE AR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
FiERE
ha  RiVGE Efiite  REEA 5 B s
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARBTR ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR

Balance at 1 April 2020 202054F10 68 1,866,355 462130 (4,604,604) 17,548,801 15,272,682 81532 15354214
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Proft forthe year EEFIR - - - 4157809 4157809 (10,128) 4,147,681
Other comprehensive income  Eft 2N
Change in value of financial RATEEBEMLE

assets at fair value through WERRNSRER

other comprehensive income JEEED 12,18 - - 11,486 - 11,486 - 11,486
Remeasurements of post- BIEAERZ

employment benefit obligations ~~ EiEtE 18 - - 134 - 134 - 134
Currency translation differences ~ E¥ERZEH 18 - - 569,179 - 569,179 2,063 571,242
Total other comprehensive Ef2ANEEH

income - - 580,799 - 580,799 2,063 582,862
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EKHAE - - 580,799 4157809 4,738,608 (8,085) 4,730,543
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Dividends paid ZRE 18 - - - (3511,235) (3,511,235 (804)  (3,512,039)
Shares buy-back BfEE 17 (45,203) - ~ (1555875 (1601,078) —(1601078)
Appropriation to statutory HRELTERE

reserves 18 - - 230,649 (230,649) - - -
Total transactions with owners  EEBAZRZHAE (45,203) - 230649 (5297,759)  (5,112,313) (804)  (5,113,117)
Balance at 31 March 2021 WNEI[ ALE 1,821,152 462,130 (3,793,156) 16,408,851 14,898,977 72,663 14,971,640




GERERmBER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

F &/

123

FEBInI ERERAT Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RATEEEA AR
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
iR
e RiaE Efbiite REER @zt & Bars
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
M ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR AR%Tn  ARETR
Balance at 1 April 2021 W21E4R1RES 1,821,152 462,130  (3,793,156) 16,408,851 14,898,977 72,663 14,971,640
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FERA - - - 4202655 4,202,655 (13,541) 4,189,114
Other comprehensive income Rt 2EKE
Change in value of financial BATEERAMNZE
assets at fair value through hERRNeRERE
other comprehensive income ZBEZE 12,18 - - (11,142) - (11,142) - (11,142)
Remeasurements of post- BURREL
employment benefit obligations 2 EHfiitE 18 - - 69 - 69 - 69
Currency translation differences ~ EMERZH 18 = = 123,574 = 123,574 3,924 127,498
Total other comprehensive B2 ENELS
income - - 112,501 - 112,501 3,924 116,425
Total comprehensive income 2ANHEE - - 112,501 4,202,655 4,315,156 (9,617) 4,305,539
Transactions with owners BREEAZRS
Dividends paid %HRE 18 - - - (761,045 (1,761,045) (443)  (1,761,488)
Shares buy-back RHBE 17 (22,949) - - (196544 (819,493) - (819493)
Appropriation to statutory Brziehe
reserves 18 - - 246,044 (246,044) - - -
Capital contribution by non- MRS TE
controlling interests - - - - - 12,580 12,580
Total transactions with owners B2 X585 (22,949) - 604 (2803633 (2580538 12137 (2,568401)
Balance at 31 March 2022 02263/ 3 ALE 1,798,203 462,130  (3,434,611) 17,807,873 16,633,595 75183 16,708,778
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022F BZE2021F
3A3MBLEFE 3A31BLFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE ARMT R ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities EEIBNERSRE
Cash generated from operations EEEEANRS 30 5,240,287 6,801,847
Interest paid EFFE (145,843) (192,719)
Interest received EUWFE 551,375 431,565
Income tax paid 2B R (1,735,366) (1,625,125)
Net cash flows generated from BEIHEANERSRE
operating activities 3,910,453 5,415,568
Cash flows from investing activities RETENRERE
Increase in bank deposits with original maturity ~ HA USRS R 2 E B BB =18
of more than three months when acquired B RERITIFFIGHN (3,097,000) (2,850,000)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment A - HEERRE (423,033) (316,389)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEBHMEMEIK
through other comprehensive income mRlRNEREE (25,280) (51,710)
Purchases of investment properties BAREWE (39) -
Purchases of intangible assets BARKEE (1,012) (921)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant HEME - HeERERE
and equipment, leasehold land and land use B i EAEMRS
rights MIE 20,574 296,805
Interest received from long-term bank deposits & YR IR EEES R ZIHA B 818
with original maturity of more than three =EAWRHRITERN
months when acquired FE 92,934 8,019
Net cash flows used in investing activities = BREFEFFANZEREFRE (3,432,856) (2,914,196)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022F BZE2021F
3A3MHLFE 3A3MBLFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE ARET T ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities RMETENRERE
Shares buy-back R 17 (819,493)  (1,601,078)
Dividends paid to equity holders MR EE A RS 29 (1,761,045)  (3,511,235)
Lease payments HEMA (131,909) (86,840)
Proceeds from borrowings (IR o] 114,006 5,383,038
Repayments of borrowings BEER (2,756,578) (3,817,829)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ JE¥R &I MR TE 12,580 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities  @EZBHFFANFRERE (5,342,439) (3,633,944)
Net decrease in cash and ReRESEEYRIDFE
cash equivalents (4,864,842) (1,132,572)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUINEERREEEY
of the year 16,081,070 17,256,927
Exchange losses B HE1E (160,409) (43,285)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERNBESREASEEY
of the year 11,055,819 16,081,070
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEEYERDM
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BeRIRITER 11,265,819 16,081,070
Long-term bank deposits RHIRITER 5,737,000 2,850,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HERREKAIREREE
statement of financial position Z£EY 17,002,819 18,931,070
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity of B REBREE=EAN
more than three months RITER 5,947,000 2,850,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated inthe REFREXRFIRERES
statement of cash flows ZEY 11,055,819 16,081,070
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Want Want China Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and distribution of food and beverages. The Group’s
activities are primarily conducted in the People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”) and its products are also sold to the North America, East Asia,
South-East Asia and Europe.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 October
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company has had its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 26 March 2008.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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AREE A AN F E B B IS R BOERAR
DU ST &8I HmE 2R -

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

and HKFRS 16

BRPHMELERFEN, - EBSFEREI0N - FBUK  FEEENE - F2ER

RELRIETR - SBMBRELABIFREBUBRS
ZRIE165R 2 1EFT

Amendment to HKFRS 16
2021
BB EER FE 1655 2185

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is
replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change
is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the
new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued.
Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary relief to
entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably expects
the RFR risk component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated
in United States dollars based on the London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) as at 31 March 2022. Since the interest rates of
these instruments were not replaced by RFRs during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group. If the interest rates of these borrowings
are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply the
above-mentioned practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings provided that the “economically equivalent” criterion is met.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the availability
of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly,
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying
the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier application is
permitted.

As the Group has not received COVID-19-related rent concessions,
the amendment has no impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Group.

2.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EESHBRREE@E

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting

standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB ISR EER SB35 2 185T

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

EBMERELEDFE10ERE BT EDFE285%
(2011%F) 2 1&3T

HKFRS 17
BBMBHREERE1THR

Amendments to HKFRS 17
BB REERE17IR2185]

Amendment to HKFRS 17

BRYBREERFETIR BT

Amendments to HKAS 1
EBGTTERE192185]

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

EBEEAE1EREBMBREEAEHEREE2%E
pa )

Amendments to HKAS 8
BEBGTTERIESIR Z185]

Amendments to HKAS 12
BBEETERIE125% 2185]
Amendments to HKAS 16
EBETERE165R 2R

Amendments to HKAS 37
RS EAEITHR 28]

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

20184 Z2020F & BRI B R EZER = F K #

23 CHEMEERERNEBIH

Hesq)

FEBELBERNZEYBERREAUT
BB 1S RE MBI R RSB &
BB ELER] o

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
BIERAERE 2z 4R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®
REZHABE NG ErECRHCEELHERTE

Insurance Contracts?

REEEH?

Insurance Contracts?®

RIBEHS

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information? ®

BAXERE BB EERE17HREBYHIREERE
93 — LB E R0

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current>*

BEDEBREBHITE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

BHBEZRE

Deflinition of Accounting Estimates?
Bt hat 2 EE?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction?

HE-XGELZEERREHRBZELFIE

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use'
¥ - BERRE - KT HEF 25 #E

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

EEE ] — /BT & a2 A

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41'

EBMBMEERER - BEVHMEERFE -
BB EERFE165RHEM 2 5B ERBIR
EBETTERE415R 2B
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

23

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting
standards (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

The HKICPA amends HKFRS 17 in February 2022 to permit a
classification overlay for financial assets presented in comparative
periods on initial application of HKFRS 17

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting
standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing
its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the amendments
apply prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting
standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is
permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.
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FEH I ERERAT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting
standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exemption and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of
these amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and
a deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise
the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented.
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ANNUAL REPORT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting
standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong financial reporting

standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments

to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’'s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Subsidiaries
2.4.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group except for business combination
under common control as described below. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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FEH I ERERAT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.4.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Business combinations

(i) Merger accounting for business combination under common
control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities or businesses in business
combinations under common control as if they had been combined
from the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the ultimate controlling shareholder.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the carrying amount from the ultimate controlling
shareholder’s perspective. No amount is recognised for goodwill or the
excess of the Group’s interest in the book value of the net assets over
cost at the time of the common control combination, to the extent of
the continuation of the ultimate controlling shareholder’s interest.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs
of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or losses incurred
in combining operations of the previously separate businesses and
other costs incurred in relation to the common control combination
that is to be accounted for by using the merger accounting method are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(i)  Acquisition method for other business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations other than common control combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EEEHBREE@E

(continued)

2.4 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.4.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

(i)  Acquisition method for other business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.4.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’'s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

2.7 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The Company’s functional currency is United States Dollar (“US$”).
The Group’s principal subsidiaries were incorporated in the PRC and
these subsidiaries considered RMB as their functional currency. Since
the majority of the assets and operations of the Group are located in
the PRC, the consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB
(unless otherwise stated) to reflect the primary economic environment
of the Group’s operations.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as FVOCI are included in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of any net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
sold or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid,
the associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal (continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s
ownership interest in associates that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence) the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the purchase of the land.
Freehold land is not subject to depreciation.

Construction-in-progress (the “CIP”) represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are available for use, the costs are transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciated
in accordance with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the cost less impairment loss (if any), other than freehold land and
construction in progress, to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 20 to 60 years
- Furniture, machinery and equipment 2 to 15 years
- Vehicles, aircraft and transportation 5 to 20 years

2.

Want Want China Holdings Limited

EREHRERER B

27 INBIRE(E)

(d) BHAEELHEENN T EE
(&)

HRAETBHAEERAHEF RN
HENMBRARNENENSDE
B ASEERGELEBEPHOLLA
NEENEBRIFEFEERZL BT
HERBPER - BRABHMHIE
EMASEEBERRTNRERE
EHENEDENEHREEEBRER
T8 AKREERAEREETHN
LEHHBEESEERE

28 W - HERRE

YIZE ~ BEER N BRAR D IR S2 AR ANERL
2T ERRETRERBE (NR) &5
iR BEABRWBZSREERE
EEMNRX -

KA+ MR R AR R T RERT IR
(WA) &I - RAEBETHEN
HME o KAEBLITEHRITE -

ERIR(HERIBDRRERDRE
FREMET - MERMKEE » URAE
HEFTRERE (W) SR - AR
ERERWBKAUR S ERCHE
MEA - EEZTRRBEEEHEEE
& P30 B A E 78 A AR R AT AT
ERE ERMEETHER AR
RAEBABEEER O - BBERR
% - WIZLAT PRl B AV BUR AT IR 1T
%O

BRERAIABERIJEDREB TR
2R B BRBAVRREERRE - M
THE R SRt B - T RER
BENREESIRIAD —EEBEE
(WEM) - EERZHHREAES K
RIEHER - IEHMECEREESE
M BRI AR RS W RS 8H

BROKAFREL R AR TR » T8
VB ETE - LRSI ERF
HREARBERE(WB) 2EEH
BrME - BREMETAEAFHNT -

- BF 20E60F
- R - HESRERE 22155
- B - RIER

ERHITA 5&20%F



e AR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F

FEH I ERERAT

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with carrying amounts and are recognised within ‘other gains
—net’ in the consolidated income statement.

2.9 Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land
on which various plants and buildings are situated for periods from
20 to 70 years. Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.

2.10 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group, are
classified as investment properties.

Properties and the building component of investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss (if any). The land component of leasehold investment
properties is accounted for as leasehold land and classified in
leasehold land and land use rights.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost less impairment loss (if any) to their
residual value over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 40 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred over the Company’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have finite useful lives
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

(c) Computer software

Computer software represents purchased software and amortised
over its estimated useful life of 5 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, associates and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not
subject to amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment.
Other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount of
the investee’s net assets including goodwill, in the consolidated
statements.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in an associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits
or losses of associates’ in the income statement.

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

2.13.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through
other comprehensive income or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

2.

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

EREHRERER (@)

212 B A > BE AT RFESH
BERENRE

ERFHIRENEE (HINEE) #
T EEOSFARNMEET -
RPNV - Rt FEmMEE - ERSMH
HERBER X E B R IREE R EE
W = B AT R EAR R o RUERIBIR
EENREEBHETWEESHENE
R - AIREEEUEEN A FE
MBRBE AR fEREERE ZE®
BERE - NIHLRER - WEEE
BYRESRENEEZTOMHBRE
TREREEHERT) NRERERAE
B REEN  CRIZRENFSH
EEASARSAHINEERSH
LARE[E TR o

EWIMBARRENREE - MK
EEBMELARERSEMHENE
EW @A REB LM HRRNOR
ERAEBBEFRSUBRROBIR
BERFEE (BEBE REE Al
AHRBREETRERNH

FEERZHREDHEERESEEN
EBRBETRBEQARZRERR
HE - MEHERE  AREREE
DA Z A E S EEEIREE 2 Z8
SAEHESRE  LAKERA[ERL
BENTBNNEE RIS -

213 RERHMEMEE

2131 D48

AEEZRUTH2E s EHemE
=

- HEBRLAVEZRBHME2E
BEHE A FEEBERCIK
MEMEE &

- BEBERAGFEZEME
BEo



F

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

e AR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.13.1 Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in the income statement or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.13.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

2.13.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment
of principal and interest.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.13.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in the income statement
and presented in other gains/losses together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement.

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Changes in fair value are taken through
other comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/losses. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/losses and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the statement
of profit or loss.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in the
income statement and presented net within other gains/losses in
the period in which it arises.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EEEHBREE@E

(continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
2.13.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the income statement as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in
other gains/losses in the income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

2.13.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The Group measures a loss allowance for
a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit
risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b)
for further details.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 2.13 for
further information about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables
and Notes 2.13.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Financial liabilities
2.18.1 Classification

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, accruals and
other payables, lease liabilities, borrowings and other non-current
liabilities.

2.18.2 Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments and
on a trade date basis. A financial liability is derecognised when and
only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.18.3 Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
income tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which
method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

2.

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

EREHRERER (B

2.20 BFREA

TEERBATERREBLEESR
HEAEAIHEREZSERERE
Wi - BEREEN —REBEGRK
A SFTAREEEZRA  HEE
EHEEAEARHERESRIL -

BBEER  BEFEEREENS
HERE IR ERBMNRERA - HE
BERERMCZBRRAFHIE -

B HMERKAREEEENE

S o
221 EMRIEEPREH

REEREHERREENRIELR
BHE -FEREFERERTRE
Ao BEEHGEARETREEE
EEPRANREEABEERRS - £
ZERT » EHAD R EREMEE
Wi sy E IR AR P D o

(a) ERFrEH

EHAEHHRERNDRNMNEL
ARBE QA EEREEERTWA
HNEXREERBRACEMIESR
LEEMNREESTE - EEER
i B A G R TR IR V15 E 2B
AHE IR R AR - WEBIHIEHEE
EERABTERESIITERENHBE
H e AEEEHEARTESENS
LEREZ— (BURRAEEEAMF
BLEERBATREMNER)
TEEBIRAERR o



e AR M EE

$ $E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Want Want China Holdings Limited

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2, EEEHBREE@E

(continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution plans
administered by the relevant authorities or third parties, where
appropriate, and defined benefit plans for its employees in places
where it conducts business.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group participated in defined
contribution plans for its employees in the Chinese mainland, Hong
Kong and Singapore, as well as certain employees in the Taiwan
region, pursuant to relevant labour laws and regulations, whereby the
Group is required to make contributions calculated based on a certain
percentage of the employees’ relevant wages or income. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available. There were no forfeited contributions for the defined
contribution plans as the Group’s contributions were immediately
vested to the employees.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit
that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined
benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. In
countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market
rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
(a) Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in
the income statement in employee benefit expense, except where
included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee service in the current year.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profit or loss as past service costs.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
income statement.

Remeasurement and actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in capital reserves in the
statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

(b) Bonus plan

The Group recognises provision for bonuses where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and
long-service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.24 Revenue recognition
Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells rice crackers, dairy products and
beverages, snack foods and other products. Sales are recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume discounts
based on aggregate sales over a period of time. Revenue from these
sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of
the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in accruals and other payables)
is recognised for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales are made with a credit term of 60 to 90 days, which is consistent
with market practice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of goods (continued)

A receivable is usually recognised when revenue recognised as this is
the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty products are
under the standard warranty terms. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate such returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amounts of products
returned were immaterial. It is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was recognised. The
validity of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion activities, the
customers did not provide a distinct good or service to the Group and
therefore recorded as a deduction of revenue.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value
of money.

2.25 Government grants

Incentive grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. And the grants
were recognised in the income statement when there are no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingencies attaching to such grants.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
presented by deducting the grant in calculating the carrying amount of
the asset, and recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable
asset as a reduced depreciation expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.26 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes,
see Note 26 below. Any other interest income is included in other
gains.

2.27 lLeases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

The Group leases various offices and warehouses. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods but may have extension options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants, and leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability cost and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.27 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing condition since third
party financing was received.

All land in the PRC is stated-owned and no individual land ownership
right exists. The Group acquired the right to use certain land. The
premiums paid for such right are treated as prepayment for operating
lease and recorded at cost as right-of-use assets, which are
depreciated over the lease periods using the straight-line method.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability, and

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of property and other equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of
office equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be of
low value. Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

Extension and termination options are included in few property
and equipment leases across the Group. These terms are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only
by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.28 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account;

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by the Company’s
shareholders or Directors, when appropriate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s functional currency is US$ and majority of its
subsidiaries’ functional currency is RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future purchases from overseas, and certain recognised assets or
liabilities, such as the cash and bank balances which are denominated
in US$ and other currencies (Note 16), and borrowings denominated
in RMB of the subsidiaries of which functional currency is US$. The
Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk because the
exposure, after netting off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign
exchange risk, is not significant.

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, the post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would
have been RMB7,547,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021:
RMB3,337,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of RMB denominated borrowings.

(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because the
equity investments held by the Group which are classified in the
consolidated balance sheets as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from these investments (Note 12) and will continue to monitor
price risk exposure.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly traded, the fair
value is determined with reference to quoted market prices. For the
Group’s equity investments that are not publicly traded, the Group uses
its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises from bank borrowings with
variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. In 2017, the Group issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed bonds
(“Bonds”) which were repaid in whole on 27 April 2022. The Bonds
and other bank borrowings bear interest at a fixed rate, which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details of fixed and variable
interest rates borrowings are disclosed in Note 30. The interest rates
and terms of repayments of bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 21.

The Group currently does not use any financial instruments to hedge
against its interest rate risk exposure. Management will continue to
monitor interest rate risk exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 10% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax would have been RMB3,634,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2021: RMB3,523,000) lower/higher respectively,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses on floating rate
borrowings.

Except for short-term and long-term bank deposits, the Group has
no other significant interest-bearing assets. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing assets resulted from
the changes in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are relatively low and not expected to change significantly.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The carrying
amounts of short-term and long-term bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables included in the consolidated
financial statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 120
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, all bank deposits and
cash and bank balances were deposited in the high quality financial
institutions without significant credit risk. Therefore, the Group believes
related credit risk is insignificant.

Most of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in checks by its
customers on delivery of goods. Credit sales are made only to
selected customers with good credit history. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

In relation to balances with subsidiaries, the Company assessed the
credibility of the subsidiaries by reviewing their operating results and
cash flow position periodically.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of inventories that are
subject to the expected credit loss model.

While bank deposits, cash and bank balances are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified the
gross domestic product and the unemployment rate of the countries
in which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors,
and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors. Trade receivables are written off where there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Want Want China Holdings Limited

MBERRER (&)
3.1 HERBEZEE)
(b) 1=HERE (E)

A2022F 38318 K%20215F3 A 31
B MERITERURERERIRITE
T ERETESREEARBRNSE
ZSRIMAE - Et - NEEEEEE
ERARBTRERK -

REBARND HERNTEERFH
EFUBREYXREE - GARKE
RLENEERFFLERE - A5H
RERRABRERREZSEZE
Wk o

ERMBRBEER  ARREBEH
ERHEEXERBERMAN - 7h
MBARNERE -

() EEHEERE

FEEHEFEMELENE S BYK
AXTARERBERERARR -

BERITER BERBIFEARTA
BTEBMBERELRESRNRE
RE - BEREFINBEBELIE
Ko

B BN

REEZBE BB REERFEINR
MR ETERBEREX - IR
NLRAE - BFEEZRURER
REFTENNRBEERE - A5t E
BAHEREBX  EZREFIZRER
HERRBSHNANXESE - |
B ERENHEENIERUAKRSE
BEENERELEABERRE - B
BRELIBRRURRGEEFEERE
WRIREE NN R BEBEZMNERM
RIEEMER - AEECEREAKERD
fm A AR 35 A9 B SR MY B A EARE A K
EXRRMAENEE  TRESELRH
ENEHRCEARRARELEEER -
B 5 FE UG 0 48 & 72 78 5 U =) B Bl
Eiz



e AR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEH I ERERAT

F &/

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

() Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Want Want China Holdings Limited

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021 was determined as follows for trade receivables:
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MBREEE (&)

3.1 UBEBREZEE)

(b) EHEE &)

() EEEERE )

BZ U (&)

BERIL » M202253831HK2021

FIABMHEZRUNRBEREEE
LU

More than  More than  More than  More than
1 day 60 days 90 days 120 days

Current  pastdue  pastdue pastdue  pastdue Total
[BS L Bk B Ikt Bk
REIH 1BLE  60RMLE  90ALE 120BME @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TRE ARETR AR®TR AR¥TR AR®TR
At 31 March 2022 ®202263A318
Gross carrying amount AEREE 666,733 301,066 26,500 17,070 21,470 1,032,839
Expected loss rate RHEER 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance EERAE 3,334 6,021 2,650 3,414 12,882 28,301
More than ~ More than ~ More than ~ More than
1 day 60 days 90 days 120 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
[k [k [k [k
REIH 1B L B60AKAE  90BMLE 120ALAE st
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR ARBTR ARETRT AR%®TR ARETR
At 31 March 2021 ®2021£3A318
Gross carrying amount BEAEE 711,040 137475 35,836 15,774 82,002 982,127
Expected loss rate RAEER 0.50% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 60.00%
Loss allowance EERE 3,555 2,750 3,584 3,155 49,051 62,095

Write-back of or provision for impairment of financial assets recognised

in profit or loss

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as administrative
expenses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the same line item.

During the year, write-back of impairment of RMB33,794,000 (for the
year ended 31 March 2021: provision for impairment of RMB6,638,000)
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Tt A 1B 7 B9 % B AL (1 (2] 2L 1
]
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33,794,000t (Bl £2021F3A31H 1k
FE | REREAKRY6,638,0007T)
REEWRERER °



e AR M EE

$ $E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Want Want China Holdings Limited

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HERBEE®)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk (continued)

() Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

The credit quality of the financial assets included in bank deposits,
cash and bank balances and prepayments, other receivables and
other assets is considered to be “normal” as they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk approximates their corresponding
carrying amount. The Group considers that expected credit loss is
minimal.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available. Details of the
undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Group are disclosed in
Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMEBRREE#E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEREEGE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEIEESE (E)
Between Between Between
Lessthan 3 months 1and 2 2and5 Over 5
3 months and 1 year years years years Total
MEAZE
AR 1FR 1Z22FR 2E5%R 5FLE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’0000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H
Borrowings (Note 21) & (H=E21) 3,317,290 39,493 1,650,532 1,904,460 - 6911,775
Interests payable FERFIR 13,941 22,429 19,868 2,512 - 58,750
Trade payables (Note 19) EC AEAGEIL) 1,106,946 = = = - 1,106,946
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEAE () 21,887 93,063 27,016 14,124 13,950 170,040
Accruals and other payables ~ FEst & AR H A
and other non-current REMFERE
liabilities 8 2,047,627 4,423 5,897 17,692 24,346 2,099,985
6,507,691 159,408 1,703,313 1,938,788 38,296 10,347,496
At 31 March 2021 R2021463A31H
Borrowings (Note 21) & (M=E21) 2,942,306 397,655 3,285650 3,219,937 - 9,845,548
Interests payable RIS 34,609 92,073 33,729 10,036 - 170,447
Trade payables (Note 19) BAEAH (HEE19) 876,384 66,897 - - - 943281
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEEE () 35,366 78,084 91,568 27,546 14,420 246,984
Accruals and other payables ~ FEstE AR E MM
and other non-current REMIERE
liabilities af 2,005,293 - 5,897 17,692 46,350 2,075,232
5893958 634,709 3416844  3,275211 60,770 13,281,492
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital,
which comprises all equity components, on the basis of the net
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of cash
and bank balances and long-term bank deposits divided by total equity
excluding non-controlling interests.

The net gearing ratios at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 were as
follows:
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MERBER (&)
32 EBEXRERERE

FEENERAETERR » RREAE
EREARELYE - UBRREHLHRM
REMAZERERENS - BEE
FRENERGBUUREERRE -

RTHESIARELRER  A5ET
REEREEXNTRENBREEE @
RREREER - BITHRIALEEE
LURE &7 o

HERNHMAT K AREFAF
ERRELRERHER (BERE
BRI D) o MERZENKREER
RITERRRBBRTERORERER
Ll RS (R JR B ) 715 -

H2022F3HA31HK202153A31
B BREZEEZRNT :

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREEF T
Total borrowings (Note 21) REX (PEE21) 6,902,214 9,833,112
Less: Cash and bank balances and W BERBITFERRRBRT
long-term bank deposits (Note 16) K (MgzE16) (17,002,819) (18,931,070)
Net cash REFEE (10,100,605) (9,097,958)
Total equity excluding non-controlling
interests R - TEIFEFIMER 16,633,595 14,898,977
Net gearing ratio RS EEL = (60.72%) (61.06%)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMEBERBTE @)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried TRBBEETE D FENGBERTH

at fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 by level of FREREINEmANEBE 2 AEE

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such 7202253 H31HK2021%F3H31H
inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as BRAFEARNERTE - SEigA
follows: REATVEBRBEERAUNT=E :

+  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets - MHEEEREBTEEMEN
or liabilities (level 1). WE CRETARE) (B1E)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are . MRTHEIBFBIENREN » Z
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as EEREENTEHEENEME
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). AR BEE BHImER) R E

#=EVRBER) (B28) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable - EERBBLIFMEBETHED

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). SEE N A (BFETEHRER
A) (5E3[8) o
The following tables present the Group’s assets that are measured at TRERKTEEMN2022F3A318 K
fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021: 2021 3A31HRAFEFENE
=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2[E E3E et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARMT T AR¥TR AR%T R
At 31 March 2022 7A202263H31H
Financial assets RATVEZEREMEE
at FVOCI WEERNERERE 104,023 - - 104,023
At 31 March 2021 A202143H31H
Financial assets RATEEBRHEMEE
at FVOCI WaRRRNEREE 92,935 - - 92,935

(a) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, and the price represents actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

(a) E1E2BIA

EERTSEENEMTANATE
REEEREXRANTSREIRK -
EREVENBNERRISZS E
B MEBEARBRIFTRZEEE
THERAERTSEREE  Zhi5
WARER - AEESENERHEE
NHEREAERELRE - HET
BEEEE1E -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses and deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in Note 22 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Variable consideration for volume rebates

The Group estimates the variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sales of products with volume rebates.

The Group’s volume rebates are analysed on a per customer basis for
contracts that are subject to a single volume threshold. Determining
whether a customer will likely be entitled to a rebate depends on the
customer’s historical rebate entittement and accumulated purchases
to date.

The Group updates its assessment of expected volume rebates yearly,
and the sales discount and rebate payables are adjusted accordingly.
Estimates of expected volume rebates are sensitive to changes in
circumstances and the Group’s past experience regarding rebate
entittements may not be representative of a customer’s actual rebate
entitlements in the future.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of rebate payables included
in refund liabilities is RMB446.1 million (31 March 2021: RMB372.5
million).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the Group’s
internal reports in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on their
reports.

The executive Directors consider the business from a product
perspective and assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment profit or loss, which is based on profit
before income tax without allocation of unallocated costs, net finance
income and share of losses of associates. Management assesses the
performance of rice crackers, dairy products and beverages, snack
foods and other products.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operations are mainly organised under four business
segments, including the manufacture and sales of:

- Rice crackers, including sugar coated crackers, savoury crackers
and fried crackers, gift packs;

- Dairy products and beverages, including flavoured milk, room-
temperature yogurt, yogurt drinks, ready-to-drink coffee, juice
drinks, sports drinks, herbal tea and milk powder;

- Snack foods, including candies, popsicles, ball cakes and jellies,
beans, nuts and others; and

- Other products, including mainly wine and other food products.

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and business activities are
conducted in the PRC and over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.

No revenue from the Group’s sales to a single customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for each of the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021.

(a) Segment information

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for
the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out as follows:

5.

B2k IEBEHE)

REEWEETEUTIIEEZES D
BaE SELEEREE

- REER SEBXEXS
BERCKBERAEDNE - KB
2 ;

- HmRE - BERERWwSFH -
EIRERLS - LB ~ BDERIN
gE - BOTER - BEEESR R
KRR

- hERER EEER KR
NEEMRER - T8 B1CH
Hith : &

- HttEm EBERBEEREAM

P - |
Enan °

REEEBIBI0% K W K EHE =
REBEIT R AEEEBI0% IR
EEGURHE -

HE2022F K2021E3A831A LS
FE MEBEREAEEE-ZTFHHE
ERNREGAREBBWEAI10%
Fo

(a) EBEH
AEBEE2022F3831HILFER

BRZE2021FE3A31B LEEMWEN
T :

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ202245 HZE20214F
3H31H 3H31H
LEFE IHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Rice crackers KE 5,592,257 5,582,611
Dairy products and beverages o R ER 12,873,473 11,011,323
Snack foods KERR 5,397,160 5,312,688
Other products HittER 122,001 91,778
Total revenue UGS 23,984,891 21,998,400
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WARSBEH®
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBBERGE)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as HZE2022F3A31BILEESBER
follows: mT
Year ended 31 March 2022
BENRFIANALFE
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages  Snack foods products Group
KR ARREHR #HERR HftEm 58
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AEETT ARET T AEETT
Segment results PHEE
Revenue s 5,592,257 12,873,473 5,397,160 122,001 23,984,891
Timing of revenue recognition Wt
Ata pointin time RE-KEY 5,592,257 12,873,473 5,397,160 122,001 23,984,801
Segment profit AHFE 1,077,108 4,039,882 1,071,254 1,794 6,190,038
Unallocated costs KABHRAK (733,225)
Finance income - net BEWA-F8 279,803
Share of losses of associates BB 0T8E (2,233)
Profit before income tax BRETEH AR 5,734,383
Income tax expense FrERER (1,545,269)
Profit for the year FERE 4,189,114
Other segment items included inthe st AKEZR A2 ER
income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE  BERREE
equipment 221,453 336,124 221,939 691 780,207
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RREEENE 27,357 74,446 35,654 7,974 145,431
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REWFITE - - = 1,174 1,174
Unallocated depreciation and NE - KERRE FREEER
amortisation of property, plant and BREEADRREREH
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets 15,900
Capital expenditure EXEX
Capital expenditure by segments BABEN 2 EARY 131,392 154,282 82,850 27,187 395,711
Unallocated capital expenditure RAMEREL 64,836
Total capital expenditure EREEY 460,547
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. KAaRHBEE B
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) DBBERGE)
Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, long-term bank PHEETEBERESRRTER R
deposits, investments in associates and other unallocated head office HRSRITIER - B QAR E  URH
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis. AR ENERRAREE  BZE
Segment liabilities exclude borrowings and other unallocated head EEREEERERE - o BEETE
office and corporate liabilities, as these liabilities are managed on a EEFRREMRIENELSRATE
group basis. & AZZEEREEERER -
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022 are as follows: MR2022F 33BN BEEREE
mT
31 March 2022
R202253A31H
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages  Snack foods products Group
KE AR KERR RfbER £5
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment assets and liabilities AHEEREE
Segment assets PHEE 2,492,742 7,108,069 3,013,382 119,725 12,733,918
Unallocated assets RIBEE 110,470
Cash and bank balances REREHER 11,265,819
Long-term bank deposits RERTER 5,737,000
Investments in associates BENARE 11,074
Total assets BEE 29,857,981
Segment liabilities HEE 1,448,942 3,326,008 1,306,918 30,487 6,112,355
Unallocated liabilities ROBEE 134,634
Borrowings B 6,902,214
Total liabilities Bag 13,149,203
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. BERSWBEEE)
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) ZDBBERGE)
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2021 is as HZ2021F3A31BILEESBER
follows: M
Year ended 31 March 2021
BEANFIAANALEE
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods products Group
KR AmREH EER HEbER £

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Segment results PHEE
Revenue s 5,582,611 11,011,323 5,312,688 91,778 21,998,400
Timing of revenue recognition Wt

At a point in time RE-REY 5,562,611 11,011,323 5,312,688 91,778 21,998,400
Segment profit AHHE 1,376,271 3,744 421 1,268,739 21,098 6,410,529
Unallocated costs KABHRAK (674,351)
Finance income - net BEWA-F8 260,782
Share of losses of associates BB 0T8E 2,118)
Profit before income tax AT SR AR 5,994,842
Income tax expense FEHER (1,847,161)
Profit for the year FERE 4,147 681
Other segment items included inthe st AKEZR A2 ER

income statement
Depreciation of property, plant and NE - BERRERE

equipment 230,895 348,440 229,880 855 810,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESERE 42730 46,156 22,120 4,946 115,952
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REYEIE - - - 1,200 1,200
Unallocated depreciation and NE - BERRE FRELERE

amortisation of property, plant and FEERDBREREH
equipment, right-of-use assets and

intangible assets 14,455
Capital expenditure EXEX
Capital expenditure by segments BABED CEREE 67,948 114,418 57,156 20,996 260,518
Unallocated capital expenditure RAMEREL 56,792
Total capital expenditure EREEY 317,310
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. WARSBEH @
(a) Segment information (continued) (a) DBBERGE)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2021 are as follows: MR2021F3A3M BN BEERERE
T
31 March 2021
2021535318
Dairy products Other
Rice crackers  and beverages Snack foods products Group
KR LEREH HERE EftEm &8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Segment assets and liabilities IHEERER
Segment assets PHEE 2,436,583 6,546,993 3,087,476 119,104 12,190,156
Unallocated assets ROMEE 108,485
Cash and bank balances RERBTAN 16,081,070
Long-term bank deposits RERTER 2,850,000
Investments in associates BENARE 13,307
Total assets aEE 31,243,018
Segment liabilities HEE 1,581,804 3,169,901 1,529,104 28,480 6,309,289
Unallocated liabiltties FOREE 128,977
Borrowings (6 9,833,112
Total liabilities Baeg 16,271,378
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. BERSWBEEE)
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers (b) BEHEEFEXHEE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts AEECRIUTEREFEANE
with customers: f&:
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 202145
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Contract liabilities — rice crackers BREEB-KR 295,195 392,686
Contract liabilities — dairy products EHasE-AmrEs
and beverages 678,570 780,703
Contract liabilities — snack foods EHEBE-KERR 275,501 376,633
Contract liabilities — others EHaE-—Hitn 6,326 6,761
1,255,592 1,556,783
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the TRITRERREEAA FAER IS E
current reporting period related to carried-forward contract liabilities. SEE SN EEENSEE -

For the year ended

BZEUTAHILEEE
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
38318 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®TR ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was included — F#IFTA A B EAGIE BZ Kz
in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year:

Rice crackers KR 392,686 440,608
Dairy products and beverages AR ekt 780,703 774,964
Snack foods KEIR M 376,633 366,074
Others Hib 6,761 3,005
1,556,783 1,584,651
The Group selected to apply the practical expedient and not to AEEREREKETS  UWEFE
disclose remaining performance obligations as all related contracts BTWENET  RAEHEBESHIN
have a duration of one year or less. FHA—FHUT -
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. ¥ BIERDE
Furniture,
machinery Vehicles,
and aircraftand  Construction
Freehold land Buildings equipment  transportation i progress Total
KA GR-BE  RERB
E i) B R RERIR kEIR a3t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTn  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR
At1 April 2020 HR0205451R
Cost B 39432 528495 10,085,611 270,800 12540 15,806,040
Accumulated depreciation ZitfE - (218695)  (6614379) (233,723) - (9035,060)
Net book amount RETE 3943 3,007,997 347,283 37077 125,241 6,770,080
Year ended 31 March 2021 HENNEIRNALEE
Opening net book amount ENEERE 3943 3,007,997 3471283 10 125,241 6,770,980
Addions g5 - 5972 119817 6,055 256022 417,866
Transfer upon completion THRER - 147203 102501 1604 (251,39) -
Disposals (Note 30) B (z30) - (4443) (23501) (1,00) - (26.994)
Depreciation (Note 24) & (k) - (205922) (608,245) (6822) - (820,989)
Exchange differences EiiZE (612) (1674) (74) (32) (360) (3422)
Closing net book amount EABERE 38,820 3,089,133 3,061,061 36,922 109,505 6,335,441
At1 April 2021 H0NE4R1A
Cost s 38,820 545263 10,005,187 270,058 109505 15,868,803
Accumulated depreciation ZitfE - R3B10)  (6.94409) (233,136) - (9533362)
Net book amount ERZE 38,820 3,089,133 3,061,061 36,922 109,505 6,335,441
Year ended 31 March 2022 BEANTIRNALEE
Opening net book amount FOEERE 38,820 3,089,133 3,061,061 36,922 109,505 6,335,441
Addifons 5 22 12,481 174,752 10,568 264,433 459,496
Transfer upon completion TREER 11,288 2,692 159,805 1,390 (175,475) =
Disposals (Note 30) B (H330) - (1,109) (20,750) (3,442) - (25,301)
Depreciation (Note 24) & (k) - (208,707) (576,451) (6,949) - (192,107)
Exchange differences EiZE (1,289) (1,439) (13) @) (610) (4,053)
Closing net hook amount EABERE 49,081 2,893,052 2,794,104 38,486 198,153 5,073,476
At 31 March 2022 2022838315
Cost B 49,081 5334051 10,199,968 21,707 19853 16,008,960
Accumulated depreciation Zithe - (2440,009)  (7.405,264) (189.221) - (10,035484)
Net book amount RETE 49,081 2,893,052 2,794,704 38,486 198,153 5,973,476
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The majority of the buildings of the Group are erected on leasehold
land and land use rights (Note 6 and Note 9). The buildings comprise
factories, offices, sales offices and warehouses.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, depreciation expenses
of RMB478,477,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021:
RMB488,004,000) were charged in ‘cost of sales’, RMB25,625,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB27,262,000) in ‘distribution
costs’ and RMB288,005,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021:
RMB305,723,000) in ‘administrative expenses’.

There was no pledge on property, plant and equipment of the Group as
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT

W% - BBREE (E)

FEBARIEFEREEL K+
o E A £ (HRE6 R MIRE9) - %%
BFEERE  BWLZE  HERSE

kER -

HZE2022F3A318LLEE » ITER
TH o BRIEERAIFREARYE
478,477,000t (Bl Z2021F3A31H
IEFE : ARY488,004,0007T) @ A
[ D 8ER AN | P2 88 A R 25,625,000
T (B Z2021F3831HILEE :
AR¥27,262,0007T) RR[{THE
Al 85 A R#288,005,0007T (&
Z2021F3A31BLEEE : ARY
305,723,00007T) °

F2022F3HA31HK202153 431
B NEBEMEIKBEMYE - #3
NEkfE -
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7. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BEME

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

H%E20224 HZE20214F

3H31H 3H31H

LEFE IHFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEF T

Investment properties REME

Opening balance FAER 36,414 37,944
Addition whE 39 -
Depreciation (Note 24) T8 (ffaE24) (1,174) (1,200)
Exchange differences & X ERE (694) (330)
Closing balance FREER 34,585 36,414
Cost PR 52,362 53,146
Accumulated depreciation e (17,777) (16,732)
Net book amount BREFE 34,585 36,414

Investment properties represent offices, sales outlets and warehouses
held by the Group in Taiwan region erected on freehold land including
the cost of land and buildings, and in Chinese mainland erected on
leasehold land with lease period of 50 years including the cost of
buildings.

Net lease rental income amounting to approximately RMB2,078,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB2,086,000) for the year ended
31 March 2022 was related to the lease of investment properties.

The fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2022 was
RMB90,367,028 (31 March 2021: RMB92,855,445). The valuation was
determined using the sale comparison approach and was within level
2 of the fair value hierarchy. Sales prices of comparable properties in
close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input to this valuation approach is
price per square foot.

RENFEEAEBERBHEMSAE
FERAFEL B FEZOPLE - 85
EFERER  UEELHREFH
B URERBESRAMSEEES
RSOFMEEL B FRENETF &
TR -

HZE2022F3A31 8L EEMEER
WA FREHARY2,078,0007T (B
Z2021F3A31HLEEFEE : AR¥
2,086,0007T) © DEBEBREWENE
BEF5E -

72022538318 » REMWENRF
BEA ARY90,367,0287T (2021534
318 : AR¥92,855,4457T) %%
HEDFAEEHELIEERARTE
BEERFE2RA - LT LB EE
BEJRTIEBME (MYEEB EZET
AR - hAEEREERMALEST
FRIEH ©
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8. EREEE
Goodwill Trademarks Software Total
EES [l B4 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR ARETTR ARBTTR AR®TR
At 31 March 2020 1202053731A
Cost A 2,561 31,538 9,001 43,100
Accumulated amortisation ESp £ - (25,155) (4,918) (30,073)
Net book amount REFE 2,561 6,383 4,083 13,027
Year ended 31 March 2021 HENMFIANALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 2,561 6,383 4,083 13,027
Additions 5 - 669 252 921
Amortisation charge (Note 24) HHER (M24) - (1,083) (1,610) (2,693)
Exchange differences EXER - (86) - (86)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 2,561 5,883 2,725 11,169
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3531A
Cost N 2,561 31,855 9,253 43,669
Accumulated amortisation ESig £ - (25,972) (6,528) (32,500)
Net book amount EESE 2,561 5,883 2,725 11,169
Year ended 31 March 2022 BEN2FIANALEFE
Opening net book amount EOREFE 2,561 5,883 2,725 11,169
Additions iR - 531 481 1,012
Amortisation charge (Note 24) BB (M24) - (1,099) (388) (1,987)
Exchange differences EXER - (173) - (173)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 2,561 5,142 2,318 10,021
At 31 March 2022 #2022%3F31A
Cost BN 2,561 31,618 9,734 43913
Accumulated amortisation ESig £ - (26,476) (7,416) (33,892)
Net book amount EHFE 2,561 5,142 2,318 10,021
Amortisation of RMB1,987,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021: %520225?3:5 STHIEFEMBAR
RMB2,693,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022 has been charged "%:1,987,0007C (2202143431 H 1
to ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income statement. FE : AR%2,693,000T) EELGE

Wz MTHRER A -
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9. LEASES
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating

HE
(i) REEEEREXREINEE

GREERERIIRTHREEHE

to leases: M€ 2E -

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HELH R b ARE 853,015 877,365
Buildings and warehouses BFREE 151,294 218,421
Equipment and others Bk EM 2,375 2,665
Total 5T 1,006,684 1,098,451
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEES 51,795 124,475
Current lease liabilities REBEEERE 109,779 106,150
Total lease liabilities HEEEHE 161,574 230,625

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the financial year ended 31
March 2022 were RMB55,559,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021:
RMB194,379,000).

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 3.1(c).

NEZE202253A831 B LB BFEEE
AEEERNE A ARYEES5,559,0007T
(BZE202153A31BLLEE : AR
194,379,0007T) °

HEEENIBITEERNKE
3.1(c) °
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9. LEASES (continued) 9. HE®
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement (i) REERBRRERNSRE
The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts FEWERIITTIEESERENS
relating to leases: N
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R AREEF T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FHAREERE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE it 7 Lt 5 A AE 23,062 28,770
Buildings and warehouses EFREE 120,972 86,738
Equipment and others FEREA 3,410 1,287
Total st 147,444 116,795
Interest expense FEFIX 7,299 4,232
Expense relating to short-term and EHEMRREEHESENEX
low-value leases (included in cost GFTASHERE® » DH#HEARR
of sales, distribution costs and THHAX)
administrative expenses) 103,373 158,442

The total cash outflow for lease payments in the year ended 31 March
2022 was RMB235,282,000 (for the year ended 31 March 2021:
RMB245,282,000). Among the cash outflow for lease payments, the
lease payment related to right-of-use assets was RMB131,909,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB86,840,000), which was
presented in cash flows from financing activities and the lease payment
related to short-term and low-value leases was RMB103,373,000
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB158,442,000), which was
presented in cash flows from operating activities.

HZE2022F3H831BLEE -
ENRBERELAEAARE
235,282,0007T (B Z2021F3831H
IEFE : AR#245,282,0007T) - 38
ENFBRERHT  EEAEEEMR
BEWHEENRA ARY131,909,000
T (B Z2021F3831HILEE :
AER#86,840,0007T) ' ;T ARE
FEHEENESRE  HEHRKE
EEHERBNEETRAARE
103,373,000t (B £2021%F3H31H
IEFE : AR%158,442,0007T) @ =f
ARETHEENBRSRE ©
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10. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 10. BELAFRE
The Group’s associates are all unlisted and individually immaterial. AEEZHENRYAFE LT RER
The aggregated amounts of the Group’s share of these associates’ FTBEKR - AEBSIHHLEHE LT
results are as follows: ZEBEBRINOT ¢

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

3H31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Opening balance FH4ERR 13,307 15,425
Share of losses, net LS o R (2,233) (2,118)

Total #Et 11,074 13,307
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11. @RI AEN
Financial
assets at Financial
FVOCI assets at Total
BRATE amortised
FERHEM cost
2HKERERE  RBHEEAE
HWEmEE BRHSREE e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMT T AR¥T T
31 March 2022 72022563 A31H
Assets as per balance sheet BESBRNEE
Financial assets at FVOCI RATEEAHMEE RS
(Note 12) IR SR E E (MiEE12) 104,023 - 104,023
Trade receivables (Note 14) B S EWGK (FiEE14) - 1,004,538 1,004,538
Other receivables and other HitfE R R EthE &=
assets (Note 15) (FFEE15) - 278,285 278,285
Long-term bank deposits RESRITERN (F4EE16)
(Note 16) - 5,737,000 5,737,000
Cash and bank balances RERBTER
(Note 16) (FFZE16) - 11,265,819 11,265,819
Total s 104,023 18,285,642 18,389,665
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REHR A
RRARAY
cRAaE
RMB’000
ARBT T
31 March 2022 R20225F3AH31H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBRNER
Trade payables (Note 19) g Z AR (IEE19) 1,106,946
Accruals and other payables (Note 20) FERTE R HAth IR (B EE20) 2,046,153
Borrowings (Note 21) &k (fEE21) 6,902,214
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE (M) 161,574
Other non-current liabilities HibIERBER 37,198
Total #a5 10,254,085
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11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 11. &RTRERE)

Financial
assets at
FVOCI Financial Total
RAYE assets at
FEBEM  amortised cost
THWERTER  IREHEEAR
NEREE KRHSHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
31 March 2021 7202153 A31H
Assets as per balance sheet BESBRNEE
Financial assets at FVOCI RAFEZERAHMEE KGR
(Note 12) IR SR E E (MiEE12) 92,935 - 92,935
Trade receivables (Note 14) B 2GR (FiEE14) - 920,032 920,032
Other receivables and other HitfE R Eth & E
assets (Note 15) (FFEE15) - 352,818 352,818
Long-term bank deposits RERITIER
(Note 16) (FFzE16) - 2,850,000 2,850,000
Cash and bank balances RERBITER
(Note 16) (FFZE16) - 16,081,070 16,081,070
Total 4G 92,935 20,203,920 20,296,855
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
FCARAY
TREE
RMB’000
ARBFT
31 March 2021 R202153H31H
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEESBRNER
Trade payables (Note 19) g Z AR (EE19) 943,281
Accruals and other payables (Note 20) FESTE A R HAth B3R (B EE20) 2,005,293
Borrowings (Note 21) &Rk (ffEE21) 9,833,112
Lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBE (M) 230,625
Other non-current liabilities HiIERBER 118,979
Total Bt 13,131,290
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVOCI

The financial assets at FVOCI of the Group are stated at fair value and
include the following:

12.
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BAFEBAAM2ER IR
SREE

AEERAFEEBAMEEmKERT
EEE@EEEE‘%LX’D\SFEEUEEQE@%LX
THE:

Year ended Yar ended

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

B ZE202245F HZE20215F

3A31H 3A31H

LFEE IHFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT T

Opening balance FHER 92,935 31,761
Additions NE 25,280 51,710

(Losses)/gains recognised in other REMZEKEAERD

comprehensive income (Note 18) (B518) Wz (fEE18) (11,142) 11,486
Exchange differences [EHZEE (3,050) (2,022)
Closing balance FoREERR 104,023 92,935

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature.

The financial assets at FVOCI included the following:

LR ARE R A B IEER R
FEBBHMEEWECR AR
FEERRZEREBRBME -

RATEEBHMEENGETERENE

REEEEUATSE !
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
202245 20214
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Listed equity securities FiERES 104,018 92,930
Unlisted equity securities JELEHRESES 5 5
Total Fab 104,023 92,935

The financial assets at FVOCI are denominated in the following

BRATEEBEMEENGETERENE

currencies: R T 5 MPIE -
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Japanese Yen Ht 104,018 92,930
New Taiwan Dollar HAaK 5 5
Total s 104,023 92,935




e AR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F &/

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

Want Want China Holdings Limited

13. INVENTORIES 13. 8
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T
Raw materials and packaging materials R#IEI K &9 2,002,744 1,443,040
Work in progress THm 208,710 210,882
Finished goods SR 833,369 728,882
Goods in transit ERPEY 181,361 146,015
Total 5t 3,226,184 2,528,819

The cost of inventories recognised and included in ‘cost of sales’
amounted to approximately RMB13,237,497,000 for the year ended 31
March 2022 (for the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB11,392,876,000).

The Group recognised losses of approximately RMB42,661,000 (for
the year ended 31 March 2021: RMB43,262,000) in respect of the
losses on obsolete and write-down inventories for the year ended 31

March 2022 (Note 24).

HZE2022F3A31BLLEE » AL
SFATHERKRINFEREANBAR
#£13,237,497,0007T (B £202153 8
3MHILEFE : AKM11,392,876,000
JT) °

BE2022F3A31BHLEE » X&EE
MREFERMBEEMEREELN
AR#42,661,0007 (B £20215638
MMALFE : AKRM43,262,0007T)
(FizE24) ©

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES 14. EHEKR

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20224 20214

3A31H 38318

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREET T

Trade receivables =Y AlEN

from third parties -ERE= 1,017,726 966,438
from related parties (Note 32 (b)) — PR RS 75 (FT=E32(b)) 15,113 15,689
Subtotal NEF 1,032,839 982,127
Less: provision for impairment W ORERE (28,301) (62,095)
Trade receivables, net B SR — 35 1,004,538 920,032

Most of the Group’s sales are on cash-on-delivery basis whereas
those made through modern distribution channels are normally on
credit terms ranging from 60 to 90 days (for the year ended 31 March

2021: 60 to 90 days).

AREBAIBMHEEURZNBENS
NET BRERERIHERENEER
F—REZF60EZEI0RNEES
(B Z2021%F3HA31HLFEE : 60H
Z90[H) °
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

14.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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BHEMR (&)

A20225F3A31HKR202153 431
H > BSERKURENZZHHNERE

ZHWT

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20224 20214

38318 38318

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREET T

Within 60 days 60H ™ 427,418 386,828
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 240,569 316,862
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 336,799 202,668
181 to 365 days 181%365H 18,461 30,926
Over 365 days 365H Lk 9,592 44,843
Total s 1,032,839 982,127

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group’s trade
receivables, before provision for impairment, are denominated in the

A2022F 38318 K%2021F3 A31
B ROBREERER 225 ERR

following currencies: LT SIE#EHE
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
RMB ARHE 885,436 872,827
us$ ETT 42,150 41,926
New Taiwan Dollar A 88,240 54,415
Other currencies HibE#s 17,013 12,959
Total FEoh 1,032,839 982,127




F &/

FH I ERERAT

e AR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ANNUAL REPORT

14.

15.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of trade receivables as mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Details about the calculation of the allowance
are in Note 3.1(b).

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can
be found in Note 3.1.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
ASSETS

Want Want China Holdings Limited

14. BHERHE)

FEEEZRUSNRAENREESR
BERAEAQNFERES -

AEERKE ABNERERRSE
ERALINE S BYCRREE °
AEBYESEEMERRERIE
e

AEEEAEBHBERELEDEIR
WL At ETEEREBL  &F
EREE SRR ERAFERES
EiEEE - BREBETENFEER
FMf5E3.1(b) °

FHEZBURERAEERGERE
PR ~ SNEE R R A R AR E R
BRMIEES.1 -

15. FARHRIA HtERHREAGOEE

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Prepayments — advanced payments FE(TRRIE

to suppliers — [ R TR IR 662,707 414,697

Amounts due from related parties FEUR BE s 5 R E
(Note 32(b)) (FF&E32(b)) 516 675
Recoverable value added tax K ER 118,581 116,915
Prepayment for income tax B ERARE 32,218 17,183
Deposits B 24,541 33,590
Others Hity 253,228 318,553
Total HBET 1,091,791 901,613

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

REEBREERERP S RAM
WA REEREE A FERS
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16. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK

ANNUAL

16. RUBITHERRESRBITHER

BALANCES
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREET T
Long-term bank deposits RERITIER 5,737,000 2,850,000
Cash at bank and on hand ROTKFERS 8,722,769 8,054,020
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITER 2,543,050 8,027,050
Cash and bank balances BeRIRITER 11,265,819 16,081,070
Total Hab 17,002,819 18,931,070

The long-term bank deposits and cash and bank balances are

REBRITERRRERBITFERAT

denominated in the following currencies: FEHEEE :
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3HA31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTF T
Long-term bank deposits RERITER

RMB ARHE 5,737,000 2,850,000

Cash and bank balances BERBITER
RMB AR 8,731,951 15,481,596
us$ ETT 2,267,478 348,186
Other currencies Hibg#s 266,390 251,288
11,265,819 16,081,070
Total st 17,002,819 18,931,070

REPORT

ARBEERHSLFTEHLRE
o BARBABRBIIEREARYE
AP E - A BB M 2 INE
EFRARRBIFRR o

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international market.
The conversion of RMB into foreign currency and remittance of RMB
out of the PRC are subject to the rules and regulations of exchange
controls promulgated by the PRC authorities.

RSN EERRESEERD
RO RBEFTERAR RS RRT
FRRAVAREE

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying values of the long-term bank deposits and cash and bank
balances as mentioned above.

AEBRMBTERNREENEE
BEXRAEAQNFEMRES -

The carrying amounts of long-term bank deposits approximated their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. B=X

Number of

ordinary shares,
issued and Share
fully paid: capital

BEITR
BEEERY &S
RMB’000
AR¥T

Shares of US$0.02 each BREE0.02E T2 KR H

At 31 March 2020 72020563 A31H 12,415,184,135 1,866,355
Shares buy-back g (338,260,000) (45,203)
At 31 March 2021 "202163A31H 12,076,924,135 1,821,152
Shares buy-back Bz EEE (177,396,000) (22,949)
At 31 March 2022 7202263 H31H 11,899,528,135 1,798,203

The movement in issued share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2022 was set out as below:

The Company acquired 177,396,000 of its own shares for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (for the year ended 31 March 2021:
338,260,000 of its own shares) through purchases on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and these shares were cancelled
thereafter.

The total cost to acquire the above 177,396,000 shares was
RMB819,493,000 and RMB22,949,000 and RMB796,544,000 have
been deducted from share capital and retained earnings respectively
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: The total cost to acquire the above
338,260,000 shares was RMB1,601,078,000 and RMB45,203,000
and RMB1,555,875,000 have been deducted from share capital and
retained earnings respectively).

AABREZE2022F3A831ALEE
SEITRASBHIMT :

HZE2022F3A3MBLEEE » &2Q
AERAEEBHEAREMAERLAA
BEHAF177,396,000 1R R 2 (&
£2021F3A3MBLEEE : EX 5
338,260,000 8% 13) - MAREKRHE
N2 B -

W B +3t177,396,000 8% PR 15 Fr 2 1+
ZHBRA B ARS819,493,0007T
WA BIARERREEFRAREE
22,949,000t K A R#796,544,000
TT(EBZE2021F3A31ALEE | K
B 338,260,000 B 15 A 2 1+
BB AR®1,601,078,000
T XD RBRARREREF
MARM45 203,000t R ARHE
1,555,875,0007T) ©
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18. RESERVES 18. f#fi
Currency
Share Capital FVOCl  realignment ~ Statutory Retained
premium reserves Teserves reserve Teserves Subtotal eamings Total
#O7E
igelt
EEhE

BveE  EAER AENER ENERER  iEER Nt REER 5
Nofes ~ RMBOOO ~ RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RWBOOO  RMBOO  RWBOOD  RMBONO
Wi ARRTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARBTR

As at 31 March 2020 R2020F3831A 462130 (7,309212) 11,558 (643,274) 3336324 (4142474) 17548801 13406327
As at 1 April 2020 R2020E4817 462130 (7,309212) 11,55 (643214) 3336324 (4,142474) 17548801 13406327
Profit for the year FEARE - - - - - - 4157809 4157809
Shares bupback hpeE 17 . - . - _ o (IEEETS) (155687
Change invalue of financial ~ RATEEBEM
assets at FVOC| PENETEN
SHEERERY 12 - - 11,486 - - 11,486 - 11,486
Appropriation to stafutory HiEyad
reserves - - - - 230,649 230,649 (230,649) -
Remeasurements of post- EffERIER2
employment beneft obligations ~ E3fxTE - 134 - - - 134 - 134
Dividends paid %HRE . - . - _ o SM%) (351125
Currency translation differences EHERZE - - - 569179 - 569179 - 569179
As at 31 March 2021 RNANF3F31A 462,130 (7,309,078) 23044 (74095) 3566973  (3,331,026) 16408851 13077825
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18. RESERVES (continued) 18. fi#fm (&)
Currency
Share Capital FVOCI  realignment  Statutory Retained
premium reserves  reserves reseve  reserves Subtotal  earnings Total
BT
Eaif
EEhE

BiaE  EAEG  CROGE EREEGR LRGSR Nt REER it
Nofes ~ RMB'000  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBO0O
Wit ARRTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARWTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR

As at 31 March 2021 R01EIAMA 462130 (7,309,078) 23,044 (74,095) 3566973  (3,331,026) 16,408,851 13,077,825
As at 1 April 2021 R01E4R1A 462,130 (7,309,078) 23,044 (74005 3566973  (3,331,026) 16408851 13,077,825
Profit for the year EEAE - - - - - - 420065 4,202,655
Shres buy-heck kh%E 7 - - - - - - S (1965)
Change invalue of financial ~~ RATEFBEM2ENE

assels 2t FUOC) SENSREREERD 1 - - . - ) - e
Appropriation to stafutory UREIERE

reserves - - - - 246,044 246,044 (246,044) -
Remeasurements of post- BHERER B2

employment benefit obligations - 69 - - - 69 - 69
Dividends pid %HRe - - - - - -6 (1761,045)
Currency translation differences EHERZE - - - 123,574 - 123,574 - 123,574
As at 31 March 2022 RANEIFANA 462,130 (7,309,009) 11,902 494719 33017 (2,072481) 17,807,873 14,835,392
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18. RESERVES (continued)

(@) Share premium

Pursuant to the Cayman Companies Law and the Articles of Association
of the Company, share premium of the Company is available for
distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency test on the Company
and the provision of the Articles of Association of the Company.

(b) Capital reserves

This represents capital reserves arising from the share swap
transactions during the Group reorganisation in 2007 and the
remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations. For further
details on the post-employment benefits, see d) below.

(c) Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies registered in
the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves, which are to be
appropriated from the net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. PRC companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to statutory surplus
reserves, before distribution of their post-tax profits of the current year.
A company may discontinue the contribution when the aggregate sum
of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its registered
capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’ production
operations, or to increase the capital of the companies. In addition, a
company may make further contribution to the discretionary surplus
reserve using its post-tax profits in accordance with resolutions of the
Board of Directors.

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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18. fiEfl (&)

(a) RMDHE

REFMEFSAERSARANLF
FRRAA - ARTANRDEEIHD
RFRR - AR RBAWEGED
RS EANGC VPN ERES T 3 92
MR o

(b) ERFEE

L RMN2007 F A KB EARETRG
ERXGRENTERBRENEME
EENENGHE - BERBEENN
E—LSHE  F2HRTX

(c) ZEERE

PEDEEERERETEEMO QA
1F BEE MBI K T 2 |AVFFE
(EEUAEFENRFABRR) P - R
DIRAE T RESSE AR - R
DS T RERES - IREER
BEHRBRAEMRYL - FEILQF
R7IKE FENBRRERE - AR
FEERBREERFNEN10% - B
REEERGRBENBNEBEEM
BARM50%E » DB A LB -
EEREREE R T AERE QNG
B BARAMNEELESEMDF
MER - I RRESTHRE
= RAAEAEBRBERF BB
BerRBELE-SHR -
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18. RESERVES (continued) 18. W (&)

(d) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans

The Group operates defined benefit pension plans in Taiwan. The
Group engaged independent valuer to carry out a valuation on post-
employment benefits. The present value of the obligations and costs
of the defined benefit plans were calculated using the projected unit
credit method.

The income statement charge included within operating profit includes
current service cost, interest cost, past service costs and gains and
losses on settlement and curtailment.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position
with a corresponding debit or credit to capital reserves through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Balance sheet obligation of RMB10,251,000 for defined pension
benefits for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021:
RMB11,270,000) was recognised in other non-current liabilities.

The fair value of the pension funds assets and net defined benefit
liabilities were as follows:

(d) BANER -REZHETE

AEEREEBET -HERAEZHRK
it AREZREB M HEMEES
RABNETHE - REZRFEN
EBERANREUTRYECESER
o

AFARERBNNRERIHBEE
HRB A ~ FISAHA « BERBE K
KUK EERBRHEE

AR EZSHBRANGTEIMEENWERHF
2 BREGERE EELRNFE
(FTEEFARESRFEENFERN
Ee8 URFEEENER(TE
B ARESRFEENFEINEN
28 REREMEMRRR AR
RoOWREESHEEBEMEENK
BREREERBEENREEA - &F
T ERNEAHBTIEENSBEER
Ho

BZE2022F3A31BLEEE A F
BRAHENEEEBRETARY
10,251,0007T (2021538318 : AR
#£11,270,000T) REMIEREBEE
PR o

RHESEENDIFERREZDF
aENT :

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

3HA31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBT T

Present value of defined benefit AEZREXKRE

obligations (44,897) (48,643)
Fair value of pension funds assets BRESEELATE 34,646 37,373
Net defined benefit liabilities AESHFEME (10,251) (11,270)

The level of funding was 77.168% as at 31 March 2022 (31 March
2021: 76.831%). The Directors do not consider the net defined benefit
liabilities as set out above to be material.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plans was
carried out by Professional Actuary Management Consulting Co., Ltd.,
an independent qualified actuary in Taiwan region, with 31 December
2021 as the valuation reference date. The principal assumptions of the
actuarial valuation were:

A2022%63A8318 - kT A
77.168% (20214383108 : 76.831%) °
BEEVAREB LR EZHTFEERS
B

HAEZ R ERAHNBEEMED
HAEEMNENBLSERBEMER
TEEEERROERAITMEL » &
E2ZH0HA2021F128318 « &
BEMAERTANEZE/BRNT -
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18. RESERVES (continued)

(d) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans (continued)
(1) Discount rate and rate of increase of long-term salary

The present value of the obligations and costs of the defined benefit
plans were calculated using the projected unit credit method.

For the purpose of the actuarial valuation, discount rate of 0.500%
to 0.625% for the year ended 31 March 2022 (for the year ended 31
March 2021: 0.375% to 0.500%) was adopted. It was assumed that
the expected rate of increase of long-term salary for the year ended 31
March 2022 was 2.000% (for the year ended 31 March 2021: 2.000%).

(2) Withdrawal rate
(a) Mortality rate

The 5th life table as adopted by the insurance industry in the Taiwan
region was used in the actuarial valuation.

(b) Disability rate

The disability rate used in the actuarial valuation was 10% of the
mortality rate.

(c) Turnover rates

The turnover rate used in the actuarial valuation was determined
based on the historical turnover rate from the relevant subsidiaries’
records and taking into account expected future trends:

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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18. fiEfl (&)

(@) EBIGER - RESHHE H)
(1) FREREHFIEHE

REZmTEINERRRANRELE
BEMETEE -

BEMGERBAEZE 20226383181
FEMNTRES0.500%%0.625% (B
Z2021F3A31BLEFE : 0.375%F
0.500%) ° [k - BEGHERZEZE
2022F 3831 H L FENREIF A
FiE A 2.000% (BE2021F3H31 B
IEFE : 2.000%) °

(2) BiR=
(a) ZETE

REMERRT &ERBRREESR
RANELDZRERR

(b) BEE

REAEMRANRERDIET RN
10% °

(c) HBERIE
BEMAEMERNSRBEDS RAE6E
FLRABENBRBERLEBRRES
Mg

Turnover rate

Age Fig BB =R
20 or less 208 AT 8.0%-10.0%
25 25 6.0%-7.0%
30 30 4.0%-7.0%
35 35 3.0%-5.0%
40 40 0.0%-3.0%
45 45 0.0%
50 50 0.0%
55 55 0.0%
60 60 0.0%

Turnover rates not shown above were determined by interpolation.

RO 2 BB RARNETKEE -
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18. RESERVES (continued) 18. fi#fm (&)
(d) Post-employment benefits — defined benefit plans (continued) (d) RBANER - REZRFEGE)
(2) Withdrawal rate (continued) (2) BREEE
(d) Early retirement rate (d) EBiFRIrE
The early retirement rate used in the actuarial valuation were the BEGMEMEANBRRKER()
higher of (1) 1.5 times of the turnover rate and (2) the following: BRZEZ15ERQ)TIZERSE !
Early
retirement rate
Age’ FHe B RKRE
Z Z 15.0%
Z+1to 64 Z+1E64 3.0%
65 65 100.0%
Note: B
* Z was the earliest retirement age of the relevant employees. * ZAEBEINRR TRRFR -
It was also assumed that employees who did not retire upon reaching BB E6Sm R BN E THEE
65 years old would retire when they reach 68 years old. 68ER R IR ©
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19. TRADE PAYABLES 19. BHEMN®R
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREEF T
Trade payables to third parties EEE=F 2B 5 EIR 1,106,946 943,281
As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the ageing analysis of the 7202263 HA31HK%2021%3 A 31
trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: B BEFEMARERZEZFH) WIR
BT
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
Within 60 days 60H A 964,391 817,867
61 to 180 days 61£E180H 115,625 97,920
181 to 365 days 181£365H 6,077 9,896
Over 365 days 3650 KL £ 20,853 17,598
1,106,946 943,281
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximated their fair values NEEERERA  ESENAZWNERR
as at the balance sheet dates. BEEAENFEES -
20. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EERREMEMSR
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 20214
3H31H 3HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
Accruals EsTER 1,497,266 1,478,961
Salary and welfare payables EBAEHEREFRIE 657,090 521,343
Other taxes and levies payable HEARERBE 401,353 405,254
Deposits & 271,891 298,074
Others Hith 276,996 228,258
Total fah 3,104,596 2,931,890

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables approximated
their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

REESERA  BHERRHEME
NHORAEEE D FEAS -
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21. BORROWINGS 21. ER
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20214
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
Non-current FERE
Bonds (Note(a)) & (fiEE(a)) - 3,273,214
Long term borrowings REMER — EIK
— unsecured (Note(b)) (F¥EE (b)) 3,546,364 3,219,937
3,546,364 6,493,151
Current B
Bonds (Note(a)) &% (Fizt(a)) 3,173,167 -
Short term borrowings AR — IR
— unsecured (Note(c)) (FF=E(c)) 182,683 3,339,961
Total borrowings HBETR 6,902,214 9,833,112
Note (a): FfaE(a)

In 2017, the Group issued US$500,000,000 guaranteed bonds which were
repaid in whole on 27 April 2022. The Bonds were issued with a principal
amount of US$500,000,000, bearing interest at a fixed rate of 2.875% per
annum, payable semi-annually and listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The offering price for the Bonds is 98.878% of its principal
amount. The value of the liability, taking into account of the transaction costs of
RMB17,875,000, was determined upon issuance of the Bonds.

Note (b):

As at 31 March 2022, long term borrowings were mainly comprised long term
borrowings of US$260,000,000 from Mizuho Bank which will be repayable in
May 2023 and long term borrowings of US$300,000,000 from Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited which will be repayable in May 2024.

Note (c):

As at 31 March 2022, short term borrowings were mainly comprised of
JPY1,720,000,000 short term borrowings from Mizuho Bank, RMB80,000,000
short term borrowings from Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
JPY 180,000,000 from Daishi Hokuetsu Bank and JPY76,000,000 from
Iwatsuka Confectionery Co., Ltd.

R2017F » AEBRTEERES
500,000,000 7T » I B R20225F4 A27
BEBEE - X€%5H500,000,000E T
ZEHFERIT WR2.875% 2B EEF
Rt R BEB¥EXNARREBHERS
FERATR LT - BEH2BREEBARER
©%8298.878% ° L RRZRAARE
17,875,000t » BEZEECREER
TREE -

FisE(b) :

M2022F 38318 » REERETEGER
Mizuho BankER{3 & Hi{&§5%260,000,000
7<7E (ER2023F5 A EE)REFE

T(BEB)ERAANENRBMER
300,000,000%713 (#2024 F5 B EE) ©

FMizE(c) :

M2022% 38310 BHERE
BIEMMizuho BankEEHE 15 =
1,720,000,000H 7T » A E TRIRITE
BHEBERARYS0,000,0007T @ K
& 2 Bl#Daishi Hokuetsu Bank& &%
HEH/AFHESH180,000,0008 TR
76,000,000H T °
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21. BORROWINGS (continued)

The effective weighted average interest rates per annum of borrowings
at the balance sheet dates are as follows:

Want Want China Holdings Limited
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21. ERE

REEEERBOBRERMETRY
EFIEMT

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20225 20214

3H31H 3A31H

RMB AR 1.80% 3.82%
Us$ ESM 0.96% 0.76%
Other currencies HithE# 0.63% 0.63%

At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Group’s borrowings were
repayable as follows:

A20225F3A31HKR202153A31
B AEENEBREESEHENT -

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 20214
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBTT

Within 1 year 1FE LR 3,355,850 3,339,961
Between 1 and 2 years 1225 1,643,967 3,273,214
Between 2 and 5 years 2ZE55F 1,902,397 3,219,937

6,902,214 9,833,112

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are not materially different to
their fair values, as the market interest rates are relatively stable. The
fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a rate based on
the borrowing of similar terms and conditions and are within level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy.

MR TSR REAHRTE - ARORE
BEEAQAFEREEREZR - AFE
TR A 2 RS RUR TR R AR BV B =R
NERBCHBERSAREAERBR
DR EBRFE2W -
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21. BORROWINGS (continued) 21. ERE

FEEERNWREBEATIEBERE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were denominated in

the following currencies:

i :

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20225 20214

3H31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREET T

us$ ES 6,719,530 8,981,166
RMB ARHE 80,000 770,000
Other currencies HihE#s 102,684 81,946
6,902,214 9,833,112

The Group had the following undrawn bank borrowing facilities as at

REEEBEXRBAKREE TIIRER

the balance sheet date: RSRITIE R RS ¢
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 202145
38318 38318
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREET T
US$ facilities ETRB 7,975,753 5,191,899
RMB facilities AR¥mIE 7,965,734 3,922,035
Other facilities Hibmid 23,257 24,243
15,964,744 9,138,177
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22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 22, RIEFRGR
FRELEFMEHEERAGBE(RRE

BEGIUER BB EAEKE) W&

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: BT :
Deferred income tax assets: EERBHREE :
Other
temporary
Tax losses differences* Total
Hith
HIEEE TR ERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR%T T
At 1 April 2020 20204818 66,190 221,346 287,536
(Charge)/credit to the ERelER
consolidated income statement (Z8H) &R (14,843) 101,184 86,341
Exchange differences EHEE - (110) (110)
At 31 March 2021 A2021%F3831H 51,347 322,420 373,767
(Charge)/credit to the ERelER
consolidated income statement (xtH) &2 46,311 (27,064) 19,247
Exchange differences EHESE - (228) (228)
At 31 March 2022 A2022%F3H31H 97,658 295,128 392,786
Deferred income tax liabilities: EIEFTBHREARE
Withholding
tax Others Total
FEMB Hith #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR%T T AR%T T
At 1April 2020 720204818 214,244 134 214,378
Charge to the consolidated ERelER
income statement x| 365,000 - 365,000
Transfer to tax payable ERERENHIE (231,111) - (231,111)
At 31 March 2021 2021%F3831H 348,133 134 348,267
Charge to the consolidated EHRERER
income statement XK 181,778 - 181,778
Charge to the other EHEHM2ENE X HE
comprehensive income - 17 17
Transfer to tax payable ERERENFIE (363,445) - (363,445)
At 31 March 2022 7A2022%F3H31H 166,466 151 166,617

Other temporary differences mainly represent the unrealised profits,

accrued expenses and provisions.

* HttERMERTEREARERRN
- ERERAKEE -
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22. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 22, EBEFRBRE)

Deferred income tax liabilities: (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 March 2022,
the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB137.2
million (31 March 2021: RMB131.7 million) in respect of losses
amounting approximately to RMB548.8 million (31 March 2021:
RMB527.2 million) that can be carried forward against future taxable
profits. These tax losses as at 31 March 2022 amounting to RMB93.7
million, RMB41.0 million, RMB142.9 million, RMB178.4 million and
RMB92.8 million will expire in year 2022, year 2023, year 2024, year
2025 and year 2026 respectively.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the earnings of certain
subsidiaries incorporated in PRC for the year ended 31 March 2022
that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future. As to
the other subsidiaries incorporated in PRC, the Group has no plan
to distribute the respective retained earnings as at 31 March 2022.
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB314,984,000 (31 March 2021:
RMB275,188,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax and the related unremitted earnings of subsidiaries amount to
RMB6,299,681,000 (31 March 2021: RMB5,503,762,000) as at 31
March 2022.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payments of
dividends of the Company to its shareholders.

EEFFEHREE : (&)

RETRBEBARREFBIBMER
RIS - BIEmEENFIEE
BMERIELISHERE - R2022F
3A318 » REBF A AE LUK K
REMBABENEIBNARYES.488
Z5T (202153H318 : AR#5.272
B UAERELESHREEARYE
1.372{87t (20215 3H31H : AR
1.317487T) » R20225FE38318 2%
BEEAAREIITOET - ARK
41008 T - AR¥1.429BT * AR
1 784E TR AR 2808 T - #§
2 BIA2022% ~ 20234 ~ 20244
20255 [ 2026 @i ©

HE2022F3A31B L FEMP R
ML ETHE A RBERTRER
RAOJZzBAmMEZ S 2ENHE
BRIELFIEHAE - i EFEM
RYMEMHBLARMES  ~&E
W BN DIRN2022F3 31BN E
HEREEF - H2022%F3H318 -
WARMBINBERIELFEHARE
AR#314,984,000 T (202143 A
318 : AR%275,188,0007T) * M
RN B ARIMNRDIREF B AR
6,299,681,0007T (2021 3H31H :
AER#5,503,762,0007T) °

BERRIKE AR TR EILEFEB
®’ER-
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022F BZE2021F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Net foreign exchange losses &5 FEE (2,171) (2,972)
Donation expenses 1BEERE (44,363) (20,484)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of property, HEYE + EBERHRER
plant and equipment and land T 1 5 FRHERY (B518)
use rights = (4,727) 230,137
Gain on early termination of lease REBZIEHELOWE 1,405 -
Income from long-term bank deposits REIRITIF AT E 141,717 73,775
Income from compensation BEEUWA 63,214 -
Others Hitb 8,262 8,662
Total et 163,337 289,118
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24. EXPENSES BY NATURE 24. BMYEESMAX
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE2022% HZE20214F
3A31H 3A31H
LHFE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Raw materials used and changes in 2 AR
inventories REFESH 10,119,820 8,582,276
Promotion and advertising expenses EERESRX 688,756 544,624
Employee benefit expenses including ETEFBX (BEEEMHS)
directors’ emoluments (Note 25) (Pt EE25) 4,403,366 4,027,181
Transportation expenses EwX 977,386 888,703
Water, electricity and energy expenses KERAEERX 655,707 587,597
Depreciation of property, plant and Y3 - MR NRBITE
equipment (Note 6) GED) 792,107 820,989
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
(Note 9) (FfF5E9) 147,444 116,795
Amortisation of intangible assets mEERH
(Note 8) (HfzE8) 1,987 2,693
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REVEITE
(Note 7) (FfEE7) 1,174 1,200
Rental expenses for low value and KEEREHESHSHAX
short-term lease (Note 9) (FfF3E9) 103,373 158,442
Losses on obsolete and write-down PREE I T EHURUES 18
of inventories (Note 13) (Fg7E13) 42,661 43,262
(Write-back of)/provision for impairment & 5 EWFURE (&) B %E
of trade receivables (Note 3.1(b)) (FfFEE3.1(b)) (33,794) 6,638
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 4,150 4,300
Machinery parts and maintenance HREHR
expenses RERHX 350,331 299,928
Others HAth 850,972 787,298
Total of cost of sales, distribution costs ~ $§& KA + 2 EERARR
and administrative expenses 1THE A 19,105,440 16,871,926
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 25. ETiEFIAX
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HE20225F HZE20215
3H31H 3H31H
IEFEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFTTT
Wages and salaries TENFS 3,481,186 3,399,414
Pension and other social welfare EREREMHEERER 733,958 414,592
Other benefits HAtg R 188,222 213,175
Total including Directors’ emoluments B IR EE N 4,403,366 4,027,181

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the Group
included three Directors (for the year ended 31 March 2021: four)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 34.
The emoluments payable to the remaining two (for the year ended
31 March 2021: one) highest paid individuals during the years are as

(a) EEBSHFHAL

AEBERSHFHNOBALEE=
HES (BE2021F3A831HILEFE -
mE) » HFHMENEI42 MBI D
PR RIBEAFERNTEGH S
(BZE20215F3A3MHLEEE | —F)

follows: BEHFATHMESOT -

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE20226F HZE2021F
3H31H 3H31H
ILFE HFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F T ARET T
Salaries e 2,331 608
Discretionary bonuses B ETEAL 1,906 1,181
Other benefits* HAbg > 540 187

Employer’s contribution to pension EEEIERES T EINHERK
scheme 159 -
4,936 1,976

In the band of: EENF

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,0005& 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t £3,000,0005& 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,00058 7T 1 -

*

Other benefits include housing and car allowances.

* HiBF BB ERE KSR -
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26.

FINANCE INCOME - NET 26. MBEKA — B
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE2022% HZE20215
3A31H 3A31H
ILEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREET T
Finance cost RE R AR
— Interest expenses on borrowings —ERAEREX (157,029) (204,147)
— Interest expenses on lease liabilites —AEEEF SR (7,299) (4,232)
(164,328) (208,379)
Finance income BE A
— Interest income on cash and -BHERBITERRE
bank balances LN 444,131 469,161
Net finance income il E R B 279,803 260,782
27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27. FREWRA
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
B E2022%F 220215
3H31H 3A31H
IEEE IEFEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Current income tax EEISHL
Current income tax on profits FERABEH
for the year EHAPTIS R 1,382,738 1,568,502
Deferred income tax EIEFTSH
Withholding tax on dividends from FEIRANB L ERE
Chinese mainland subsidiaries 2RI 181,778 365,000
Origination and reversal of tax losses ~ FIEEEREBEERDN
and temporary differences EERERE (19,247) (86,341)
Total et 1,545,269 1,847,161
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27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate in the
Chinese mainland of 25% (for the year ended 31 March 2021: 25%) as
follows:

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

27. FRiRRBA#E)

7 £ [ R BT 15 54 B0 R B P 83 4k 9 &L
HEZPEIBREER E25% (B2
2021F3A31HILFE © 25%) 5T EH
ERTTEENERENT ¢

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE20225 BZE2021F
3A31H 3HA31H
LEFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Profit before income tax BR P45 554 A K E 5,734,383 5,994,842
Income tax calculated at statutory EHPEIEREER R EMN SR
tax rate in the Chinese mainland 1,433,596 1,498,711
Effect of different tax rates and MBARTEREREERRNTE
preferential tax rates of subsidiaries (33,053) (11,802)
Expenses not deductible for RS R X
tax purposes 25,705 24,878
Additional deduction of research and E/MIB A X
development expenses (85,961) (86,799)
Tax loss for which the deferred income I EREZIELE TSR EEM
tax assets was not recognised BIEEE 23,204 44,608
Reversal of deferred income tax assets B ERAEIREIEEBAHREEMN
which could not be realised according ~ IEFEFTIEREE
to management expectation - 12,565
Withholding tax on dividends from FEBRAE R RRE ZTENR
Chinese mainland subsidiaries 181,778 365,000
Income tax charge FRr{SHi 32 1,545,269 1,847,161

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from payment of Cayman Islands
income tax.

Enterprises incorporated in the Chinese mainland were subject to
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) mainly at rate of 25% (during the year
ended 31 March 2021: 25%) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Enterprises incorporated in other places are subject to income tax at
the prevailing rates of 0% to 30% during the year ended 31 March
2022 (during the year ended 31 March 2021: 0% to 30%).

AAFRBERASHE QR A EHEH
SEMELAEREZERAT
It AR EERRANAERENS
B o

BE2022F3A31BLLEE - AR
BRI NS EER25% (B2
20213 B31HILEE : 25%) BZEH
NI EFTER (TREREHR) -

MEZE2022F38318LLFE » Hfb
WAEMR LN EEEREMBTH
88 E0%E30% (Bl E20215F3 8
31ELEFEE : 0% ZE30%) BaFiE -
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27.

28.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

According to the new Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC, starting
from 1 January 2008, a reduced withholding tax rate of 10% will
generally be levied on the immediate holding companies outside
the Chinese mainland when their Chinese mainland subsidiaries
declare dividend out of profits earned after 1 January 2008. A lower
5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate holding
companies of the Chinese mainland subsidiaries are established in
Singapore or Hong Kong, holding at least 25% interest in the Chinese
mainland subsidiaries and recognised as the beneficial owner of the
Chinese mainland subsidiaries according to applicable tax treaty

arrangements and the PRC tax laws.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

e AR M EE
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27. FRiRRBA#E)

BEPEAEFCERESRE A
2008F1A18#E - MPESEIIEBE
B2 B8 EE A T B 2 5] Ek2008
FI1ATBEFMHREBFABENRE B
BIERARBERIZ10%HZEMATE
N - REBEANRWBEZHER P
B RERERE @ MABRBEAHRB L
ANEBERAAEHIEREBR
Mo WEHREREBEAMBLTROR
25%% 0 URFETENBLATZ
wABAED  ABEAS5%EN
BERTREEA -

28. HERET
(a) EXK

BREABANBANAERSZFEAE
EFBBRARFEERTERER ZM

ordinary shares in issue during the year. BEFHHEE -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022% HZ2021%
3A31H 3A31H
HFE HEE
Profit attributable to equity holders KA T ERIFE AEGRE
of the Company (RMB'000) ARET ) 4,202,655 4,157,809
Weighted average number of ordinary ERTERRIMEFIH
shares in issue (thousands) (FR) 11,953,156 12,288,575
Basic earnings per share BREREBF RMB35.16 Cents RMB33.83 Cents
AK¥35.165 AR#33.83%
(b) Diluted (b)y #F

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per

share since the Company does not have dilutive shares.

HRAQRNLEETRD - SRS
BRNESREANBNMES -
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29. DIVIDENDS 29. kR
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZE2022F HZE2021F
3HA31H 3HA31H
LTFEE IHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTF T
Interim dividend paid of US0.83 cent ENPHRESREBER
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: 0.83%AL (B E20215F
US0.65 cent) per ordinary share 3A31HIEFE : 0.6554L) 629,920 521,051
Proposed final dividend of US2.10 cents ~ #ER{S R EERZER
(for the year ended 31 March 2021: 210l (B 220215
US1.46 cents) per ordinary share 3A31BLLFE : 1.46%4L)
(note (a)) (FzE(a)) 1,692,256 1,188,950
Proposed special dividend of US2.94 RIS IRESREBR2.94%E4
cents per ordinary share (note (b)) (FfE (b)) 2,369,158 -
4,691,334 1,710,001
Note: BfeE

(@) On 28 June 2022, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of US2.10 cents (for the year ended 31 March 2021: US1.46
cents) per ordinary share, totalling RMB1,692,256,000 (for the year
ended 31 March 2021: RMB1,188,950,000) for the year ended 31 March
2022. The proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2022 is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of this report. The payment of the proposed final dividend is
to be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General
Meeting. The financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

(b)  On 28 June 2022, the Board recommended the payment of a special
dividend of US2.94 cents per ordinary share was recommended,
totalling RMB2,369,158,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022. The
proposed special dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022
is calculated based on the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of this report. The payment of the proposed special dividend is to
be approved by the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General
Meeting. The financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to
RMB1,761,045,000, comprising the final dividend RMB1,131,125,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the interim dividend of
RMB629,920,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022, which were paid
in September 2021 and January 2022 respectively.

(@) M2022F6H28H » EEEEEK
FE E2022F3A31BLEEER
REBRESRITEM2.10=L (B
Z202153A31HILLEE  1.46%
i) - HE ARHE1,692,256,0007T
(B £20215F3831HLEEE : A
FR#1,188,950,0007T) ° %2022
FIAZMBLEFEMNEIRRARE
DERBRAREBHERTROAE
it E o RITZKREBBREZEZH
RADBIMRBAFAG LERER
o MBERRLBERRZENSR

Bo

(b) F2022%F6H28H » EEFEBEIK
HHRREEREBER2.94%4l
H3+ AR%2,369,158,0007T ° HE
20223831 B IE FEMEIRYS B
BREDZEBRAREAHERHITR
HHEEFTE  RITZEIREZE
BERAATARRBFAG LER
Rt o B FE R 3R 30 48 R BR B2 BE A

RE o

REBZE2022F3A31B EEEIRMNH
BREAARYE1,761,045,0007T &
EDRIR2021F 98 K 202251 AR
FTHEZE2021F3831HIEFEMR
R B 5 AK®1,131,125,0007T
NEZE2022F3831BLEFEENTH
R E AR #629,920,0007T °
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30.

NOTES ON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

Want Want China Holdings Limited

30. H&RERME

(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EEEEMNED
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZ2022 HZ2021F
3A31H 3A31H
EFEE EFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T
Profit before income tax BRFTS B AT RIS 5,734,383 5,994,842
Adjustments for: BUTEEELRE
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W3 - MBRBEITE (6
equipment (Note 6) 792,107 820,989
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —RAREEIE (ME9)
(Note 9) 147,444 116,795
— Depreciation of investment properties —REWEITE M)
(Note 7) 1,174 1,200
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) — &L & E# 8 (1:18) 1,987 2,693
— Losses/(gains) on disposals of property, ~ —BREYIE - #ESRRER T HhE AL
plant and equipment and land use REREEECER,/ ()
rights and right-of-use asset (Note 23) (Mi=¥23) 3,322 (230,137)
— Losses on obsolete inventories and -REFERFEMRES (HE24)
write-down of inventories (Note 24) 42,661 43,262
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for - EZRWRE B ERE),BE
impairment of trade receivables (Note (HfEE24)
24) (33,794) 6,638
— Interest income on cash and bank -BERBITEFRFIRWLA
balances (Note 26) (Hiz¥26) (444,131) (469,161)
— Interest income from long-term bank —-RESRTERFEWHA
deposits (Note 23) (Pt EE23) (141,717) (73,775)
— Interest expenses (Note 26) —FIEB % (FFEE26) 164,328 208,379
— Share of losses of associates (Note 10) — B E & A R B8 (F9EE10) 2,233 2,118
6,269,997 6,423,843
Changes in working capital: LELESEE
— (Increase)/decrease in inventories —FE0EMm,EY (740,026) 174,086
— Increase in trade receivables — B S REFE N (50,712) (79,916)
— Increase in prepayments, other —FafRIE  HitERRREMEE
receivables and other assets byl (230,057) (63,734)
— Increase/(decrease) in trade payables -G SRR, (D) 163,665 (149,811)
— Decrease in contract liabilities -BHNEaERY (301,191) (27,868)
— Increase in accruals and other payables ~ —EFFBRREMENRREMIERE
and other non-current liabilities BEEM 128,611 525,247
Cash generated from operations SEELNES 5,240,287 6,801,847
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30. NOTES ON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued)

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of leasehold land and
land use rights and property, plant and equipment comprise:

30.

ANNUAL REPORT

RéRBRME (@)
(a) HEELENES )
RESRBRY  EEEELHBRT

e AR LA M 3€ - HEER MR RV PR
BRRESRE

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022F BZE2021F
3A31H 3A31H
ItEE IEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBT T
Net book amount of property, M - HEEREE
plant and equipment (Note 6) BREDFE (FiEE6) 25,301 28,994
Net book amount of leasehold land FRE L & + i FARERRE
and land use rights FE - 37,674
(Losses)/gains on disposals of land BEELHFAEUARYE
use rights and property, plant and HERRBEEZ
equipment (&18) Wz (4,727) 230,137
Proceeds from disposals of property, BEEYZ  HMEREHEUR
plant and equipment and land use T AREFTSRIE
rights 20,574 296,805




e AR M EE

2 1 2 $ $& Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEBIn ERERAT Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

30. NOTES ON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (continued) 30.

(b) Net cash reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net cash and the movements in

RenexRMeE @)
(b) BHEFREHEKR

REHEFIFF25I & HENREFER

net cash for each of the periods presented. REFEHEEE DN -
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
Net cash REFH 2022 2021
BZ20224F BZE2021F
3A31H 3A31H
LLFE LEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T
Cash and bank balances BHEeRIRITER 11,265,819 16,081,070
Long-term bank deposits REIRITER 5,737,000 2,850,000

Borrowings — repayable within one year 85— ER—FRAEE (BFEEX)
(including overdraft)
Borrowings — repayable after one year £ —ER—FREE

(3,355,850) (3,339,961)
(3,546,364) (6,493,151)

Lease liabilities HEEE (161,574) (230,625)
Net cash HEFHE 9,939,031 8,867,333
Cash and bank balances RERRITER 11,265,819 16,081,070
Long-term bank deposits REMRITIER 5,737,000 2,850,000
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BERAE -EEMER (3,517,424) (4,585,780)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BERARE —FBRR (3,546,364) (5,477,957)
Net cash REFE 9,939,031 8,867,333
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30. NOTES ON STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (continued) 30. BeRERMEE)
(b)  Net cash reconciliation (continued) (b)y BREFRHEEEKRGE
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
RftEE HEEDELNEE
Cash Long-term  Borrowings  Borrowings
and bank bank due within due after Lease
balances deposits 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
RER REBT R-FRIE RA-FRIH
BIER E HfER MR HEERE o3t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARERTR  AR®TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Net cash as at 31 March 2020 7420205383184

B4EH 17,256,927 - (87085  (8293566)  (118912) 8,257,364
Cash flows B4E (1132014) 2850000 (152457)  (1412.752) 86840 230617
Recognition of right-of-use assets B2 HEEE - - - - (198,553) (198,553)
Foreign exchange differences  JMNE 3% (43,843) - 31,890 592,286 - 580,333
Other non-cash movements ~ EfiFR£ %% - - (2632309) 2,620,881 - (11,428)
Net cash as at 31 March 2021 42021383181

ReFH 16,081,070 2,850,000 (3,339,961) (6,493,151) (230,625) 8,867,333
Cash flows Reng (4,654,842) 2,887,000 1,168,659 1,473,913 131,909 1,006,639
Recognition of right-of-use assets i AEEE - - - - (55,559) (55,559)
Foreign exchange differences ~ JMEFFE (160,409) = 74,978 224,534 = 139,103
Other non-cash movements HEittkReEy = - (1,259,526) 1,248,340 (7,299) (18,485)

Net cash as at 31 March 2022  R202263A318 M1
ReEE 11265819 5737000  (3,355850)  (3,546,364)  (161574) 9,939,031
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31. COMMITMENTS 31. &if

(@) Capital commitments (@) BEAREIE

Capital expenditure contracted for at 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021 but not yet incurred is as follows:

2022 3H31HK2021E3A31
H CEAEBRBEENERREN

T :

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 20214
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Contracted but not accounted for: EENERALR :
— Property, plant and equipment — Y - EBRRERE 28,450 26,980

(b) Operating lease commitments
Operating lease commitments — as lessor

The Group leases out certain office premises, plant and equipment
under operating lease agreements. The leases have various terms
and renewal rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
under these operating leases are as follows:

(b) KEHERE

AEHERIE - BHBEA

FEERBEEHEHREAETH]
DNEYE - BN RE - ZFHER
ETEFHRBEVER - RIEZEZE

EHE RRKEERKESBEN

T

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20224 20214

3A31H 3H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEF T

No later than 1 year 1R 608 4,839
Later than 1 year and no later 1225

than 2 years 460 608
Later than 2 year and no later 2B 3F

than 3 years 460 460
Later than 3 year and no later 3E4F

than 4 years 460 460
Later than 4 year and no later 4Z55F

than 5 years 460 460

Later than 5 years 5L 2,185 2,645

4,633 9,472
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BABMARS
The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng, AEBzREERFBETHEE
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group, and his (FREBZEERTHRAB) REX
families. B °
(@) Transactions with related parties (a) EEEEBFMIRS
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
HZE20224 EHZE2021F
3A3MBLFE 3A31BLFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBT T
Sales of goods HEEW
— a minority shareholder of —REE—-BEHE AT
a subsidiary of the Group Z—BLERER 25,946 25,006
— a company controlled by the —REBEEEREGEHIE
Chairman of the Group Z—ERFE] 780 -
Total sales of goods SHE S BT 26,726 25,006
Purchases of goods and services BERMM KRR
— a company in which a Director of the —A&EE—REZHEEL
Group has beneficial interest EEZ—BRAT 2,926 4,804
— a minority shareholder of a subsidiary —Z<&E—REHE AT
of the Group Z—BLERE 528 1,787
— a subsidiary of a company which -—BHAEEEEEREE
is beneficially owned by the Z AT Z—REWELRE
Chairman of the Group 1,310 1,310
— a company controlled by the —REBEEFEREEGIE
Chairman of the Group Z—ERE 66,901 45,849
Total purchases of goods and services BB R & RIGE 71,665 53,750
Advertising expense EEREX
— a company controlled by the —REBEEERETEHIE
Chairman of the Group Z—ERE] 2,228 2,128
Rental expenses of buildings EFHEESMEX
— companies controlled by the - REEEEREEHIE
Chairman of the Group 2R A 55,697 54,982
Rental income of buildings BFHESWBA
— companies jointly controlled by the - REEEEREHLE
Chairman of the Group PEHIRE 2 A A 1,791 1,791

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the above transactions
are carried out in the ordinary course of business and in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

ARBEBRA LATFRBEEHE
B AR I AR 5 A8 B 15 o 2 IR AR

5 e

REPORT
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. BAMARSE)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EREBEESMAEER
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 202145
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Trade receivables (Note 14) B 5 UK (FEE14)
— a minority shareholder of —REE—-EHEATE
a subsidiary of the Group 22— BDERR 15,113 15,689
Other receivables (Note 15) HAb WK (BiEE15)
— subsidiaries of a company which - FAEEEXFEEREEZ
is beneficially owned by the NRINMIE AT
Chairman of the Group 516 675
Other non-current liabilities HittIkReaE
—a company jointly controlled by - FREEETEREHLE
the Chairman of the Group ZEHE 2 —BRE 8,045 8,965
Other payables HAEAS R
— a company jointly controlled by the - REBEEEREEHRRE
Chairman of the Group g2 —B AR 919 919
Lease liabilities HEAE
— subsidiaries of a company which - FrEBTXEEREEZ
is beneficially owned by the ATRNHEAR
Chairman of the Group 54,975 107,347
The receivables and payables are unsecured, bear no interest and BURFHEEASRARER £ BRI
without fixed repayment terms. There is no provision held against EEEEBERR - WERBE S EWR
receivables from related parties (31 March 2021: nil). FAEH S (2021F3H310 | )
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Key management compensation

Key management includes Directors (executive and non-executive)
and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to key

management for their services is shown below:

32. WBARS E)

(c) FEEBEAEHE

ANNUAL

FTEEBAEERES(HTESHA
HRHUTEBIRSREBABR - HE
EERASHWRBEARELEEN

BEmT :

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

20224 20214

3A31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Fees we 5,195 5,480

Salaries e 7,813 5,939

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 99,585 129,642

Other benefits HibigER 4,878 4,808
Employer’s contribution to EEHRIKEFE

pension scheme HIEEER 668 419

Total et 118,139 146,288

REPORT
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33. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 33. ZAFIREABE  WEER  He

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE MERREHEST
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company KAREERER
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20224 20215
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB'OO_O
AR¥ET T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W3 - HEEE RIS 922 35
Investments in subsidiaries RIB A RMIRE 5,637,129 5,833,597
5,638,051 5,833,632
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUSFH B A B IRIE 3,412,541 5,952,653
Prepayments, other receivables FEFIE ~ HittEWE R
and other assets Hih&ERE 998 1,222
Cash and bank balances BeRIBITER 160,076 24,765
3,573,615 5,978,640
Total assets HEE 9,211,666 11,812,272
EQUITY ez
Equity attributable to equity EATEEHEA
holders of the Company b
Share capital &N 1,798,203 1,821,152
Reserves i (Note(a))
(Hit(a)) 4,611,790 4,278,103
Total equity R 6,409,993 6,099,255
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Due to subsidiaries FEAS B A B YRR IE = 298,994
- 298,994
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FE{S BB 2 B RYRIE 2,683,631 4,650,403
Accruals and other payables FEST & AR H AR 118,042 93,620
Borrowings = = 670,000
2,801,673 5,414,023
Total liabilities HERE 2,801,673 5,713,017
Total equity and liabilities HREZREE 9,211,666 11,812,272

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of

Directors on 28 June 2022 and was signed on its behalf.

KAREEABRCHEETN2022
FoH28HHE  URRESFEH

2,
Tsai Wang-Chia Chu Chi-Wen
SR REX
Director Director
EE EFE
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33. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW
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- FRFREARE  PWEHER - -Be

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE mMERRFEFEEE#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Income statement of the Company NI EES
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BZ2022F BZE2021F
3A31H 3A31H
LEFE IHFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Dividend income BREWA 3,232,029 5,846,230
Other income Hblg A 22,923 17,737
Other losses, net HithEE — F58 (10,847) (56,755)
Administrative expenses THEAR (152,544) (109,179)
Operating profit EEFE 3,091,561 5,698,033
Finance income RE U A 3 46
Finance cost RLE AR (2,409) (29,973)
Finance cost — net RYE AR — R ER (2,406) (29,927)
Profit before income tax BR 88 AT R 3,089,155 5,668,106
Income tax expense FriShi & - -
Profit for the year FEFE 3,089,155 5,668,106
Profit attributable to: FEARRIE :
— Equity holders of the Company —ARNAERFEA 3,089,155 5,668,106
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33. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 33. FNFHRERFAE  WKEER -He
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE mERRGREE (&)
COMPANY (continued)

Cash flow statement of the Company AARRERER
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021

HZE20225 HZE20215F
3B31HILEE 3A31HILEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities &EEFENRESHE

Cash used in operations EEMANRS Note (b)
Bfat (b) (115,696) (63,385)
Interest paid 2FE (2,409) (31,135)
Interest received 2RFIE 3 46
Net cash used in operating activites ~ &EEZBFTANZEERS (118,102) (94,474)
Cash flows from investing activities REZEBNRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEYIE - HeEERERE
equipment (1,023) -
Received from/(payment for) loans to  FEUL~ (FEA) Bt B A
subsidiaries (EEN 2,540,112 (237,673)
Dividends received from subsidiaries  [E1H{/& A =W EXHI R 2 3,232,029 3,410,266
Net cash generated from investing RETBHEENFRE
activities 5,771,118 3,172,593
Cash flows from financing activities FEEENHREESHRE
Shares buy-back B 10 Bl (819,493) (1,601,078)
Dividends paid to equity holders of mARRERFEA
the Company THRE (1,761,045) (3,511,235)
Repayment of borrowings BEMER (968,994) (1,413,512)
Proceeds from borrowings BB FE = 1,015,793
(Payments for)/proceeds from A RERZ
borrowings from subsidiaries (B FrissE (1,966,772) 2,417,809
Net cash used in financing activites ~~ BEZBFTANFRES (5,516,304) (3,092,223)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and R&RBESSEWE M,
cash equivalents (B #5E 136,712 (14,104)
Cash and cash equivalents at FONEERBESEEY
beginning of year 24,765 47,584
Exchange losses & 7 &8 (1,401) (8,715)

Cash and cash equivalents atend FRHBRER
of the year BEEEY 160,076 24,765
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33. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 33. ZLAFIIEABE  WEER e

STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE RERRGEREE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MizE(a) AL BEEEE S
Share Currency Retained
premium  realignment earnings Total
43518 BEWES| REBR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR AR¥FR
As at 1 April 2020 M20205F481H 462,130 (103,983) 3,780,663 4,138,810
Profit for the year FEFHE - - 5,668,106 5,668,106
Shares buy-back BiER - - (1,555,875)  (1,555,875)
Currency translation differences EXEHER - (461,703) - (461,703)
Dividends paid TARE - - (3,511,235)  (3,511,235)
As at 31 March 2021 MR202163H31H 462,130 (565,686) 4,381,659 4,278,103
As at 1 April 2021 20214810 462,130 (565,686) 4,381,659 4,278,103
Profit for the year FEFH - - 3,089,155 3,089,155
Shares buy-back I pEEE - - (796,544) (796,544)
Currency translation differences EXEHER - (197,879) - (197,879)
Dividends paid TRRE - - (1,761,045)  (1,761,045)
As at 31 March 2022 202263 H31H 462,130 (763,565) 4,913,225 4,611,790
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33. BALANCE SHEET, INCOME STATEMENT, CASH FLOW 33. FAFRERBS  WER  Re
STATEMENT AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE mERREFEEE#E)
COMPANY (continued)

Note (b) Cash used in operations MizE(b) EEFARE
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
20225 20214
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Profit before income tax B Fr i85 A0 R 3,089,155 5,668,106
Adjustments for: BUTRIEELRAR
— Depreciation of property, — ¥ - WBREBETE
plant and equipment 126 17
— Interest income —FEUWA (3) (46)
— Interest cost —FEXZH 2,409 29,973
_ Dividend income —REKA (3,232,029)  (5,846,230)
(140,342) (148,180)
Changes in working capital: HEELEE
— Decrease in prepayments, other —FERRRIE - Htt R R
receivables and other assets HinEEmD 224 107
— Increase in accruals and other - EAREMENRK
payables bl 24,422 84,688
Cash used in operations EEFANERES (115,696) (63,385)
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34.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive is set out
below.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, emoluments paid or payable in
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company
or its subsidiary undertaking:

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

34. EXERTIRED

Discretionary

Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses
EENE He e BiEfa
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT  ARMTR  ARETR

(a) EERSNEEAEMS

ARBBZEERSREEAEHEH
T o

BZE2022F3A31ALFEE miAE
Bz AT ZENRENENE (TwE
RATREMBAR RS MOT :

Estimated Employer’s
allowances  contribution

and benefits to benefit
in kind scheme Total

iR  EXHE#S
ENER HE L @t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive Directors; HTES:
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EiREL 673 960 88,975 240 26 90,874
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung ESalapt 397 481 1,000 120 82 2,080
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERRELE 324 195 1,557 420 16 2,512
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BEXIEE 357 208 904 276 17 1,852
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen R ks 384 539 1,658 360 18 2,959
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui ZHELL 192 366 202 179 20 959
Ms. Lai Hong Yee RRERL 192 247 173 346 15 973
Non-executive Directors: FHTEE
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 384 - - 1,005 = 1,389
Mr. Maki Haruo BEXLE 192 - - - = 192
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien ByEis 192 - - - = 192
Independent non-executive BUkHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SRELE 146 - = = = 146
Dr. Pei Kerwei BRREET 384 - - - = 384
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen BRCEE 312 = = = = 312
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEAEE 312 - - - = 312
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BrRLL 192 - - - = 192
Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King** TRRL L 144 - - - = 144
4,777 3,086 94,469 2,946 194 105,472
* The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee. * T REEYISEENEMERAZERA

> Mrs. Kong Ho Pui King, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company from 1 July 2021.

&o

* STAMIRZ = B2021F7 10 8%
EERRDBRZBIFHITES -
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34. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each director and the chief executive is set out
below.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, emoluments paid or payable in
respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of the Company
or its subsidiary undertaking:

Want Want China Holdings Limited

34. EERTIREREE)
(a) EBKEREBEAEME @)

ARBAEESERSRERAEHEH
BT o

BZE2021FE3A31ALEE siAE
Ez AT ZzEBENSESHE (TRA
RATREMBATEE NT :

Estimated Employer’s
allowances  contribution

Discretionary  and benefits to benefit
Name of Directors Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
fEEERR  EXHEfe
BEps ik e BERA BUER RN oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR  ARETR  ARMT:R

Executive Directors: HrESE:
Mr. Tsai Eng-Meng EiREE ik 1,005 121313 240 2 123,296
Mr. Tsai Shao-Chung ESalapt 390 501 983 120 85 2,079
Mr. Tsai Wang-Chia ERRELE 343 201 985 420 - 1,949
Mr. Huang Yung-Sung BAIEE 377 301 739 276 17 1710
Mr. Chu Chi-Wen REEE 407 558 1421 360 18 2,770
Mr. Tsai Ming-Hui HELE 203 385 199 207 21 1,015
Ms. Lai Hong Yee REERL 203 252 140 377 16 988
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun* B 407 - - 982 - 1389
Mr. Maki Haruo EEREE 203 - - - - 203
Mr. Cheng Wen-Hsien ByEis 203 - - - - 203
Independent non-executive BUkHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Toh David Ka Hock SRELE 406 - - - - 406
Dr. Pei Kerwei ARt 406 - - - - 406
Mr. Hsieh Tien-Jen HRCEE 203 - - - - 203
Mr. Lee Kwok Ming TEAEE 203 - - - - 203
Mr. Pan Chih-Chiang BrRLE 203 - - - - 203
4,868 3,203 125,786 2,982 184 137,023

The other benefit for Mr. Liao Ching-Tsun is the consultancy fee.

. ZABEBYIEEHNH BRI BES
ﬁ o
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34. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(c) Consideration provided to or receivable by third parties for
making available directors’ services

The Group did not pay consideration, and no consideration was
payable by the Group, to any third parties for making available
directors’ services during the year ended 31 March 2022.

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, bodies corporate controlled by or entities connected
with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, bodies
corporate controlled by or entities connected with directors subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March
2022.

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31 March 2022 or at any time during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

34. EERTIREREE)

(b) EBRARZLEF

EENEE2022F3831BILEET
UL S A S W BT TR R B R S AR
LERER o

(c) MREHEZREMEAE=FIRE
HRE=FBIRIBHESRE
MUER Ay £ E

REBNEE202263A831ALEFE
WEG L ERRIREES RS B EAE
=FATEE -

d) MES ZZEEBEHNE
AEERZESHEBEEEIR
HNER EERREMBR S
HER

NERFNEE2022F38318LLE
EEAEE TEDES - SZEE
EEHNEAEERZESNEE
RIEENER EERRHEHMRS -

() EBEXRS  ZHIABEANE
K

72022F3 831 BEHE 202253
A31H L FEAMER » NARILE
HIRAPRAEE 2 EKEMAQT]
ZEZHEREEBEEHETEEERE
BZEERS  RHERER °
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35. XEMBELT

2022538318 » NEBHNEEM

The following sets out the details of the subsidiaries of the Group as at

31 March 2022.

BARFBHIWT -

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capitaliregistered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
&/ 2 BRIRAR REBRE
NGEL:S RIER/ HE B/ ERER WERER%  IEEH
Directly owned
ERER
Want Want Holdings Ltd. Singapore US$212,331,000 99.99 Investment holding
REERERATE s 212,331,000% 7 REZR
Long Wave Foods Limited HKSAR HK$100 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRERAA BERE 10087 RARHKES
Want-Want Foods Limited HKSAR HK$2 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRERAR BERE 287 RARHKES
Leisure Foods Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
HHRRERAR BERE 187 RARHKES
Like Snacks Trading Limited HKSAR HK$1 100 Trading of food and beverages
BYIRMESERAT BERE 187 RARHKES
Want Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$10,000,000 100 Investment holding
ERRRERERAR BERE 10,000,000% 7 REER
Big Want (HK) Holdings Limited HKSAR US$1 100 Investment holding
ERARERERAR BBRE (EV REER
Want Want China Finance Limited BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
ABELES 50,000% 7 REER
Want Want Indonesia Holdings Pte Limited HKSAR US$750,000 100 Investment holding
BERE 750,000% 7 REZR
Indirectly owned
HEEs
Anhui Kuang-Want food Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB22,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ZHERRREEERAT HEIER AR22,000,0007 and related activities
RERSHESUREEERED
Anji Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZERERMERAT FEER 1,400,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Anging Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZEAERRBERAT FEER 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Anging Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZERERMERAT FEER 100,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Anyang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$8,930,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ZHEIHREERAT FEER 8,930,000% 7 of food and beverages

HERDHRRNGH
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35. XEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8)
Bao-Want Technology Packaging Materials Taiwan region NTD9,000,000 60 Sales of chemical materials and
Co,, Ltd. BENE 9,000,007 &% plastic films/bags
BENFENRIERARE HELBNRRBR /&
Beijing Be-Want Foods Ltd.# Chinese Mainland US$9,350,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TRV ERERAF HEIRA 9,350,000% 7t of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$13,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FTRARERERAF HEIRA 13,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Cheng-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,440,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TRRERRERAT HEIRR 1,440,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Dairy-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$25,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ITRARRRERAT HEIRR 25,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FTRURRRERAT HEIRR 1,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Beijing Lion-Want Packing Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$2,100,000 100 Manufacturing of packing materials
ERREBEERAT HEIER 2,100,000% 7 HEaLR
Beijing Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TRRERRERAT HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Changchun Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB150,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RERHRRERAF HEIRR AR¥150,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Changsha Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$19,320,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ROBHRRERAT HEIRR 19,320,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chengdu Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$35,700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
KEHARAERRAF HEIRR 35,700,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chengdu Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland 1S$9,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
KARRRRERAR HEIRR 9,800,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Chongging Xi-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB1,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
EFERHEARAR HERR AR#1,000,0007 and related activities

RERRNEA L RAEERED
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Want Want China Holdings Limited

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
First Family Enterprise Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD66,500,000 100 Trading of snack food
RRESZRNERAR FEHE 66,500,000%7 & # HNARRES
Guangdong Si-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ERERHEERAR HENER AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Guangxi Ling-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
ERERHEARAR HERR ARH3,500,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Guangxi Ming-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$25,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERARRRERAF HEIRR 25,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangxi Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$11,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERRRRRERAR HEIRR 11,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,850,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENSERRERAR HEIRR 4,850,000% ¢ of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENAERRERAR HEIRR 10,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENCERRERAR HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENARALEERAR HEIRR 15,000,000 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$9,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENERRRERAR FERR 9,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Xiang-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$14,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENFRERRERAR HERR 14,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Guangzhou Yong-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ENXERRERAR HERR 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Hangzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$11,250,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
MNARRRERAR HEISR 11,250,000% 7T of food and beverages

RERDERRARH
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FEH I ERERAT

Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLATE)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8)
Hangzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
AN RRERAR HEIRR 4,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hangzhou Sun-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution of food,
NS ERRERAR HEIRR 12,000,000% 7 wine and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hangzhou Tiane Foods Chemical Co., Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,050,000 100 Manufacturing of dehydrating, deoxidating,
RMAELIBRAT HEIER 1,050,000 7% preservative and related products
RE R REMN  HREREBER
Hangzhou Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland S$9,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ANERRRERAF HEIRA 9,800,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Harbin Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
RREETERRERAT HEIRR 5,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hubei Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HEREEERAF HEIRR AR#4,500,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Hefei Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
AEEERRERAT HEIRR 6,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Heilongjiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
EEIGHBEERAR HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Henan Ping-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
R TREEERAR HEIRR AR#3,000,0007 and related activities
RmREBEZURBBERED
Henan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
MEEERRERAR HEIRR 1,750,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Houma Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$5,700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
GERRRRERAR HEIRR 5,700,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Huaian Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$117,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERRRRERA R HEIRR 117,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Hubei Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
M IRERERAT HEIRR 4,500,000% 7 of food and beverages

HERDHRRNRH
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FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
Hubei Ming-Want Foods Ltd.# Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEBERRERAT HEIRR 10,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Hunan Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$57,400,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEARRRERAT HESR 57,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Hunan Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,500,000 100 Manufacturing of packing bags
HEERERENEEERAT HENER 5,500,000% 7 and carton boxes
REAERRER
Hunan Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HERREEERAF HERR AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Hunan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HEEERRERAT HEIRR 15,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
| Lan Foods Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan region NTD10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HERRIERGERAT REHE 10,000,00051 4% of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Island Port Corporation BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 25,000,000% 7 REZR
Jiangsu Rongwang Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IHEAREERAF HEER AR#10,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Jiangxi Be-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,600,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IEAVERRERAT HEIRR 12,600,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangxi Want Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland US$18,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
IARRRRERAF FEIRR 18,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Jiangxi Wen-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB2,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
IAXEEERRAF HENER AR#2,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESEED
Jiaxing Mei-Want Machinery Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,500,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of
RAEEARNAEERAT HENER 12,500,000% 7 machineries and related services
HEREERHREBRE
Jiaxing Feng Want Precision Equipment Chinese Mainland RMB5,600,000 100 Manufacturing and sales of
Manufacturing Co., Ltd* HEIER AR#5,600,0007 machineries and related services
REERRERERERRAR HEREERHRBBRE
Leading Guide Corporation BVI US$40,000,000 100 Trading of raw materials, machineries
RBELRE 40,000,000% 7t and efc.

FHH - BHSES
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Want Want China Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT

35. XEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BEIRHRZ rEERE
RRER RIER/ HE R /g WEREEY  FEEH
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (&)
Leading Guide Hong Kong Limited HKSAR US$50,000 100 Trading company
EBRE 50,000% 7 B0
Lianyungang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$8,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BZEMARRERAR HERR 8,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Liaoning Tai-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
BELRMBEEERAT HEIER AR#5,000,0007T and related activities
RmRYBEZUREBERED
Longchang Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$18,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BEUHRRERAT HEIRR 18,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
SPREAEERAR HEIER AR#50,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERERRERAT HEIRR 1,750,000% of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$700,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERHRRERAT HEIRR 700,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Longchang Xiang Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EEHHRRERAT HEIRR 4,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Big-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BUARRRERAR HEIRR AE#100,000,0007 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Ru-Want Foods Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BRUARRRERAR HEIRR AE#50,000,0007C of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Luohe Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BRURRRRERAR HEIRR 7,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERAHRMARA
Media Sense INC. BVI US$25,000,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 25,000,000% 7 REER
Ming Want Worldwide Limited BVI US$250,000 100 Investment holding
RERZEE 250,000% 7 REER
Nanjing Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$97,050,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BERAERRERAT HERR 97,050,000% 7 of food and beverages

HERDHRRNRH



e AR M EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Want Want China Holdings Limited

FH I ERERAT

ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BRORAR rEERA
DAERH RIER/ #E R /REs WEREZ% IEED
Indirectly owned (continued)
BREA (&)
Nanjing Cubic-Want Plastic Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$2,500,000 100 Production of packaging materials
ARREEENRERAT PEIER 2,500,000% 7 and cans
LEARMHRE
Nanjing Fore-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,300,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HRERRRARAR EER 6,300,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Nanjing Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$17,000,000 100 Manufacturing of packing bags
HRERENERAT HEIER 17,000,000% 7T and carton boxes
HEBRRRAR
Nanjing Lion-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$3,700,000 100 Manufacturing of packing materials
ARREEEERAR HEIRR 3,700,000% 7 BEAEME
Nanjing Minghong Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 75 Manufacturing and distribution
BRBARRRERAR FEER 15,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Nanjing Be-Want Foods Co.,Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$3,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ARAERRERAR EER 3,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Nanjing Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$2,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ARAERRERAR ENER 2,500,000 of food and beverages
HERAERAARA
Nanjing Sen-Want Dairy Co.,Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB500,000,000 84 Manufacturing and distribution
BRREALERRAF HERA AR¥500,000,0007 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Nanjing Want Want Foods Ltd* Chinese Mainland US$6,400,000 91 Manufacturing and distribution
EREERRERAF FEER 6,400,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Ningxia Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$12,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
ERRRIEERAT HEER 12,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Poyang County Linwang Forestry Chinese Mainland US$18,350,000 100 Agricultural planting and management
Development Co., Ltd. HEIER 18,350,000% 7T and livestock and poultry breeding
BEEMIEMRARERAT EEEERERNRERER
PT WANT WANT INDONESIA Indonesia IDR5,000,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
e 5,000,000,00061 2 & and related activities
RERSHESUREEXKED
Qihe Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$45,130,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EIREREERAT FEER 45,130,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDHRRARE
Quanzhou Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
SNIRERERAF HEER 15,000,000% 7 of food and beverages

RERDHRBANRA
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ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLATE)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
gE /i BRIRAR rEERA
NEER RIER,/ #E B%/GRER WEREZ% TEED
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE ()
Quanzhou Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FNEERRERAR HEIRR 10,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Shanxi Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$350,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HERERHEERAR HERR 350,000% 7 and related activities
RARAHESUREERSED
Shandong Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LRARRRERAR FEER 4,500,000£7% of food and beverages
HERDHERRARE
Shandong Jet-Want Packaging Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
WREREEHRERAR HEER 5,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Shandong Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$67,350,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LRAERRERAT HERR 67,350,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Shandong Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB3,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
WRGHEHERRAH EIER ARE#3,000,0007 and related activities
RARAHESUREEREED
Shanggao Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$1,800,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
LERERRERAR FEER 1,800,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDHERRARE
Shanggao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TERERRERAR HEIER 5,000,000£ 7 of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Shanghai Lee-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$15,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
TBUHERERLT HEIER 15,000,000% T of food and beverages
RERDERRARE
Shanghai Ruwang Electronic Chinese Mainland RMB140,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Commerce Co., Ltd. EIER ARH140,000,0007 and information
LEnEEFERERAR RUEAARERER
Shanghai Fuwang Culture Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
Communication Co., Ltd. FEER AR#5,000,0007 and information
LEFR L ERERAR RUEAARERER
Shanghai Want Want Foods Group Co., Ltd. ~ Chinese Mainland US$30,350,000 100 Provision of consultancy services
LERERRERAR EIER 30,350,000% 7t and information
RUEAARERER
Shanghai Hao-Want Network Technology Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Engaged in network technology services,
Co., Ltd. HEER AR10,000,0007 consulting, etc.
LEHRRENEERAT B BERMRY - A%
Shanghai Want-Want Network Technology Chinese Mainland RMB100,800,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
Co., Ltd. HEIRR AB#100,800,0007 and related activities online

LB AENRERAT
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ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLAT A

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BEIRHZ rEERE
ARER RIER/HE R /REs WEREEY  FEEE
Indirectly owned (continued)
BERE (&)
Shanghai Want Want Trading Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$4,500,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
HEREHERRAT HEIER 4,500,000%% and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESEED
Shanghai Chao Want Technology Co., Ltd Chinese Mainland US$10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
DEBEREERAT HENER 10,000,000% 7 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Shanghai Yuanwang Enterprise Chinese Mainland RMB11,000,000 100 Business Service
Management Co., Ltd.* HEIRR AR#11,000,0007 EELG S
e ¥ERERAR
Shanghai Wangdao Trading Co., Ltd. Chinese Mainland RMB21,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
EREEEERAT HEER AR#21,000,0007 and related activities
RRRHNESUREEESED
Shenyang Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$9,950,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EHRAERRERAT HEIRR 9,950,000% 7 of food, wine and beverages
HERDBRM  BERHA
Shenyang Rice-Want Cereals & Qils Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$9,600,000 100 Processing and sales of rice and
ERETEERERAT FEER 9,600,000% 7 oil products
KRRERMIRHEE
Shenyang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$10,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EREERAERAT HEIRR 10,000,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Shenyang Yan-Want Rice Flour Chinese mainland RMB27,310,000 100 Rice flour manufacturing
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* HEIER AR#27310,0007 BUERR
ERERBREERAT
Shijiazhuang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese mainland US$22,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
REHARAEERAR HEIRR 22,750,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Shuangcheng Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$3,620,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
REEEHEERRERAT FEER 3,620,000% 7 of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Tongchuan Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$15,600,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
)| R RRERAR HERR 15,600,000% 7T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Tongchuan Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese mainland US$6,750,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
1) EERRERAR FERR 6,750,000% T of food and beverages
HERDERAARA
Want Want Corporation (Thailand) Ltd. Thailand THP45,000,000 100 Trading company
ZH 45,000,000%8% E50F
Want Want Europe GmbH Germany EUR700,000 100 Import and distribution of food and
BH 700,000t beverages

RRTSAEORD#
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ANNUAL REPORT

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. XEMBLATE)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /i BRIRAR rEERA
NEER RIER,/ #E R /g WEREZ% TEED
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEHE (8
Want Want Holdings Finance Limited BVI US$1 100 Investment holding
ABRLHS 127 REZR
Want Want North America Llc North America US$1,000,000 100 Food export, distribution and
x 1,000,000% 7T related service
Ru0  HEREEXEED
Want Want Philippines Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$250,000 100 Investment company
A 250,000% T REDNT
Want Want Thailand Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$1,530,000 100 Investment holding
REREMAZRERAT R 1,530,000% 7 REZR
Want Want Vietnam Company Limited Vietnam US$50,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HHHEERAR il 50,000,000% 7% of food and beverages
HERDERRARE
Want Want Vietham Holdings Pte Limited Singapore US$58,030,000 9% Investment holding
R AERERAR il 58,030,000% 7T REER
Want Want Vietnam Trading Co., Ltd. Vietnam US$8,000,000 100 Trading company
il 8,000,000% 7 EH0H
Want Want Food Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD100,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
RERRIABRLT Hg 100,000%7 iNSE T RANHRES
Want Want Four Seas Company Limited HKSAR HK$2,000,000 70 Distributing of food and beverages and
EEMAERAR BERE 2,000,005 related activities
PHERRRBUAREBESEE
Want Want Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY100,000,000 60 Import, export and distribution of food and
HHERAKAEH X 100,000,0008 beverages and related services
RERSEELARD EARAERS
Weifang Rimalt Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$3,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BHHERMERAR PEER 3,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
BERDHR AR
Wingate Overseas Holdings Ltd. BVI US$50,000 100 Investment holding
ABRLHE 50,000% 7 REER
Wellstand Singapore Pte Limited Singapore US$1,050,000 100 Investment holding
R 1,050,000% 7 REER
Xiantao Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$5,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
EERAERAT HERR 5,100,000% of food and beverages
HERDHRRARE
Xining Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
AERERRERAR HEIER 6,000,000% of food and beverages
BERIHRMANA
Xinjiang Ru-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$6,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
FEIRRRERAR HEER 6,100,000% 7 of food and beverages

RERDHRBANRA
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35. XEMBLT @)

Country/place Issued and paid up Effective interests
of operation/ capital/registered held by the Group
Company name incorporation capital % Principal activities
g8 /iR BRORAR rEERA
DAERH RIER/ #E R /REs WEREZ% IEED
Indirectly owned (continued)
BEA (&)
Xinjiang Want Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$7,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HERERAERAT FEER 7,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Xuzhou Big-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$11,500,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
BNAERBERAT FEER 11,500,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Ming-Want Dairy Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$79,100,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HIREIEBRAT FEER 79,100,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Ru-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland US$24,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
WIAEERERAT HEER 24,000,000% 7 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Want-Want Foods Ltd. Chinese Mainland RMB100,000,000 100 Manufacturing and distribution
HIEERAERAT FEER AR¥100,000,0007 of food and beverages
RERAHRMARA
Zhejiang Yuan-Want Trading Co., Ltd.* Chinese Mainland RMB10,000,000 100 Trading of food and beverages
WG ERERRAT PEIER AER#10,000,0007 and related activities
RERHHESUREEXKED
Zhong Want Holdings Limited HKSAR HK$1,000 100 Investment holding
REZRBRAR BERE 1,000 RERR
Notes: FisE
# represents sino-foreign equity/cooperative joint venture. # RERPIEE SFERE-
* represents enterprise wholly-owned by a Chinese mainland legal entity. * RERPBERAEABERSE

The remaining enterprises incorporated in Chinese mainland are all

foreign-invested enterprises.

All the enterprises incorporated in Chinese mainland are limited

liability companies.

HKSAR denotes Hong Kong Special Administrative region.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 28 June 2022.

HBEPBRRENEMOEEGBINEG
RERZE -
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